## **INVITATION FOR BIDS**

	Date:
1.	The Managing Director, Pakhtunkhwa Highways Authority, Government of KPK, Peshawar (the "Employer") invites you to tender for the provision of all labour, materials, equipments and services for the
2.	The work to be carried out is Improvement and Widening of Road comprising upto 15 cm Subbase Course, 20 cm Water Bound Macadam, 5 cm Asphaltic Concrete Wearing Course, etc. Bidding is open to all eligible Bidders.
3.	The Employer invites sealed bids from eligible firms or persons licensed by the Pakistan Engineering Council in the appropriate category for the Works. A foreign bidder is entitled to bid only in a joint venture with a Pakistani constructor in accordance with the relevant provisions of PEC bye–laws.
4.	Bidders may obtain further information from, inspect at and acquire the Bidding Documents from the Office of the Employer, at Managing Director, Pakhtunkhwa Highways Authority, Govt. of Khyber Pakhtunkhwa, Khyber Road, Peshawar.
5.	A complete set of Bidding Documents may be purchased by an interested bidder on submission of a written application to the above office and upon payment of a non-refundable fee of Rs/- (RupeesOnly).
6.	All bids must be accompanied by a Bid Security in the amount of PKR equal to 2% of Bid amount and must be delivered to Managing Director, Pakhtunkhwa Highways Authority, Khyber Road, Peshawar at or before hours, on, 2014. Bids will be opened at hours on the same day, in the presence of bidder's representatives who choose to attend at the same address.
7.	All recipients of this letter of invitation are invited to attend the Pre-Bid Meeting which will be held at Hrs. on, 2014 at the office of Managing Director, Pakhtunkhwa Highways Authority, Peshawar.
	Managing Director

Managing Director,
Pakhtunkhwa Highways Authority,
Government of KPK,
Khyber Road, Peshawar.



# GOVERNMENT OF KHYBER PAKHTUNKHWA PAKHTUNKHWA HIGHWAYS AUTHORITY PESHAWAR

·				
			"	
		 		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·

# **BIDDING DOCUMENT**

**VOLUME - I** 



# GOVERNMENT OF KHYBER PAKHTUNKHWA PAKHTUNKHWA HIGHWAYS AUTHORITY PESHAWAR

<u> </u>			
		"	
,			
			· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·

# **BIDDING DOCUMENT**

**VOLUME - I** 

# **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

	DESCRIPTION	PAGE			
INSTRUCTION TO BIDDERS 5					
A.	General	6			
	IB.1 Scope of Bid	6			
	IB.2 Source of Funds	6			
	IB.3 Eligible Bidders	6			
	IB.4 One Bid Per Bidder	6			
	IB.5 Cost of Bidding	6			
	IB.6 Site Visit	6			
В.	Bidding Documents	7			
	IB.7 Contents of Bidding Documents	7			
	IB.8 Clarification of Bidding Documents	7			
	IB.9 Amendment of Bidding Documents	8			
C.	Preparation of Bids	8			
	IB.10. Language of Bid	8			
	IB.11 Documents Accompanying the Bid	8			
	IB.12 Bid Prices	10			
	IB.13 Currencies of Bid and Payment	10			
	IB.14 Bid Validity	11			
	IB.15 Bid Security	11			
	IB.16 Alternate Proposals by Bidder	12			
	IB.17 Pre–Bid Meeting IB.18 Format and Signing of Bid	12 12			
		12			
D.	Submission of Bids	13			
	IB.19 Sealing and Marking of Bids	13			
	IB.20 Deadline for Submission of Bids	14			
	IB.21 Late Bids	14			
	IB.22 Modification, Substitution and Withdrawal of Bids	14			
E.	Bid Opening and Evaluation	15			
	IB.23 Bid Opening	15			
	IB.24 Process to be Confidential	15			
	IB.25 Clarification of Bids	15			
	IB.26 Examination of Bids and Determination of Responsiveness	16			
	IB.27 Correction of Errors	16			
	IB.28 Evaluation and Comparison of Bids	17			

F.	Award of Contract	17	
	<ul> <li>IB.29 Award</li> <li>IB.30 Employer's Right to Accept any Bid and to Reject any or all Bids</li> <li>IB.31 Notification of Award</li> <li>IB.32 Performance Security</li> <li>IB.33 Signing of Contract Agreement</li> <li>IB.34 General Performance of the Bidders</li> <li>IB.35 Integrity Pact</li> <li>IB.36 Instructions Not Part of Contract</li> </ul>	17 18 18 18 19 19	
BIDDING	DATA	20 – 22	
FORM OF	BID AND APPENDICES TO BID	23 – 38	
	FORM OF BID	24	
	Appendix–A to Bid: Special Stipulations Appendix–B to Bid: Foreign Currency Requirements Appendix–C to Bid: Price Adjustment (Under Clause 70) Appendix–D to Bid: Bill of Quantities Appendix–E to Bid: Proposed Construction Schedule Appendix–F to Bid: Method of Performing the Work Appendix–G to Bid: List of Major Equipment – Related Items Appendix–H to Bid: Construction Camp and Housing Facilities Appendix–I to Bid: List of Subcontractors Appendix–J to Bid: Estimated Progress Payments Appendix–K to Bid: Organization Chart of Supervisory Staff and Labour Appendix–L to Bid: Integrity Pact	38	
FORMS	BID SECURITY PERFORMANCE SECURITY CONTRACT AGREEMENT MOBILIZATION ADVANCE GUARANTEE / BOND	40 42 44 46	
PART-I: 0	GENERAL CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT	48 – 125	
PART-II:	PARTICULAR CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT	126 – 148	
PART-III:	SUPPLEMENTARY CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT	149 – 158	
SPECIFICATIONS – SPECIAL PROVISIONS			
SPECIFICATIONS – TECHNICAL PROVISIONS			
LIST OF DRAWINGS			

**INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS** 

#### **INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS**

#### A. GENERAL

#### IB.1 Scope of Bid

- 1.1 The Employer as defined in the Bidding Data hereinafter called "the Employer" wishes to receive bids for the construction and completion of works as described in these Bidding Documents, and summarized in the Bidding Data hereinafter referred to as the "Works".
- 1.2 The successful bidder will be expected to complete the Works within the time specified in Appendix-A to Bid.

#### IB.2 Source of Funds

2.1 The Employer has applied for/received a loan / credit from the source (s) indicated in the Bidding Data in various currencies towards the cost of the project specified in the Bidding Data and it is intended that part of the proceeds of this loan/credit will be applied to eligible payments under the Contract for which these Bidding Documents are issued.

#### IB.3 Eligible Bidders

- 3.1 This Invitation for Bids is open to all bidders meeting the following requirements:
  - (a) Duly licensed by the Pakistan Engineering Council (PEC) in the category relevant to the value of the Works.
  - (b) Duly pregualified / enlisted with the Employer.

#### IB.4 One Bid per Bidder

4.1 Each bidder shall submit only one bid either by himself, or as a partner in a joint venture. A bidder who submits or participates in more than one bid (other than alternatives pursuant to Clause IB.16) will be disqualified.

#### IB.5 Cost of Bidding

5.1 The bidders shall bear all costs associated with the preparation and submission of their respective bids and the Employer will in no case be responsible or liable for those costs, regardless of the conduct or outcome of the bidding process.

#### IB.6 Site Visit

6.1 The bidders are advised to visit and examine the Site of Works and its surroundings and obtain for themselves on their own responsibility all information that may be necessary for preparing the bid and entering into a contract for construction of the Works. All cost in this respect shall be at the bidder's own expense.

6.2 The bidders and any of their personnel or agents will be granted permission by the Employer to enter upon his premises and lands for the purpose of such inspection, but only upon the express condition that the bidders, their personnel and agents, will release and indemnify the Employer, his personnel and agents from and against all liability in respect thereof and will be responsible for death or personal injury, loss of or damage to property and any other loss, damage, costs and expenses incurred as a result of such inspection.

#### B. BIDDING DOCUMENTS

#### **IB.7** Contents of Bidding Documents

- 7.1 The Bidding Documents, in addition to invitation for bids, are those stated below and should be read in conjunction with any Addenda issued in accordance with Clause IB.9.
  - 1. Instructions to Bidders.
  - 2. Bidding Data.
  - 3. General Conditions of Contract, Part-I (GCC).
  - 4. Particular Conditions of Contract, Part-II (PCC).
  - 5. Supplementary Conditions of Contract, Part-III (SCC).
  - 6. Specifications Special Provisions.
  - 7. Specifications Technical Provisions.
  - 8. Form of Bid & Appendices to Bid.
  - 9. Bill of Quantities (Appendix-D to Bid).
  - 10. Form of Bid Security.
  - 11. Form of Contract Agreement.
  - 12. Forms of Performance Security & Mobilization Advance Guarantee / Bond.
  - 13. Drawings.
- 7.2 The bidders are expected to examine carefully the contents of all the above documents. Failure to comply with the requirements of bid submission will be at the Bidder's own risk. Pursuant to Clause IB.26, bids which are not substantially responsive to the requirements of the Bidding Documents will be rejected.

#### **IB.8** Clarification of Bidding Documents

8.1 Any prospective bidder requiring any clarification (s) in respect of the Bidding Documents may notify the Employer in writing at the Employer's address indicated in the Invitation for Bids. The Employer will respond to any request for clarification which he receives earlier than 28 days prior to the deadline for submission of bids.

Copies of the Employer's response will be forwarded to all purchasers of the Bidding Documents, including a description of the enquiry but without identifying its source.

#### **IB.9** Amendment of Bidding Documents

- 9.1 At any time prior to the deadline for submission of bids, the Employer may, for any reason, whether at his own initiative or in response to a clarification requested by a prospective bidder, modify the Bidding Documents by issuing addendum.
- 9.2 Any addendum thus issued shall be part of the Bidding Documents pursuant to Sub-Clause 7.1 hereof and shall be communicated in writing to all purchasers of the Bidding Documents. Prospective bidders shall acknowledge receipt of each addendum in writing to the Employer.
- 9.3 To afford prospective bidders reasonable time in which to take an addendum into account in preparing their bids, the Employer may extend the deadline for submission of bids in accordance with Clause IB.20

#### C. PREPARATION OF BIDS

#### IB.10 Language of Bid

10.1 The bid and all correspondence and documents related to the bid exchanged by a bidder and the Employer shall be in the bid language stipulated in the Bidding Data and Particular Conditions of Contract. Supporting documents and printed literature furnished by the bidders may be in any other language provided the same are accompanied by an accurate translation of the relevant parts in the bid language, in which case, for purposes of evaluation of the bid, the translation in bid language shall prevail.

#### **IB.11** Documents Accompanying the Bid

#### 11.1 Each bidder shall:

- (a) submit a written power of attorney authorizing the signatory of the bid to act for and on behalf of the bidder:
- (b) update the information indicated and listed in the Bidding Data and previously submitted with the application for prequalification, and continue to meet the minimum criteria set out in the prequalification documents which as a minimum, would include the following:
  - (i) Evidence of access to financial resources along with average annual construction turnover:
  - (ii) Financial predictions for the current year and the two following years including the effect of known commitments;
  - (iii) Work commitments since prequalification;
  - (iv) Current litigation information; and
  - (v) Availability of critical equipment.

and

(c) furnish a technical proposal taking into account the various Appendices to Bid specially the following:

Appendix-E to Bid Proposed Construction Schedule
Appendix-F to Bid Method of Performing the Work

Appendix-G to Bid List of Major Equipment

Appendix-K to Bid Organization Chart for Supervisory Staff

and other pertinent information such as mobilization programme etc;

- 11.2 Bids submitted by a joint venture of two (2) or more firms shall comply with the following requirements:
  - (a) the bid and in case of a successful bid, the Form of Contract Agreement shall be signed so as to be legally binding on all partners;
  - (b) one of the joint venture partners shall be nominated as being in charge; and this authorization shall be evidenced by submitting a power of attorney signed by legally authorized signatories of all the joint venture partners;
  - (c) the partner-in-charge shall always be duly authorized to deal with the Employer regarding all matters related with and/or incidental to the execution of Works as per the terms and Conditions of Contract and in this regard to incur any and all liabilities, receive instructions, give binding undertakings and receive payments on behalf of the joint venture;
  - (d) all partners of the joint venture shall at all times and under all circumstances be liable jointly and severally for the execution of the Contract in accordance with the Contract terms and a statement to this effect shall be included in the authorization mentioned under Sub-Para (b) above as well as in the Form of Bid and in the Form of Contract Agreement (in case of a successful bid); and
  - (e) a copy of the agreement entered into by the joint venture partners shall be submitted with the bid stating the conditions under which it will function, its period of duration, the persons authorized to represent and obligate it and which persons will be directly responsible for due performance of the Contract and can give valid receipts on behalf of the joint venture, the proportionate participation of the several firms forming the joint venture, and any other information necessary to permit a full appraisal of its functioning. No amendments / modifications whatsoever in the joint venture agreement shall be agreed to between the joint venture partner without prior written consent of the Employer.
- 11.3 Bidders shall also submit proposals of work methods and schedule, in sufficient detail to demonstrate the adequacy of the Bidders' proposals to meet the technical specifications and the completion time referred to in Sub-Clause 1.2 hereof.

#### IB.12 Bid Prices

- 12.1 Unless stated otherwise in the Bidding Documents, the Contract shall be for the whole of the Works as described in Sub-Clause 1.1 hereof, based on the unit rates and / or prices submitted by the bidder.
- 12.2 The bidders shall fill in rates and prices for all items of the Works described in the Bill of Quantities. Items against which no rate or price is entered by a bidder will not be paid for by the Employer when executed and shall be deemed covered by rates and prices for other items in the Bill of Quantities.
- 12.3 All duties, taxes and other levies payable by the Contractor under the Contract, or for any other cause, as on the date 28 days prior to the deadline for submission of bids shall be included in the rates and prices and the total Bid Price submitted by a bidder.
  - Additional / reduced duties, taxes and levies due to subsequent additions or changes in legislation shall be reimbursed / deducted as per Sub-Clause 70.2 of the General Conditions of Contract Part-I.
- 12.4 The rates and prices quoted by the bidders are subject to adjustment during the performance of the Contract in accordance with the provisions of Clause 70 of the Conditions of Contract. The bidders shall furnish the prescribed information for the price adjustment formulae in Appendix-C to Bid, and shall submit with their bids such other supporting information as required under the said Clause.

#### **IB.13** Currencies of Bid and Payment

- 13.1 The unit rates and the prices shall be quoted by the bidder entirely in Pak rupees. A bidder expecting to incur expenditures in other currencies for inputs to the Works supplied from outside the Employer's country (referred to as the "Foreign Currency Requirements") shall indicate the same in Appendix-B to Bid. The proportion of the Bid Price (excluding Provisional Sums) needed by him for the payment of such Foreign Currency Requirements either (i) entirely in the currency of the Bidder's home country or, (ii) at the bidder's option, entirely in Pak rupees provided always that a bidder expecting to incur expenditures in a currency or currencies other than those stated in (i) and (ii) above for a portion of the foreign currency requirements, and wishing to be paid accordingly, shall indicate the respective portions in his bid.
- 13.2 The rates of exchange to be used by the bidder for currency conversion shall be the TT&OD Selling Rates published or authorized by the State Bank of Pakistan prevailing on the date 28 days prior to the deadline for submission of bids.
  - For the purpose of payments, the exchange rates used in bid preparation shall apply for the duration of the Contract.

#### **IB.14** Bid Validity

- 14.1 Bids shall remain valid for the period stipulated in the Bidding Data after the Date of Bid Opening specified in Clause IB.23.
- 14.2 In exceptional circumstances, prior to expiry of the original bid validity period, the Employer may request that the bidders extend the period of validity for a specified additional period which shall in no case be more than the original bid validity period. The request and the responses thereto shall be made in writing. A bidder may refuse the request without forfeiting his Bid Security. A bidder agreeing to the request will not be required or permitted to modify his bid, but will be required to extend the validity of his Bid Security for the period of the extension, and in compliance with Clause IB.15 in all respects.

#### **IB.15** Bid Security

- 15.1 Each bidder shall furnish, as part of his bid, a Bid Security in the amount stipulated in the Bidding Data in Pak Rupees or an equivalent amount in a freely convertible currency.
- 15.2 The Bid Security shall be, at the option of the bidder, in the form of Deposit at Call or a Bank Guarantee issued by a Scheduled Bank in Pakistan or from a foreign bank duly counter guaranteed by a Scheduled Bank in Pakistan in favour of the Employer valid for a period 28 days beyond the Bid Validity date.
- 15.3 Any bid not accompanied by an acceptable Bid Security shall be rejected by the Employer as non-responsive.
- 15.4 The bid securities of unsuccessful bidders will be returned as promptly as possible, but not later than 28 days after the expiration of the period of Bid Validity.
- 15.5 The Bid Security of the successful bidder will be returned when the bidder has furnished the required Performance Security and signed the Contract Agreement.
- 15.6 The Bid Security may be forfeited:
  - (a) if the bidder withdraws his bid except as provided in Sub-Clause 22.1;
  - (b) if the bidder does not accept the correction of his Bid Price pursuant to Sub-Clause 27.2 hereof; or
  - (c) In the case of successful bidder, if he fails within the specified time limit to:
    - (i) furnish the required Performance Security; or
    - (ii) sign the Contract Agreement.

#### IB.16 Alternate Proposals by Bidder

- 16.1 Should any bidder consider that he can offer any advantages to the Employer by a modification to the designs, specifications or other conditions, he may, in addition to his bid to be submitted in strict compliance with the Bidding Documents, submit any Alternate Proposal(s) containing (a) relevant design calculations; (b) technical specifications; (c) proposed construction methodology; and (d) any other relevant details / conditions, provided always that the total sum entered on the Form of Bid shall be that which represents complete compliance with the Bidding Documents.
- 16.2 Alternate Proposal(s), if any, of the lowest evaluated responsive bidder only may be considered by the Employer as the basis for the award of Contract to such bidder.

#### **IB.17 Pre-Bid Meeting**

- 17.1 The Employer may, on his own motion or at the request of any prospective bidder(s), hold a pre-bid meeting to clarify issues and to answer any questions on matters related to the Bidding Documents. The date, time and venue of pre-bid meeting, if convened, is as stipulated in the Bidding Data. All prospective bidders or their authorized representatives shall be invited to attend such a pre-bid meeting.
- 17.2 The bidders are requested to submit questions, if any, in writing so as to reach the Employer not later than seven (7) days before the proposed pre-bid meeting.
- 17.3 Minutes of the pre-bid meeting, including the text of the questions raised and the replies given, will be transmitted without delay to all purchasers of the Bidding Documents. Any modification of the Bidding Documents listed in Sub-Clause 7.1 hereof which may become necessary as a result of the pre-bid meeting shall be made by the Employer exclusively through the issue of an Addendum pursuant to Clause IB.9 and not through the minutes of the pre-bid meeting.
- 17.4 Absence at the pre-bid meeting will not be a cause for disqualification of a bidder.

#### **IB.18 Format and Signing of Bid**

- 18.1 Bidders are particularly directed that the amount entered on the Form of Bid shall be for performing the Contract strictly in accordance with the Bidding Documents.
- 18.2 All appendices to Bid are to be properly completed and signed.
- 18.3 No alteration is to be made in the Form of Bid nor in the Appendices thereto except in filling up the blanks as directed. If any such alterations be made or if these instructions be not fully complied with, the bid may be rejected.

- 18.4 Each bidder shall prepare by filling out the forms completely and without alterations one (1) original and number of copies, specified in the Bidding Data, of the documents comprising the bid as described in Clause IB.7 and clearly mark them "ORIGINAL" and 'COPY" as appropriate. In the event of discrepancy between them, the original shall prevail.
- 18.5 The original and all copies of the bid shall be typed or written in indelible ink (in the case of copies, Photostats are also acceptable) and shall be signed by a person or persons duly authorized to sign on behalf of the bidder pursuant to Sub- Clause 11.1(a) hereof. All pages of the bid shall be initialed and stamped by the person or persons signing the bid.
- 18.6 The bid shall contain no alterations, omissions or additions, except to comply with instructions issued by the Employer, or as are necessary to correct errors made by the bidder, in which case such corrections shall be initialed by the person or persons signing the bid.
- 18.7 Bidders shall indicate in the space provided in the Form of Bid their full and proper addresses at which notices may be legally served on them and to which all correspondence in connection with their bids and the Contract is to be sent.
- 18.8 Bidders should retain a copy of the Bidding Documents as their file copy.

#### D. SUBMISSION OF BIDS

#### **IB.19 Sealing and Marking of Bids**

- 19.1 Each bidder shall submit his bid as under:
  - (a) ORIGINAL and each copy of the Bid shall be separately sealed and put in separate envelopes and marked as such.
  - (b) The envelopes containing the ORIGINAL and copies will be put in one sealed envelope and addressed / identified as given in Sub- Clause 19.2 hereof.
- 19.2 The inner and outer envelopes shall:
  - (a) be addressed to the Employer at the address provided in the Bidding Data;
  - (b) bear the name and identification number of the contract as defined in the Bidding Data; and
  - (c) provide a warning not to open before the time and date for bid opening, as specified in the Bidding Data.
- 19.3 In addition to the identification required in Sub- Clause 19.2 hereof, the inner envelope shall indicate the name and address of the bidder to enable the bid to be returned unopened in case it is declared "late" pursuant to Clause IB.21

19.4 If the outer envelope is not sealed and marked as above, the Employer will assume no responsibility for the misplacement or premature opening of the Bid.

#### **IB.20** Deadline for Submission of Bids

- 20.1 (a) Bids must be received by the Employer at the address specified no later than the time and date stipulated in the Bidding Data.
  - (b) Bids with charges payable will not be accepted, nor will arrangements be undertaken to collect the bids from any delivery point other than that specified above. Bidders shall bear all expenses incurred in the preparation and delivery of bids. No claims will be entertained for refund of such expenses.
  - (c) Where delivery of a bid is by mail and the bidder wishes to receive an acknowledgment of receipt of such bid, he shall make a request for such acknowledgment in a separate letter attached to but not included in the sealed bid package.
  - (d) Upon request, acknowledgment of receipt of bids will be provided to those making delivery in person or by messenger.
- 20.2 The Employer may, at his discretion, extend the deadline for submission of bids by issuing an amendment in accordance with Clause IB.9, in which case all rights and obligations of the Employer and the bidders previously subject to the original deadline will thereafter be subject to the deadline as extended.

#### IB.21 Late Bids

- 21.1 (a) Any bid received by the Employer after the deadline for submission of bids prescribed in Clause IB.20 will be returned unopened to such bidder.
  - (b) Delays in the mail, delays of person in transit, or delivery of a bid to the wrong office shall not be accepted as an excuse for failure to deliver a bid at the proper place and time. It shall be the bidder's responsibility to determine the manner in which timely delivery of his bid will be accomplished either in person, by messenger or by mail.

#### **IB.22** Modification, Substitution and Withdrawal of Bids

- 22.1 Any bidder may modify, substitute or withdraw his bid after bid submission provided that the modification, substitution or written notice of withdrawal is received by the Employer prior to the deadline for submission of bids.
- 22.2 The modification, substitution, or notice for withdrawal of any bid shall be prepared, sealed, marked and delivered in accordance with the provisions of Clause IB.19 with the outer and inner envelopes additionally marked "MODIFICATION", "SUBSTITUTION" or "WITHDRAWAL" as appropriate.

- 22.3 No bid may be modified by a bidder after the deadline for submission of bids except in accordance with Sub-Clauses 22.1 and 27.2.
- 22.4 Withdrawal of a bid during the interval between the deadline for submission of bids and the expiration of the period of bid validity specified in the Form of Bid may result in forfeiture of the Bid Security in pursuance to Clause IB.15.

#### E. BID OPENING AND EVALUATION

#### **IB.23 Bid Opening**

- 23.1 The Employer will open the bids, including withdrawals, substitution and modifications made pursuant to Clause IB.22, in the presence of bidders' representatives who choose to attend, at the time, date and location stipulated in the Bidding Data. The bidders' representatives who are present shall sign a register evidencing their attendance.
- 23.2 Envelopes marked "MODIFICATION", "SUBSTITUTION" or "WITHDRAWAL" shall be opened and read out first. Bids for which an acceptable notice of withdrawal has been submitted pursuant to Clause IB.22 shall not be opened.
- 23.3 The bidder's name, total Bid Price and price of any Alternate Proposal(s), any discounts, bid modifications, substitution and withdrawals, the presence or absence of Bid Security, and such other details as the Employer may consider appropriate, will be announced by the Employer at the opening of bids.
- 23.4 Employer shall prepare minutes of the bid opening, including the information disclosed to those present in accordance with the Sub-Clause 23.3.

#### IB.24 Process to be Confidential

24.1 Information relating to the examination, clarification, evaluation and comparison of bid and recommendations for the award of a contract shall not be disclosed to bidders or any other person not officially concerned with such process before the announcement of bid evaluation report which shall be done at least ten (10) days prior to issue of Letter of Acceptance. The announcement to all Bidders will include table(s) comprising read out prices, discounted prices, price adjustments made, final evaluated prices and recommendations against all the bids evaluated. Any effort by a bidder to influence the Employer's processing of bids or award decisions may result in the rejection of such bidder's bid. Whereas any bidder feeling aggrieved may lodge a written complaint not later than fifteen (15) days after the announcement of the bid evaluation report; however mere fact of lodging a complaint shall not warrant suspension of the procurement process.

#### **IB.25** Clarification of Bids

25.1 To assist in the examination, evaluation and comparison of bids, the Employer may, at his discretion, ask any bidder for clarification of his bid, including

breakdowns of unit rates. The request for clarification and the response shall be in writing but no change in the price or substance of the bid shall be sought, offered or permitted except as required to confirm the correction of arithmetic errors discovered by the Employer in the evaluation of the bids in accordance with Clause IB.28.

#### IB.26 Examination of Bids and Determination of Responsiveness

- 26.1 Prior to the detailed evaluation of bids, the Employer will determine whether each bid is substantially responsive to the requirements of the Bidding Documents.
- A substantially responsive bid is one which (i) meets the eligibility criteria; (ii) has been properly signed; (iii) is accompanied by the required Bid Security; and (iv) conforms to all the terms, conditions and specifications of the Bidding Documents, without material deviation or reservation. A material deviation or reservation is one (i) which affect in any substantial way the scope, quality or performance of the Works; (ii) which limits in any substantial way, inconsistent with the Bidding Documents, the Employer's rights or the bidder's obligations under the Contract; or (iii) adoption / rectification whereof would affect unfairly the competitive position of other bidders presenting substantially responsive bids.
- 26.3 If a bid is not substantially responsive, it will be rejected by the Employer, and may not subsequently be made responsive by correction or withdrawal of the non-conforming deviation or reservation.

#### **IB.27 Correction of Errors**

- 27.1 Bids determined to be substantially responsive will be checked by the Employer for any arithmetic errors. Errors will be corrected by the Employer as follows:
  - (a) where there is a discrepancy between the amounts in figures and in words, the amount in words will govern; and
  - (b) where there is a discrepancy between the unit rate and the line item total resulting from multiplying the unit rate by the quantity, the unit rate as quoted will govern, unless in the opinion of the Employer there is an obviously gross misplacement of the decimal point in the unit rate, in which case the line item total as quoted will govern and the unit rate will be corrected.
- 27.2 The amount stated in the Form of Bid will be adjusted by the Employer in accordance with the above procedure for the correction of errors and with the concurrence of the bidder, shall be considered as binding upon the bidder. If the bidder does not accept the corrected Bid Price, his Bid will be rejected, and the Bid Security shall be forfeited in accordance with Sub- Clause 15.6(b) hereof.

#### **IB.28** Evaluation and Comparison of Bids

- 28.1 The Employer will evaluate and compare only the Bids determined to be substantially responsive in accordance with Clause IB.26.
- 28.2 In evaluating the Bids, the Employer will determine for each Bid the evaluated Bid Price by adjusting the Bid Price as follows:
  - (a) making any correction for errors pursuant to Clause IB.27;
  - (b) excluding Provisional Sums and the provision, if any, for contingencies in the Summary Bill of Quantities, but including competitively priced Daywork; and
  - (c) making an appropriate adjustment for any other acceptable variation or deviation.
- 28.3 The estimated effect of the price adjustment provisions of the Conditions of Contract, applied over the period of execution of the Contract, shall not be taken into account in Bid evaluation.
- 28.4 If the Bid of the successful bidder is seriously unbalanced in relation to the Employer's estimate of the cost of work to be performed under the Contract, the Employer may require the bidder to produce detailed price analysis for any or all items of the Bill of Quantities to demonstrate the internal consistency of those prices with the construction methods and schedule proposed. After evaluation of the price analyses, the Employer may require that the amount of the Performance Security set forth in Clause IB.32 be increased at the expense of the successful bidder to a level sufficient to protect the Employer against financial loss in the event of default of the successful bidder under the Contract.

#### F. AWARD OF CONTRACT

#### IB.29 Award

- 29.1 Subject to Clauses IB.30 and IB.34, the Employer will award the Contract to the bidder whose bid has been determined to be substantially responsive to the Bidding Documents and who has offered the lowest evaluated Bid Price, provided that such bidder has been determined to be eligible in accordance with the provisions of Clause IB.3 and qualify pursuant to Sub-Clause IB 29.2.
- 29.2 The Employer having credible reasons for, or prima facie evidence, of any defect in Bidders' capacities, will determine to its satisfaction that the substantially responsive, lowest evaluated Bidder, whether already pre-qualified or not, is qualified to satisfactorily perform the Contract in accordance with the applicable Qualification Criteria including the following:

- (a) The Bidder should have successfully completed at least one similar project in the last five years either independently or as a lead partner; and
- (b) The Bidder should have successfully completed in the last five years any specific project having value equal to or higher than the total Bid Price.

#### IB.30 Employer's Right to Accept any Bid and to Reject any or all Bids

30.1 Notwithstanding Clause IB.29, the Employer reserves the right to accept or reject any Bid, and to annul the bidding process and reject all bids, at any time prior to award of Contract, without thereby incurring any liability to the affected bidders or any obligation except that the grounds for rejection of all bids shall upon request be communicated to any bidder who submitted a bid, without justification of grounds. Rejection of all bids shall be notified to all bidders promptly.

#### **IB.31** Notification of Award

- 31.1 Prior to expiration of the period of bid validity prescribed by the Employer, the Employer will notify the successful bidder in writing ("Letter of Acceptance") that his Bid has been accepted. This letter shall name the sum which the Employer will pay the Contractor in consideration of the execution and completion of the Works by the Contractor as prescribed by the Contract (hereinafter and in the Conditions of Contract called the "Contract Price").
- 31.2 No Negotiation with the bidder having evaluated as lowest responsive or any other bidder shall be permitted, however, Employer may have clarification meetings to get clarify any item in the bid evaluation report.
- 31.3 The notification of award and its acceptance by the bidder will constitute the formation of the Contract, binding the Employer and the bidder till signing of the formal Contract Agreement.
- 31.3 Upon furnishing by the successful bidder of a Performance Security, the Employer will promptly notify the other bidders that their Bids have been unsuccessful and return their bid securities.

#### **IB.32 Performance Security**

- 32.1 The successful bidder shall furnish to the Employer a Performance Security in the form and the amount stipulated in the Bidding Data and the Conditions of Contract within a period of 28 days after the receipt of Letter of Acceptance.
- 32.2 Failure of the successful bidder to comply with the requirements of Sub-Clause IB.32.1 or Clauses IB.33 or IB.35 shall constitute sufficient grounds for the annulment of the award and forfeiture of the Bid Security.

#### **IB.33** Signing of Contract Agreement

- 33.1 Within 14 days from the date of furnishing of acceptable Performance Security under the Conditions of Contract, the Employer will send the successful bidder the Contract Agreement in the form provided in the Bidding Documents, incorporating all agreements between the parties.
- 33.2 The formal Agreement between the Employer and the successful bidder shall be executed within 14 days of the receipt of the Contract Agreement by the successful bidder from the Employer.

#### **IB.34** General Performance of the Bidders

The Employer reserves the right to obtain information regarding performance of the bidders on their previously awarded contracts / works. The Employer may in case of consistent poor performance of any Bidder as reported by the employers of the previously awarded contracts, interalia, reject his bid and/or refer the case to the Pakistan Engineering Council (PEC). Upon such reference, PEC in accordance with its rules, procedures and relevant laws of the land take such action as may be deemed appropriate under the circumstances of the case including black listing of such Bidder and debarring him from participation in future bidding for similar works.

#### **IB.35** Integrity Pact

The Bidder shall sign and stamp the Integrity Pact provided at Appendix-L to Bid in the Bidding Documents for all Federal Government procurement contracts exceeding Rupees ten million. Failure to provide such Integrity Pact shall make the bidder non-responsive.

#### **IB.36** Instructions not Part of Contract

Bids shall be prepared and submitted in accordance with these Instructions which are provided to assist bidders in preparing their bids, and do not constitute part of the Bid or the Contract Documents.

**BIDDING DATA** 

# **BIDDING DATA**

# A. General

IB 1.1	The Employer is Managing Director, Pakhtunkhwa Highways Authority, Khyber Road, Peshawar.
IB 1.1	The works consists of the following :
IB 2.1	The funding agency / source of financing is the Government of Khyber Pakhtunkhwa.

# C. Preparation of Bids

IB 10.1	The Bid language is English,			
IB 11.1 (b)	In addition to prequalification information as indicated in Instruction to Bidders, Bidders must update the following information:			
	i) Specific construction experience in contracts of similar size and nature.			
	ii) Specific construction experience in similar key activities involved.			
IB 13.1	The Bidders must quote the Bids entirely in Pak Rupees but specify the percentage of desired foreign currencies.			
IB 14.1	The period of Bid Validity is 120 days.			
IB 15.1	The amount of bid security for Construction of			
is PKR equal to 2% of bid amount.				
IB 17.1	The Pre-bid meeting will be held in the office of Managing Director, PkHA, on, 2014 at Hrs.			
IB 18.4	The number of copies of the Bid to be completed and returned are consists of One (1) Original and Two (2) Copies.			

## D. Submission of Bids

IB 19.2 (a)	Employer's address for the purpose of Bid submission is		
	"The Managing Director, Pakhtunkhwa Highways Authority, Attached Departments Complex, Khyber Road, Peshawar"		
The name of the contract is as per Clause 1.1 above and the iden number for Construction			
	number for Construction of		
IB 19.2 ©	The Bid submission inner & outer envelops shall be provided with a warning not to open before Hrs. on, 2014.		
IB 20.1 (a)	The dead line for submission of Bids is, 2014 at Hrs.		

# E. Bid Opening and Evaluation

IB 23.1	The Bids will be opened in the office of Managing Director, Pakhtunkhwa Highway Authority, Khyber Road, Peshawar on, 2014 at Hrs.
IB 32.1	Amount of performance Security is 10% of the Contract Price in the Letter of Acceptance in the shape of Bank Guarantee.

FORM OF BID
AND
APPENDICES TO BID

## **FORM OF BID**

Bid Reference No.

7.

	Construction of
To:	
Gentle	eman,
1.	Having examined the Bidding Documents including Instructions to Bidders, Bidding Data, Conditions of Contract. Specifications, Drawings and Bill of Quantities and Addenda Nos for the execution of the above-named Works, we, the undersigned, offer to execute and complete such Works and remedy any defects therein in conformity with the Conditions of Contract. Specifications, Drawings, Bill of Quantities and Addenda for the sum of Rs
	(Rupees) or such other sum as may be ascertained in accordance with the said conditions.
2.	We understand that all the Appendices attached hereto form part of this Bid.
3.	As security for due performance of the undertakings and obligations of this Bid, we submit herewith a Bid Security in the amount of Rupees
4.	We undertake, if our Bid is accepted, to commence the Works and to complete the whole of the Works comprised in the Contract within the time stated in Appendix-A to Bid.
5.	We agree to abide by this Bid for the period of days from the date fixed for receiving the same and it shall remain binding upon us and may be accepted at any time before the expiration of that period.
6.	Unless and until a formal Agreement is prepared and executed, this Bid, together with your written acceptance thereof, shall constitute a binding contract between us.

We do hereby declare that the Bid is made without any collusion, comparison of figures

8. We understand that you are not bound to accept the lowest or any Bid you may receive. Dated this \_\_\_\_\_ day of \_\_\_\_\_ 2014\_\_\_\_. Signature: in the capacity of \_\_\_\_\_ duly authorized to sign Bids for and on behalf of (Name of Bidder in Block Capitals) (Seal) Address : \_\_\_\_\_ Witness: Signature:

or arrangement with any other bidder for the Works.

## **SPECIAL STIPULATIONS**

## Clause

# **Conditions of Contract**

1.	Engineer's Authority to issue	2.1	2% of the Contract Price stated in the
	Variation in emergency		Letter of Acceptance.
2.	Amount of Performance Security	10.1	10% of Contract Price stated in the Letter
			of Acceptance in the shape of Bank
			Guarantee / 15% of contract price stated
			in the letter of acceptance from the PkHA
			approved / notified insurance companies.
3.	Time for Furnishing Programme	14.1	Within 42 days from the date of receipt of
			Letter of Acceptance.
4.	Minimum amount of Third Party	23.2	PKR 100,000/- in case of injury per
	Insurance		occurrence and PKR 500,000/- in case of
			death per occurrence; number of
			occurrence unlimited
5.	Time for Commencement	41.1	Within 14 days from the date of receipt of
			Engineer's Notice to Commence which
			shall be issued within fourteen (14) days
			after signing of Contract Agreement.
6.	Time for Completion	43.1	24 months from the date of receipt of
		48.2	Engineer's Notice to Commence.
7.	Amount of Liquidated Damages	47.1	0.1% of the contract amount for each day
			of delay in completion of the Works
			subject to a maximum of 10% of Contract
			Price stated in the Letter of Acceptance.
8.	Defects Liability Period	49.1	365 days from the effective date of Taking
			Over Certificate.
9.	Percentage of Retention Money	60.2	10 % of the amount of Interim Payment
			Certificate.
10.	Limit of Retention Money	60.2	5 % of Contract Price stated in the Letter
			of Acceptance.
11.	Minimum amount of Interim Payment	60.2	Rs. 1,000,000/–
	Certificates (Running Bills)		
12	Time of Payment from delivery of	60.10	28 days in case of local currency or 42
	Engineer's Interim Payment		days in case of foreign funded projects.
	Certificate to the Employer.		
13	Mobilization Advance	60.12	10 % of Tender Price stated in the Letter
			of Acceptance.

# BB-1 Appendix-B to Bid

# FOREIGN CURRENCY REQUIREMENTS

1.	The Bidder may indicate here in below his reference to various inputs to the Works.	equirements of foreign currency (if any), with
2.	Foreign Currency Requirement as percent Sums%.	age of the Bid excluding Provisional
3.	Table of Exchange Rates	
	Unit of Currency	Equ. ent in Pak. Rupees
	Australian Dollar	
	Euro	
	Japanese Yen	
	U.K. Pound	
	U.S. Dollars	

# PRICE ADJUSTMENT UNDER CLAUSE 70 OF CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT

The source of indices and the weightages or coefficients for use in the adjustment formula under Clause 70 shall be as follows:

Cost Element	Description	Weightages	Applicable index	
(1)	(2)	(3)	(4)	
(i)	Fixed Portion	0.55		
(ii)	Local Labour	0.12	Government of Pakistan (GP) Federal Bureau of Statistics (FBS) Monthly Statistical Bulletin.	
(iii)	Cement – in bags	0.08	State Cement Corporation of Pakistan, Kohat, Cherat, Lucky, Wah, Fecto	
(iv)	Reinforcing Steel	0.08	Fazal Steel Islamabd, Ittehad Steel Islamabad, Ittefaq Steel Lahore.	
(v)	High Speed Diesel (HSD)	0.12	PSO	
(vi)	Bitumen	0.05	NRL Karachi, ARL Islamabad	
	Total	1.000		

#### Notes:

- Indices for "(ii)" to "(vi)" are mentioned as noted against each. The base cost indices or prices shall be those applying 28 days prior to the latest day for submission of bids. Current indices or prices shall be those applying 28 days prior to the last day of the billing period.
- Any fluctuation in the indices or prices of materials other than those given above shall not be subject to adjustment of the Contract Price.

Bd-1
Appendix-D to Bid
BILL OF QUANTITIES
Bill of Quantities are presented separately as Volume – III of Tender Documents.

BE-1 Appendix-E to Bid

#### PROPOSED CONSTRUCTION SCHEDULE

Pursuant to Sub-Clause 43.1 of the General Conditions of Contract, the Works shall be completed on or before the date stated in Appendix-A to Bid. The Bidder shall provide as Appendix-E to Bid, the Construction Schedule in the bar chart (CPM, PERT or any other to be specified herein) showing the sequence of work items and the period of time during which he proposes to complete each work item in such a manner that his proposed programme for completion of the whole of the Works and parts of the Works may meet Employer's completion targets in days noted below and counted from the date of receipt of Engineer's Notice to Commence (Attach sheets as required for the specified form of Construction Schedule):

#### **Description**

#### **Time for Completion**

Construction of Malang Baba – Nizampur Road, Nowshera. Package–I: Km. 0+000 to Km. 6+000

(Length: 6.00 Km.) 730 Days

BF-1 Appendix-F to Bid

#### METHOD OF PERFORMING THE WORK

[The Bidder is required to submit a narrative outlining the method of performing the Work. The narrative should indicate in detail and include but not be limited to:

- 1. Organization Chart indicating head office and field office personnel involved in management and supervision, engineering, equipment maintenance and purchasing.
- 2. Mobilization in Pakistan, the type of facilities including personnel accommodation, office accommodation, provision for maintenance and for storage, communications, security and other services to be used.
- 3. The method of executing the Works, the procedures for installation of equipment and machinery and transportation of equipment and materials to the site.]

BG-1 Appendix-G to Bid

#### **LIST OF MAJOR EQUIPMENT - RELATED ITEMS**

[The Bidder will provide on Sheet 2 of this Appendix a list of all major equipment and related items, under separate heading for items owned, to be purchased or to be arranged on lease by him to carry out the Works. The information shall include make, type, capacity, and anticipated period of utilization for all equipment which shall be in sufficient detail to demonstrate fully that the equipment will meet all requirements of the Specifications.]

# LIST OF MAJOR EQUIPMENT

Owned Purchased or Leased	Description of Unit (Make, Model, Year)	Capacity HP Rating	Condition	Present Location or Source	Date of Delivery at Site	Period of Work on Project
1	2	3	4	5	6	7
a). Owned						
b). To be Purchased						
c). To be arranged on Lease						

#### CONSTRUCTION CAMP AND HOUSING FACILITIES

The Contractor in accordance with Clause 34 of the Conditions of Contract shall provide description of his construction camp's facilities and staff housing requirements.

The Contractor shall be responsible for pumps, electrical power, water and electrical distribution systems, and sewerage system including all fittings, pipes and other items necessary for servicing the Contractor's construction camp.

The Bidder shall list or explain his plans for providing these facilities for the service of the Contract as follows:

- 1. Site Preparation (clearing, land preparation, etc.).
- 2. Provision of Services.
  - (a) Power (expected power load, etc.).
  - (b) Water (required amount and system proposed).
  - (c) Sanitation (sewage disposal system, etc.).
- Construction of Facilities
  - (a) Contractor's Office. Workshop and Work Areas (areas required and proposed layout, type of construction of buildings, etc.).
  - (b) Warehouses and Storage Areas (area required, type of construction and layout).
  - (c) Housing and Staff Facilities (Plans for housing for proposed staff, layout, type of construction, etc.).
- 4. Construction Equipment Assembly and Preparation (detailed plans for carrying out this activity).
- 5. Other Items Proposed (Security services, etc.).

#### LIST OF SUBCONTRACTORS

I/We intend to subcontract the following parts of the Work to subcontractors. In my/our opinion, the subcontractors named hereunder are reliable and competent to perform that part of the work for which each is listed.

Enclosed are documentation outlining experience of subcontractors, the curriculum vitae and experience of their key personnel who will be assigned to the Contract, equipment to be supplied by them, size, location and type of contracts carried out in the past.

PART OF WORKS (Give Details)	SUBCONTRACTOR (with Complete Address)
1	2

# BJ-1 Appendix-J to Bid

#### **ESTIMATED PROGRESS PAYMENTS**

Bidder's estimate of the value of work which would be executed by him during each of the periods stated below, based on his Programme of the Works and the Rates in the Bill of Quantities, expressed in thousands of Pakistani Rupees:

Quarter/ Year/ Period	Amounts (1,000 Rs.)
(1)	(2)
1st Quarter	
2nd Quarter	
3rd Quarter	
4th Quarter	
5th Quarter	
6th Quarter	
7th Quarter	
8th Quarter	
Bid Price	

BK-1 Appendix-K to Bid

ORGANIZATION CHART
FOR THE
SUPERVISORY STAFF AND LABOUR

# (INTEGRITY PACT)

# DECLARATION OF FEES, COMMISSION AND BROKERAGE ETC. PAYABLE BY THE SUPPLIERS OF GOODS, SERVICES & WORKS IN CONTRACTS WORTH Rs. 10.00 MILLION OR MORE

Contract No Dated	
Contract Value:	
Contract Title:	
obtained or induced the procurement of any coor benefit from Government of Pakistan (Go	of Supplier] hereby declares that it has not ontract, right, interest, privilege or other obligation P) or any administrative subdivision or agency by GoP through any corrupt business practice.
it has fully declared the brokerage, commission given or agreed to give and shall not give or ageither directly or indirectly through any natural associate, broker, consultant, director, promonomission, gratification, bribe, finder's fee or for otherwise, with the object of obtaining or	[name of Supplier] represents and warrants that on, fees etc. paid or payable to anyone and not gree to give to anyone within or outside Pakistan or juridical person, including its affiliate, agent, noter, shareholder, sponsor or subsidiary, any kickback, whether described as consultation fee inducing the procurement of a contract, right, in whatsoever form from GoP, except that which
arrangements with all persons in respect of or	nd will make full disclosure of all agreements and related to the transaction with GoP and has not circumvent the above declaration, representation
not making full disclosure, misrepresenting purpose of this declaration, representation a interest, privilege or other obligation or benefit	nd strict liability for making any false declaration, facts or taking any action likely to defeat the nd warranty. It agrees that any contract, right, obtained or procured as aforesaid shall, without vailable to GoP under any law, contract or other
agrees to indemnify GoP for any loss or dabusiness practices and further pay compensathe sum of any commission, gratification, bri	rcised by GoP in this regard, [name of Supplier] amage incurred by it on account of its corrupt tion to GoP in an amount equivalent to ten time be, finder's fee or kickback given by [name of ning or inducing the procurement of any contract, enefit in whatsoever form from GoP.
Name of Buyer:	Name of Seller/Supplier:
Signature:	Signature:
[Seal]	[Seal]

### **FORMS**

# BID SECURITY CONTRACT AGREEMENT MOBILIZATION ADVANCE GUARANTEE / BOND

# BID SECURITY (Bank Guarantee)

Security Executed on		
Name of Surety (Bank) with Address		
Name of Principal (Bidder) with Address		
Penal Sum of Security Rupees	(Rs	)
Bid Reference No.		
KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENT request of the said Principal (Bidder) we unto The Managing Director, Pakht (hereinafter called the 'Employer') in the and truly to be made, we bind ourselves jointly and severally, firmly by these present	e, the Surety above named, ar unkhwa Highways Authority, a sum stated above for the pays, our heirs, executors, adminis	re held and firmly bound Government of KPK ment of which sum well
THE CONDITION OF THIS OBLIGATIO accompanying Bid dated for Bid said Employer; and		
WHEREAS, the Employer has required	•	

WHEREAS, the Employer has required as a condition for considering said Bid that the Bidder furnishes a Bid Security in the above said sum from a Scheduled Bank in Pakistan or from a foreign bank duly counter–guaranteed by a Scheduled Bank in Pakistan, to the Employer, conditioned as under:

- (1) that the Bid Security shall remain in force up to and including the date 28 days after the deadline for validity of bids as stated in the Instructions to Bidders or as it may be extended by the Employer, notice of which extension(s) to the Surety is hereby waived;
- (2) that the Bid Security of unsuccessful Bidders will be returned by the Employer after expiry of its validity or upon signing of the Contract Agreement; and
- (3) that in the event of failure of the successful Bidder to execute the proposed Contract Agreement for such work and furnish the required Performance Security, the entire said sum be paid immediately to the said Employer pursuant to Clause 15.6 of the Instruction to Bidders for the successful Bidder's failure to perform.

NOW THEREFORE, if the successful Bidder shall, within the period specified thereof, on the prescribed form presented to him for signature enter into a formal Contract with the said Employer in accordance with his Bid as accepted and furnish within twenty eight (28) days of his being requested to do so, a Performance Security with good and sufficient surety, as may be required, upon the form prescribed by the said Employer for the faithful performance and proper fulfilment of the said Contract or in the event of non–withdrawal of the said Bid within the time specified for its validity then this obligation shall be void and of no effect, but otherwise to remain in full force and effect.

PROVIDED THAT the Surety shall forthwith pay the Employer the said sum upon first written demand of the Employer (without cavil or argument) and without requiring the Employer to prove or to show grounds or reasons for such demand, notice of which shall be sent by the Employer by registered post duly addressed to the Surety at its address given above.

PROVIDED ALSO THAT the Employer shall be the sole and final judge for deciding whether the Principal (Bidder) has duly performed his obligations to sign the Contract Agreement and to furnish the requisite Performance Security within the time stated above, or has defaulted in fulfilling said requirements and the Surety shall pay without objection the said sum upon demand from the Employer forthwith and without any reference to the Principal (Bidder) or any other person.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the above bounden Surety has executed the instrument under its seal on the date indicated above, the name and seal of the Surety being hereto affixed and these presents duly signed by its undersigned representative pursuant to authority of its governing body.

SURETY (Bank)

WITNESS:	Signature
1	Name
	Title
Corporate Secretary (Seal)	Corporate Guarantor (Seal)
2	<u> </u>
Name Title & Address	<del>-</del>

# FORM OF PERFORMANCE SECURITY (Bank Guarantee)

	Guarantee No.
	Executed on
	Expiry date
[Letter by the Guarantor to the Employer]	
Name of Guarantor (Bank) with address:	
Name of Principal (Contractor) with address:	
Penal Sum of Security (express in words and figures)	
Letter of Acceptance No.	Dated
KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that in Documents and above said Letter of Acceptance (her request of the said Principal we, the Guarantor above The Managing Director, Pakhtunkhwa Highways Au called the Employer) in the penal sum of the amount sum well and truly to be made to the said Employer, administrators and successors, jointly and severally, fit THE CONDITION OF THIS OBLIGATION IS SUCH,	reinafter called the Documents) and at the e named, are held and firmly bound unto other thority, Government of KPK (hereinafter not stated above for the payment of which we bind ourselves, our heirs, executors, rmly by these presents.
the Employer's above said Letter of Acceptance for_	
(Name of Contract) for the	(Name of Project).

NOW THEREFORE, if the Principal (Contractor) shall well and truly perform and fulfill all the undertakings, covenants, terms and conditions of the said Documents during the original terms of the said Documents and any extensions thereof that may be granted by the Employer, with or without notice to the Guarantor, which notice is, hereby, waived and shall also well and truly perform and fulfill all the undertakings, covenants terms and conditions of the Contract and of any and all modifications of said Documents that may hereafter be made, notice of which modifications to the Guarantor being hereby waived, then, this obligation to be void; otherwise to remain in full force and virtue till all requirements of Clause 49, Defects Liability, of Conditions of Contract are fulfilled.

any liability attaching to us under this Guara	ited to the sum stated above and it is a condition of antee that the claim for payment in writing shall be his Guarantee, failing which we shall be discharged
Employer without delay upon the Employer and without requiring the Employer to prove any sum or sums up to the amount stated that the Principal has refused or failed to	(the Guarantor), waiving all objections and evocably and independently guarantee to pay to the r's first written demand without cavil or arguments e or to show grounds or reasons for such demand above, against the Employer's written declaration perform the obligations under the Contract which a Employer's designated Bank & Account Number.
the Principal (Contractor) has duly perfo defaulted in fulfilling said obligations and the	all be the sole and final judge for deciding whether rmed his obligations under the Contract or has e Guarantor shall pay without objection any sum or irst written demand from the Employer forthwith and other person.
its seal on the date indicated above, the	den Guarantor has executed this Instrument under name and corporate seal of the Guarantor being ned by its undersigned representative, pursuant to
	Guarantor (Bank)
Witness:	
1	Signature
	Name
Corporate Secretary (Seal)	Title
2	<del>.</del>
Name_Title & Address	Corporate Guarantor (Seal)

#### FORM OF CONTRACT AGREEMENT

day of	THIS	CONT	RACT AGREEMENT (hereinafter called the "Agreement") made on the	
(hereafter called the "Contractor") of the other part.  WHEREAS the Employer is desirous that certain Works, viz should executed by the Contractor and has accepted a Bid by the Contractor for the execution at completion of such Works and the remedying of any defects therein.  NOW this Agreement witnessed as follows:  1. In this Agreement words and expressions shall have the same meanings as a respectively assigned to them in the Conditions of Contract hereinafter referred to.  2. The following documents after incorporating addenda, if any, except those parts relating to Instructions to Bidders shall be deemed to form and be read and construed as part this Agreement, viz:  (a) The Contract Agreement; (b) The Letter of Acceptance; (c) The completed Form of Bid; (d) Special Stipulations (Appendix—A to Bid); (e) Supplementary Conditions of Contract — Part III; (f) The Particular Conditions of Contract — Part II; (g) The General Conditions of Contract — Part I; (h) The priced Bill of Quantities (Appendix—D to Bid); (i) The completed Appendices to Bid (B, C, E to L); (j) The Drawings;	day of	f	2014 between The Managing Director, Pakhtunkhwa Highways Authority,	
WHEREAS the Employer is desirous that certain Works, viz should executed by the Contractor and has accepted a Bid by the Contractor for the execution at completion of such Works and the remedying of any defects therein.  NOW this Agreement witnessed as follows:  1. In this Agreement words and expressions shall have the same meanings as a respectively assigned to them in the Conditions of Contract hereinafter referred to.  2. The following documents after incorporating addenda, if any, except those parts relating to Instructions to Bidders shall be deemed to form and be read and construed as part this Agreement, viz:  (a) The Contract Agreement; (b) The Letter of Acceptance; (c) The completed Form of Bid; (d) Special Stipulations (Appendix—A to Bid); (e) Supplementary Conditions of Contract — Part III; (f) The Particular Conditions of Contract — Part III; (g) The General Conditions of Contract — Part II; (h) The priced Bill of Quantities (Appendix—D to Bid); (i) The completed Appendices to Bid (B, C, E to L); (j) The Drawings;	Gover	nment	of KPK (hereafter called the "Employer") of the one part and	
executed by the Contractor and has accepted a Bid by the Contractor for the execution a completion of such Works and the remedying of any defects therein.  NOW this Agreement witnessed as follows:  1. In this Agreement words and expressions shall have the same meanings as a respectively assigned to them in the Conditions of Contract hereinafter referred to.  2. The following documents after incorporating addenda, if any, except those parts relating to Instructions to Bidders shall be deemed to form and be read and construed as part this Agreement, viz:  (a) The Contract Agreement; (b) The Letter of Acceptance; (c) The completed Form of Bid; (d) Special Stipulations (Appendix–A to Bid); (e) Supplementary Conditions of Contract – Part III; (f) The Particular Conditions of Contract – Part II; (g) The General Conditions of Contract – Part I; (h) The priced Bill of Quantities (Appendix–D to Bid); (i) The completed Appendices to Bid (B, C, E to L); (j) The Drawings;			(hereafter called the "Contractor") of the other part.	
executed by the Contractor and has accepted a Bid by the Contractor for the execution a completion of such Works and the remedying of any defects therein.  NOW this Agreement witnessed as follows:  1. In this Agreement words and expressions shall have the same meanings as a respectively assigned to them in the Conditions of Contract hereinafter referred to.  2. The following documents after incorporating addenda, if any, except those parts relating to Instructions to Bidders shall be deemed to form and be read and construed as part this Agreement, viz:  (a) The Contract Agreement; (b) The Letter of Acceptance; (c) The completed Form of Bid; (d) Special Stipulations (Appendix–A to Bid); (e) Supplementary Conditions of Contract – Part III; (f) The Particular Conditions of Contract – Part II; (g) The General Conditions of Contract – Part I; (h) The priced Bill of Quantities (Appendix–D to Bid); (i) The completed Appendices to Bid (B, C, E to L); (j) The Drawings;	WHER	REAS	the Employer is desirous that certain Works viz	
completion of such Works and the remedying of any defects therein.  NOW this Agreement witnessed as follows:  1. In this Agreement words and expressions shall have the same meanings as a respectively assigned to them in the Conditions of Contract hereinafter referred to.  2. The following documents after incorporating addenda, if any, except those parts relating to Instructions to Bidders shall be deemed to form and be read and construed as part this Agreement, viz:  (a) The Contract Agreement; (b) The Letter of Acceptance; (c) The completed Form of Bid; (d) Special Stipulations (Appendix—A to Bid); (e) Supplementary Conditions of Contract — Part III; (f) The Particular Conditions of Contract — Part II; (g) The General Conditions of Contract — Part I; (h) The priced Bill of Quantities (Appendix—D to Bid); (i) The completed Appendices to Bid (B, C, E to L); (j) The Drawings;				
<ol> <li>In this Agreement words and expressions shall have the same meanings as a respectively assigned to them in the Conditions of Contract hereinafter referred to.</li> <li>The following documents after incorporating addenda, if any, except those parts relating to Instructions to Bidders shall be deemed to form and be read and construed as part this Agreement, viz:         <ol> <li>The Contract Agreement;</li> <li>The Letter of Acceptance;</li> <li>The completed Form of Bid;</li> <li>Special Stipulations (Appendix–A to Bid);</li> <li>Supplementary Conditions of Contract – Part III;</li> <li>The Particular Conditions of Contract – Part II;</li> <li>The General Conditions of Contract – Part I;</li> <li>The priced Bill of Quantities (Appendix–D to Bid);</li> <li>The completed Appendices to Bid (B, C, E to L);</li> <li>The Drawings;</li> </ol> </li> </ol>		•	·	
<ol> <li>In this Agreement words and expressions shall have the same meanings as a respectively assigned to them in the Conditions of Contract hereinafter referred to.</li> <li>The following documents after incorporating addenda, if any, except those parts relating to Instructions to Bidders shall be deemed to form and be read and construed as part this Agreement, viz:         <ol> <li>The Contract Agreement;</li> <li>The Letter of Acceptance;</li> <li>The completed Form of Bid;</li> <li>Special Stipulations (Appendix–A to Bid);</li> <li>Supplementary Conditions of Contract – Part III;</li> <li>The Particular Conditions of Contract – Part II;</li> <li>The General Conditions of Contract – Part I;</li> <li>The priced Bill of Quantities (Appendix–D to Bid);</li> <li>The completed Appendices to Bid (B, C, E to L);</li> <li>The Drawings;</li> </ol> </li> </ol>				
respectively assigned to them in the Conditions of Contract hereinafter referred to.  2. The following documents after incorporating addenda, if any, except those parts relating to Instructions to Bidders shall be deemed to form and be read and construed as part this Agreement, viz:  (a) The Contract Agreement; (b) The Letter of Acceptance; (c) The completed Form of Bid; (d) Special Stipulations (Appendix–A to Bid); (e) Supplementary Conditions of Contract – Part III; (f) The Particular Conditions of Contract – Part II; (g) The General Conditions of Contract – Part I; (h) The priced Bill of Quantities (Appendix–D to Bid); (i) The completed Appendices to Bid (B, C, E to L); (j) The Drawings;	NOW	this Ag	greement witnessed as follows:	
respectively assigned to them in the Conditions of Contract hereinafter referred to.  2. The following documents after incorporating addenda, if any, except those parts relating to Instructions to Bidders shall be deemed to form and be read and construed as part this Agreement, viz:  (a) The Contract Agreement; (b) The Letter of Acceptance; (c) The completed Form of Bid; (d) Special Stipulations (Appendix–A to Bid); (e) Supplementary Conditions of Contract – Part III; (f) The Particular Conditions of Contract – Part II; (g) The General Conditions of Contract – Part I; (h) The priced Bill of Quantities (Appendix–D to Bid); (i) The completed Appendices to Bid (B, C, E to L); (j) The Drawings;	1.	In th	is Agreement words and expressions shall have the same meanings as are	
to Instructions to Bidders shall be deemed to form and be read and construed as part this Agreement, viz:  (a) The Contract Agreement; (b) The Letter of Acceptance; (c) The completed Form of Bid; (d) Special Stipulations (Appendix–A to Bid); (e) Supplementary Conditions of Contract – Part III; (f) The Particular Conditions of Contract – Part II; (g) The General Conditions of Contract – Part I; (h) The priced Bill of Quantities (Appendix–D to Bid); (i) The completed Appendices to Bid (B, C, E to L); (j) The Drawings;			·	
this Agreement, viz:  (a) The Contract Agreement; (b) The Letter of Acceptance; (c) The completed Form of Bid; (d) Special Stipulations (Appendix–A to Bid); (e) Supplementary Conditions of Contract – Part III; (f) The Particular Conditions of Contract – Part II; (g) The General Conditions of Contract – Part I; (h) The priced Bill of Quantities (Appendix–D to Bid); (i) The completed Appendices to Bid (B, C, E to L); (j) The Drawings;	2.	The f	ollowing documents after incorporating addenda, if any, except those parts relating	
<ul> <li>(a) The Contract Agreement;</li> <li>(b) The Letter of Acceptance;</li> <li>(c) The completed Form of Bid;</li> <li>(d) Special Stipulations (Appendix–A to Bid);</li> <li>(e) Supplementary Conditions of Contract – Part III;</li> <li>(f) The Particular Conditions of Contract – Part II;</li> <li>(g) The General Conditions of Contract – Part I;</li> <li>(h) The priced Bill of Quantities (Appendix–D to Bid);</li> <li>(i) The completed Appendices to Bid (B, C, E to L);</li> <li>(j) The Drawings;</li> </ul>		to Instructions to Bidders shall be deemed to form and be read and construed as part of		
<ul> <li>(b) The Letter of Acceptance;</li> <li>(c) The completed Form of Bid;</li> <li>(d) Special Stipulations (Appendix–A to Bid);</li> <li>(e) Supplementary Conditions of Contract – Part III;</li> <li>(f) The Particular Conditions of Contract – Part II;</li> <li>(g) The General Conditions of Contract – Part I;</li> <li>(h) The priced Bill of Quantities (Appendix–D to Bid);</li> <li>(i) The completed Appendices to Bid (B, C, E to L);</li> <li>(j) The Drawings;</li> </ul>		this A	greement, viz:	
<ul> <li>(c) The completed Form of Bid;</li> <li>(d) Special Stipulations (Appendix–A to Bid);</li> <li>(e) Supplementary Conditions of Contract – Part III;</li> <li>(f) The Particular Conditions of Contract – Part II;</li> <li>(g) The General Conditions of Contract – Part I;</li> <li>(h) The priced Bill of Quantities (Appendix–D to Bid);</li> <li>(i) The completed Appendices to Bid (B, C, E to L);</li> <li>(j) The Drawings;</li> </ul>		(a)	The Contract Agreement;	
<ul> <li>(d) Special Stipulations (Appendix–A to Bid);</li> <li>(e) Supplementary Conditions of Contract – Part III;</li> <li>(f) The Particular Conditions of Contract – Part II;</li> <li>(g) The General Conditions of Contract – Part I;</li> <li>(h) The priced Bill of Quantities (Appendix–D to Bid);</li> <li>(i) The completed Appendices to Bid (B, C, E to L);</li> <li>(j) The Drawings;</li> </ul>		(b)	The Letter of Acceptance;	
<ul> <li>(e) Supplementary Conditions of Contract – Part III;</li> <li>(f) The Particular Conditions of Contract – Part II;</li> <li>(g) The General Conditions of Contract – Part I;</li> <li>(h) The priced Bill of Quantities (Appendix–D to Bid);</li> <li>(i) The completed Appendices to Bid (B, C, E to L);</li> <li>(j) The Drawings;</li> </ul>		(c)	The completed Form of Bid;	
<ul> <li>(f) The Particular Conditions of Contract – Part II;</li> <li>(g) The General Conditions of Contract – Part I;</li> <li>(h) The priced Bill of Quantities (Appendix–D to Bid);</li> <li>(i) The completed Appendices to Bid (B, C, E to L);</li> <li>(j) The Drawings;</li> </ul>		(d)	Special Stipulations (Appendix–A to Bid);	
<ul> <li>(g) The General Conditions of Contract – Part I;</li> <li>(h) The priced Bill of Quantities (Appendix–D to Bid);</li> <li>(i) The completed Appendices to Bid (B, C, E to L);</li> <li>(j) The Drawings;</li> </ul>		(e)	Supplementary Conditions of Contract – Part III;	
<ul> <li>(h) The priced Bill of Quantities (Appendix–D to Bid);</li> <li>(i) The completed Appendices to Bid (B, C, E to L);</li> <li>(j) The Drawings;</li> </ul>		(f)	The Particular Conditions of Contract – Part II;	
<ul><li>(i) The completed Appendices to Bid (B, C, E to L);</li><li>(j) The Drawings;</li></ul>		(g)	The General Conditions of Contract – Part I;	
(j) The Drawings;		(h)	The priced Bill of Quantities (Appendix–D to Bid);	
•		(i)	The completed Appendices to Bid (B, C, E to L);	
(k) The Specifications;		(j)	The Drawings;	
		(k)	The Specifications;	

3. In consideration of the payments to be made by the Employer to the Contractor as hereinafter mentioned, the Contractor hereby covenants with the Employer to execute and complete the Works and remedy defects therein in conformity and in all respects with the provisions of the Contract.

(l)

Addendum (if other)

4. The Employer hereby covenants to pay the Contractor, in consideration of the execution and completion of the Works as per provisions of the Contract, the Contract Price or such other sum as may become payable under the provisions of the Contract at the times and in the manner prescribed by the Contract.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties hereto have day, month and year first before written in accorda	_
Signature of the Contactor	Signature of Employer
(Seal)	(Seal)
Signed, Sealed and Delivered in the presence of:	
Witness:	Witness:
(Name, Title and Address)	(Name, Title and Address)

# **MOBILIZATION ADVANCE GUARANTEE / BOND**

Guarantee N	o Date
	The Managing Director, Pakhtunkhwa Highways Authority, Government of KPł called the 'Employer') has entered into a Contract for
	(Particulars of Contract) with (hereinafter called
the "Contract	tor').
	EAS, the Employer has agreed for mobilization advance to the Contractor, at the request, an amount of Rupees
(Rsthe Contract.	) which amount shall be advanced to the Contractor as per provisions o
	EAS, the Employer has asked the Contractor to furnish Guarantee to secure the advance for the performance of his obligations under the said Contract.
AND WHE	REAS,
	Bank in Pakistan acceptable to the Employer)
•	called the "Guarantor") at the request of the Contractor and in consideration of the reeing to make the above advance to the Contractor, has agreed to furnish theree.
advance for fulfilment of a	REFORE, the Guarantor hereby guarantees that the Contractor shall use the the purpose of above mentioned Contract and if he fails and commits default in any of his obligations for which the advance payment is made, the Guarantor shall be the Employer for payment not exceeding the aforementioned amount.
part of the C written dema	ting of any default, of which the Employer shall be the sole and final judge, on the Contractor, shall be given by the Employer to the Guarantor, and on such first and, payment shall be made by the Guarantor of all sums then due under this it is
	tee shall remain in force until the advance is fully adjusted against payments from Payment Certificates of the Contractor or until (Date) whichever is
The Guarant	or's liability under this Guarantee shall not in any case exceed the sum of Rupee:

This Guarantee shall remain valid up to the aforesaid date and shall be null and void after the aforesaid date or earlier if the advance made to the Contractor is fully adjusted against payments from Interim Payment Certificates of the Contractor provided that the Guarantor agrees that the aforesaid period of validity shall be deemed to be extended if on the above mentioned date the advance payment is not fully adjusted.

		G	JAKANTO	7
		1.	Signature	
		2.	Name	
		3.	Title	
WITN	IESS			
1.				
	Corporate Secretary (Seal)			
2.				
	(Name Title & Address)			Corporate Guarantor (Seal)

# PRESCRIBED FORM OF PERFORMANCE SECURITY (FROM INSURANCE COMPANY)

From	:	Performance Bond
		(to be Furnished on
		Stamp Paper)
To:	The	
Sub :	Insurance Guarantor No.	For Rs
Contra	act(s) No.	
Ref.:	Letter of Acceptance / Work Order No	Dated
Dear S	Sir,	
1.	WHEREAS the Department of Pakhtunkhwa Khyber Pakhtunkhwa, Pakistan hereinafter Contract for Construction	called the Employer has awarded the
		hereinafter called the Contractor.
2.	And Whereas the Contractor is bound by the	
	Performance Bond for a Total Amount of Rs	
3.	NOW WHEREAS responsible and representation in the second control of the second control o	. ,
	authorized to sign and incur the obligations hereby declare that this Insurance Company amount of Rs (R	in the name of the Insurance Company,
4.	After the Contractor has signed the aforement insurance Company is engaged to pay to the of the aforementioned full amount upon writing indemnify the employer and as indemnity for damage resulting from the defects or short contracts.	Employer any amount upto and inclusive tten order from you for the Employer to or the employer for or against liability or

may have incurred to any parties involved in the works under the Contract mentioned above, whether these defects or short-comings or actual or estimated or expected. The Insurance Company will deliver the money required by the Employer immediately without delay and without the necessity of a previous notice or of judicial or administrative procedures and without being necessary to prove to the Insurance

Company the defects or short-comings or debts of the Contractor. 5. This guarantee is valid upto three months after the issue of the maintenance Certificate. 6. At any time during the time in which this guarantee is still valid, if the employer agrees to grant a time extension to the Contractor, if the Contractor will fall to complete the works within the time of completion as stated in the Contract, or will fall to discharge himself of the liabilities or damages as stated under 4 above, it is understood that the same conditions for the required time. 7. Until the Employer has issued an instruction to the Insurance Company to the effect that this guarantee can be released, the Insurance Company undertakes, notwithstanding the validity period as stated under 5 above, to extend the validity under the same conditions for successive periods of \_\_\_\_\_ ) calendar months at a time and forward the appropriate extension sheets to the Employer. 8. As a declaration of good faith for the Guarantee, the legal representative of the Insurance Company hereby sign and seal this Bond on the date of Witness Guarantor

Guarantor

Witness

**CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT** 

# **CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT**

The Conditions of Contract comprise Three (3) Parts:

- (a) Part I General Conditions of Contract
- (b) Part II Particular Conditions of Contract
- (c) Part III Supplementary Conditions of Contract

# PART I - GENERAL CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT



# **CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT**

# FOR WORKS OF CIVIL

# **ENGINEERING CONSTRUCTION**

PART I GENERAL CONDITIONS
WITH FORMS OF TENDER AND AGREEMENT

FOURTH EDITION 1987 Reprinted 1988 with editorial amendments Reprinted in 1992 with further amendments

# **CONTENTS**

# PART I: GENERAL CONDITIONS

	Definitions and Interpretation	58
1.1	Definitions	58
1.2	Headings and Marginal Notes	60
1.3	Interpretation	60
1.4	Singular and Plural	61
1.5	Notices, Consents, Approvals, Certificates and Determinations	61
	Engineer and Engineer's Representative	61
2.1	Engineer's Duties and Authority	61
2.2	Engineer's Representative	61
2.3	Engineer's Authority to Delegate	61
2.4	Appointment of Assistants	62
2.5	Instructions in Writing	62
2.6	Engineer to Act Impartially	62
	Assignment and Subcontracting	63
3.1	Assignment of Contract	63
4.1	Subcontracting	63
4.2	Assignment of Subcontractors' Obligations	63
	Contract Documents	64
5.1	Language/s and Law	64
5.2	Priority of Contract Documents	64
6.1	Custody and Supply of Drawings and Documents	64
6.2	One Copy of Drawings to be Kept on Site	65
6.3	Disruption of Progress	65
6.4	Delays and Cost of Delay of Drawings	65
6.5	Failure by Contractor to Submit Drawings	65
7.1	Supplementary Drawings and Instructions	66
7.2	Permanent Works Designed by Contractor	66
7.3	Responsibility Unaffected by Approval	66
	General Obligations	66
8.1	Contractor's General Responsibilities	66
8.2	Site Operations and Methods of Construction	66
9.1	Contract Agreement	67
10.1	Performance Security	67
10.2	Period of Validity of Performance Security	67
10.3	Claims under Performance Security	67
11.1	Inspection of Site	67
12.1	Sufficiency of Tender	68
12.2	Not Foreseeable Physical Obstructions or Conditions	68
13.1	Work to be in Accordance with Contract	69

	Materials, Plant and Workmanship	82
35.1	Returns of Labour and Contractor's Equipment	81
34.1	Engagement of Staff and Labour	81
	Labour	81
33.1	Clearance of Site on Completion	81
32.1	Contractor to Keep Site Clear	81
31.2	Facilities for Other Contractors	80
31.1	Opportunities for Other Contractors	80
30.4	Waterborne Traffic	80
30.3	Transport of Materials or Plant	79
30.2	Transport of Contractor's Equipment or Temporary Works	79
30.1	Avoidance of Damage to Roads	79
29.1	Interference With Traffic and Adjoining Properties	79
28.2	Royalties	78
28.1	Patent Rights	78
27.1	Fossils	78
26.1	Compliance with Statutes, Regulations	77
25.4	Compliance with Policy Conditions	77
25.3	Remedy on Contractor's Failure to Insure	77
25.2	Adequacy of Insurances	77
25.1	Evidence and Terms of Insurances	77
24.2	Insurance Against Accident to Workmen	76
24.1	Accident or Injury to Workmen	76
23.3	Cross Liabilities	76
23.2	Minimum Amount of Insurance	76
23.1	Third Party Insurance (including Employer's Property)	76
22.3	Indemnity by Employer	76
22.2	Exceptions	75
22.1	Damage to Persons and Property	75
21.4	Exclusions	75
21.3	Responsibility for Amounts not Recovered	74
21.2	Scope of Cover	74
21.1	Insurance of Works and Contractor's Equipment	74
20.4	Employer's Risks	73
20.3	Loss or Damage Due to Employer's Risks	73
20.2	Responsibility to Rectify Loss or Damage	72
20.1	Care of Works	72
19.2	Employer's Responsibilities	72
19.1	Safety, Security and Protection of the Environment	71
18.1	Boreholes and Exploratory Excavation	71
17.1	Setting-out	71
16.2	Engineer at Liberty to Object	70
16.1	Contractor's Employees	70
15.1	Contractor's Superintendence	70
14.4	Contractor not Relieved of Duties or Responsibilities	70
14.3	Cash Flow Estimate to be Submitted	69
14.2	Revised Programme	69
14.1	Programme to be Submitted	69

36.1	Quality of Materials, Plant and Workmanship	82
36.2	Cost of Samples	82
36.3	Cost of Tests	82
36.4	Cost of Tests not Provided for	82
36.5	Engineer's Determination where Tests not Provided for	83
37.1	Inspection of Operations	83
37.2	Inspection and Testing	83
37.3	Dates for Inspection and Testing	83
37.4	Rejection	84
37.5	Independent Inspection	84
38.1	Examination of Work before Covering up	84
38.2	Uncovering and Making Openings	84
39.1	Removal of Improper Work, Materials or Plant	85
39.2	Default of Contractor in Compliance	85
	Suspension	85
40.1	Suspension of Work	85
40.2	Engineer's Determination following Suspension	86
40.3	Suspension lasting more than 84 Days	86
	Commencement and Delays	86
41.1	Commencement of Works	86
42.1	Possession of Site and Access Thereto	87
42.2	Failure to Give Possession	87
42.3	Rights of Way and Facilities	87
43.1	Time for Completion	88
44.1	Extension of Time for Completion	88
44.2	Contractor to Provide Notification and Detailed Particulars	88
44.3	Interim Determination of Extension	88
45.1	Restriction on Working Hours	89
46.1	Rate of Progress	89
47.1	Liquidated Damages for Delay	89
47.2	Reduction of Liquidated Damages	90
48.1	Taking-Over Certificate	90
48.2	Taking-Over of Sections or Parts	91
48.3	Substantial Completion of Parts	91
48.4	Surfaces Requiring Reinstatement  Defects Liability	91 <b>91</b>
40 1	Defeate Liebility Deriod	0.1
49.1	Defects Liability Period  Completion of Outstanding World and Perceduing Defects	91
49.2	Completion of Outstanding Work and Remedying Defects	92
49.3	Cost of Remedying Defects	92
49.4	Contractor's Failure to Carry Out Instructions	92
50.1	Contractor to Search	93
	Alterations, Additions and Omissions	93
51.1	Variations	93

51.2	Instructions for Variations	93
52.1	Valuation of Variations	94
52.2	Power of Engineer to Fix Rates	94
52.3	Variations Exceeding 15 percent	95
52.4	Daywork	95
	Procedure for Claims	96
53.1	Notice of Claims	96
53.2	Contemporary Records	96
53.3	Substantiation of Claims	96
53.4	Failure to Comply	97
53.5	Payment of Claims	97
	Contractor's Equipment, Temporary Works and Materials	97
54.1	Contractor's Equipment, Temporary Works and Materials; Exclusive Use for	
	the Works.	97
54.2	Employer not Liable for Damage	97
54.3	Customs Clearance	97
54.4	Re-export of Contractor's Equipment	98
54.5	Conditions of Hire of Contractor's Equipment	98
54.6	Costs for the Purpose of Clause 63	98
54.7	Incorporation of Clause in Subcontracts	98
54.8	Approval of Materials not Implied	98
	Measurement	99
55.1	Quantities	99
56.1	Works to be Measured	99
57.1	Method of Measurement	99
57.2	Breakdown of Lump Sum Items	99
	Provisional Sums	100
58.1	Definition of "Provisional Sum"	100
58.2	Use of Provisional Sums	100
58.3	Production of Vouchers	100
	Nominated Subcontractors	100
59.1	Definition of "Nominated Subcontractors"	100
59.2	Nominated Subcontractors; Objection to Nomination	101
59.3	Design Requirements to be Expressly Stated	101
59.4 50.5	Payments to Nominated Subcontractors  Contification of Payments to Nominated Subcontractors	101
59.5	Certification of Payments to Nominated Subcontractors	102
	Certificates and Payment	102

60.1	Monthly Statements	102
60.2	Monthly Payments	103
60.3	Payment of Retention Money	103
60.4	Correction of Certificates	104
60.5	Statement at Completion	104
60.6	Final Statement	105
60.7	Discharge Final Payment Contificate	105
60.8	Final Payment Certificate  Cossetion of Employer's Lightlity	105
60.9 60.10	Cessation of Employer's Liability Time for Payment	106 106
61.1	Approval only by Defects Liability Certificate	106
62.1	Defects Liability Certificate	106
62.2	Unfulfilled Obligations	107
	Remedies	107
63.1	Default of Contractor	107
63.2	Valuation at Date of Termination	108
63.3	Payment after Termination	108
63.4	Assignment of Benefit of Agreement	108
64.1	Urgent Remedial Work	109
	Special Risks	109
65.1	No Liability for Special Risks	109
65.2	Special Risks	109
65.3	Damage to Works by Special Risks	109
65.4	Projectile, Missile	110
65.5	Increased Costs arising from Special Risks	110
65.6	Outbreak of War	110
65.7	Removal of Contractor's Equipment on Termination	111
65.8	Payment if Contract Terminated	111
	Release from Performance	112
66.1	Payment in Event of Release from Performance	112
	Settlement of Disputes	112
67.1	Engineer's Decision	112
67.2	Amicable Settlement	113
67.3	Arbitration	113
67.4	Failure to Comply with Engineer's Decision	114
	Notices	114
68.1	Notice to Contractor	114
68.2	Notice to Employer and Engineer	114
68.3	Change of Address	114
	Default of Employer	114
69.1	Default of Employer	114

69.2	Removal of Contractor's Equipment	115
69.3	Payment on Termination	115
69.4	Contractor's Entitlement to Suspend Work	115
69.5	Resumption of Work	116
	Changes in Cost and Legislation	116
70.1	Increase or Decrease of Cost	116
70.2	Subsequent Legislation	116
	<b>Currency and Rates of Exchange</b>	116
71.1	Currency Restrictions	116
72.1	Rates of Exchange	117
72.2	Currency Proportions	117
72.3	Currencies of Payment for Provisional Sums	117
	REFERENCE TO PART II	
	INDEX	115
	TENDER (NOT USED)	117
	AGREEMENT (NOT USED)	

#### **PART I - GENERAL CONDITIONS**

#### **Definitions and Interpretation**

#### 1.1 **Definitions**

In the Contract (as hereinafter defined) the following words and expressions shall have the meanings hereby assigned to them, except where the context otherwise requires:

- (a) (i) "Employer" means the person named as such in Part II of these Conditions and the legal successors in title to such person, but not (except with the consent of the Contractor) any assignee of such person.
  - (ii) "Contractor" means the person whose tender has been accepted by the Employer and the legal successors in title to such person, but not (except with the consent of the Employer) any assignee of such person.
  - (iii) "Subcontractor" means any person named in the Contract as a Subcontractor for a part of the Works or any person to whom a part of the Works has been subcontracted with the consent of the Engineer and the legal successors in title to such person, but not any assignee of any such person.
  - (iv) "Engineer" means the person appointed by the Employer to act as Engineer for the purposes of the Contract and named as such in Part II of these Conditions.
  - (v) "Engineer's Representative" means a person appointed from time to time by the Engineer under Sub-Clause 2.2.
- (b) (i) "Contract" means these Conditions (Parts I and II), the Specification, the Drawings, the Bill of Quantities, the Tender, the Letter of Acceptance, the Contract Agreement (if completed) and such further documents as may be expressly incorporated in the Letter of Acceptance or Contract Agreement (if completed).
  - (ii) "Specification" means the specification of the Works included in the Contract and any modification thereof or addition thereto made under Clause 51 or submitted by the Contractor and approved by the Engineer.
  - (iii) "Drawings" means all drawings, calculations and technical information of a like nature provided by the Engineer to the Contractor under the Contract and all drawings, calculations, samples, patterns, models, operation and maintenance manuals and other technical information of a like nature submitted by the Contractor and approved by the Engineer.
  - (iv) "Bill of Quantities" means the priced and completed bill of quantities forming part of the Tender.
  - (v) "Tender" means the Contractor's priced offer to the Employer for the execution and completion of the Works and the remedying of any defects therein in accordance with the provisions of the Contract, as accepted by

- the Letter of Acceptance.
- (vi) "Letter of Acceptance" means the formal acceptance by the Employer of the Tender.
- (vii) "Contract Agreement" means the contract agreement (if any) referred to in Sub-Clause 9.1.
- (viii) "Appendix to Tender" means the appendix comprised in the form of Tender annexed to these Conditions.
- (c) (i) "Commencement Date" means the date upon which the Contractor receives the notice to commence issued by the Engineer pursuant to Clause 41.
  - (ii) "Time for Completion" means the time for completing the execution of and passing the Tests on Completion of the Works or any Section or part thereof as stated in the Contract (or as extended under Clause 44) calculated from the Commencement Date.
- (d) (i) "Tests on Completion" means the tests specified in the Contract or otherwise agreed by the Engineer and the Contractor which are to be made by the Contractor before the Works of any Section or part thereof are taken over by the Employer.
  - (ii) "Taking-Over Certificate" means a certificate issued pursuant to Clause 48.
- (e) (i) "Contract Price" means the sum stated in the Letter of Acceptance as payable to the Contractor for the execution and completion of the Works and the remedying of any defects therein in accordance with the provisions of the Contract.
  - (ii) "Retention Money" means the aggregate of all monies retained by the Employer pursuant to Sub-Clause 60.2(a).
  - (iii) "Interim Payment Certificate" means any certificate of payment issued by the Engineer other than the Final Payment Certificate.
  - (iv) "Final Payment Certificate" means the certificate of payment issued by the Engineer pursuant to Sub-Clause 60.8.
- (f) (i) "Works" means the Permanent Works and the Temporary Works or either of them as appropriate.
  - (ii) "Permanent Works" means the permanent works to be executed (including Plant) in accordance with the Contract
  - (iii) "Temporary Works" means all temporary works of every kind (other than Contractor's Equipment) required in or about the execution and completion of the Works and the remedying of any defects therein.

- (iv) "Plant" means machinery, apparatus and the like intended to form or forming part of the Permanent Works.
- (v) "Contractor's Equipment" means all appliances and things of whatsoever nature (other than Temporary Works) required for the execution and completion of the Works and the remedying of any defects therein, but does not include Plant, materials or other things intended to form or forming part of the Permanent Works.
- (vi) "Section" means a part of the Works specifically identified in the Contract as a Section.
- (vii) "Site" means the places provided by the Employer where the Works are to be executed and any other places as may be specifically designated in the Contract as forming part of the Site.
- (g) (i) "cost" means all expenditure properly incurred or to be incurred, whether, on or off the Site, including overhead and other charges properly allocable thereto but does not include any allowance for profit.
  - (ii) "day" means calendar day.
  - (iii) "foreign currency" means a currency of a country other than that in which the Works are to be located.
  - (iv) "writing" means any hand-written, type-written, or printed communication, including telex, cable and facsimile transmission.

#### 1.2 Headings and Marginal Notes

The headings and marginal notes in these Conditions shall not be deemed part thereof or be taken into consideration in the interpretation or construction thereof or of the Contract.

#### 1.3 **Interpretation**

Words importing persons or parties shall include firms and corporations and any organization having legal capacity.

#### 1.4 Singular and Plural

Words importing the singular only also include the plural and vice versa where the context requires.

#### 1.5 Notices, Consents, Approvals, Certificates and Determinations

Wherever in the Contract provision is made for the giving or issue of any notice, consent, approval, certificate or determination by any person, unless otherwise specified such notice, consent, approval, certificate or determination shall be in writing and the words "notify", "certify or "determine" shall be construed accordingly. Any such consent, approval, certificate or determination shall not unreasonably be withheld or delayed.

#### **Engineer and Engineer's Representative**

#### 2.1 Engineer's Duties and Authority

- (a) The Engineer shall carry out the duties specified in the Contract.
- (b) The Engineer may exercise the authority specified in or necessarily to be implied from the Contract, provided, however, that if the Engineer is required, under the terms of his appointment by the Employer, to obtain the specific approval of the Employer before exercising any such authority, particulars of such requirements shall be set out in Part II of these Conditions. Provided further that any requisite approval shall be deemed to have been given by the Employer for any such authority exercised by the Engineer.
- (c) Except as expressly stated in the Contract, the Engineer shall have no authority to relieve the Contractor of any of his obligations under the Contract.

#### 2.2 **Engineer's Representative**

The Engineer's Representative shall be appointed by and be responsible to the Engineer and shall carry out such duties and exercise such authority as may be delegated to him by the Engineer under Sub-Clause 2.3.

#### 2.3 Engineer's Authority to Delegate

The Engineer may from time to time delegate to the Engineer's Representative any of the duties and authorities vested in the Engineer and he may at any time revoke such delegation. Any such delegation or revocation shall be in writing and shall not take effect until a copy thereof has been delivered to the Employer and the Contractor.

Any communication given by the Engineer's Representative to the Contractor in accordance with such delegation shall have the same effect as though it had been given by the Engineer. Provided that:

- (a) any failure of the Engineer's Representative to disapprove any work, materials or Plant shall not prejudice the authority of the Engineer to disapprove such work, materials or Plant and to give instructions for the rectification thereof; and
- (b) if the Contractor questions any communication of the Engineer's Representative he may refer the matter to the Engineer who shall confirm, reverse or vary the contents of such communication.

#### 2.4 **Appointment of Assistants**

The Engineer or the Engineer's Representative may appoint any number of persons to assist the Engineer's Representative in the carrying out of his duties under Sub-Clause 2.2. He shall notify to the Contractor the names, duties and scope of authority of such persons. Such assistants shall have no authority to issue any instructions to the Contractor save in so far as such instructions may be necessary to enable them to carry out their duties and to secure their acceptance of materials, Plant or workmanship as being in accordance with the Contract, and any instructions given by any of them for those purposes shall be deemed to have been given by the Engineer's Representative.

#### 2.5 **Instructions in Writing**

Instructions given by the Engineer shall be in writing, provided that if for any reason the Engineer considers it necessary to give any such instruction orally, the Contractor shall comply with such instruction. Confirmation in writing of such oral instruction given by the Engineer, whether before or after the carrying out of the instruction, shall be deemed to be an instruction within the meaning of this Sub-Clause. Provided further that if the Contractor, within 7 days, confirms in writing to the Engineer any oral instruction of the Engineer and such confirmation is not contradicted in writing within 7 days by the Engineer, it shall be deemed to be an instructions of the Engineer.

The provisions of this Sub-Clause shall equally apply to instructions given by the Engineer's Representative and any assistants of the Engineer or the Engineer's Representative appointed pursuant to Sub-Clause 2.4.

#### 2.6 Engineer to Act Impartially

Wherever, under the Contract, the Engineer is required to exercise his discretion by:

- (a) giving his decision, opinion or consent,
- (b) expressing his satisfaction or approval,
- (c) determining value, or
- (d) otherwise taking action which may affect the rights and obligations of the Employer or the Contractor

he shall exercise such discretion impartially within the terms of the Contract and having regard to all the circumstances. Any such decision, opinion, consent expression of satisfaction, or approval, determination of value or action may be opened up, reviewed or revised as provided in Clause 67.

### Assignment and Subcontracting

#### 3.1 **Assignment of Contract**

The Contractor shall not, without the prior consent of the Employer (which consent, notwithstanding the provisions of Sub-Clause 1.5, shall be at the sole discretion of the Employer), assign the Contract or any part thereof, or any benefit or interest therein or thereunder, otherwise than by:

- (a) a charge in favour of the Contractor's bankers of any monies due or to become due under the Contract, or
- (b) assignment to the Contractor's insurers (in cases where the insurers have discharged the Contractor's loss or liability) of the Contractor's right to obtain relief against any other party liable.

#### 4.1 **Subcontracting**

The Contractor shall not subcontract the whole of the Works. Except where otherwise provided by the Contract, the Contractor shall not subcontract any part of the Works without the prior consent of the Engineer. Any such consent shall not relieve the Contractor from any liability or obligation under the Contract and he shall be responsible for the acts, defaults and neglects of any Subcontractor, his agents, servants or workmen as fully as if they were the acts, defaults or neglects of the

Contractor, his agents servants or workmen.

Provided that the Contractor shall not be required to obtain such consent for:

- (a) the provision of labour,
- (b) the purchase of materials which are in accordance with the standards specified in the Contract,
- (c) the subcontracting of any part of the Works for which the Subcontractor is named in the Contract.

#### 4.2 Assignment of Subcontractors' Obligations

In the event of a Subcontractor having undertaken towards the Contractor in respect of the work executed, or the goods, materials, Plant or services supplied by such Subcontractor, any continuing obligation extending for a period exceeding that of the Defects Liability Period under the Contract, the Contractor shall at any time, after the expiration of such Period, assign to the Employer, at the Employer's request and cost, the benefit of such obligation for the unexpired duration thereof.

#### **Contract Documents**

#### 5.1 Language/s and Law

There is stated in Part II of these Conditions:

- (a) the language or languages in which the Contract documents shall be drawn up, and
- (b) the country or state the law of which shall apply to the Contract and according to which the Contract shall be construed.

If the said documents are written in more than one language, the language according to which the Contract shall be construed and interpreted is also stated in Part II of these Conditions, being therein designated the "Ruling Language".

#### 5.2 **Priority of Contract Documents**

The several documents forming the Contract are to be taken as mutually explanatory of one another, but in case of ambiguities or discrepancies the same shall be explained and adjusted by the Engineer who shall thereupon issue to the Contractor instructions thereon and in such event, unless otherwise provided in the Contract, the priority of the documents forming the Contract shall be as follows:

- (1) The Contract Agreement (if completed);
- (2) The Letter of Acceptance;
- (3) The Tender;
- (4) Part II of these Conditions:
- (5) Part I of these Conditions; and
- (6) Any other document forming part of the Contract.

#### 6.1 Custody and Supply of Drawings and Documents

The Drawings shall remain in the sole custody of the Engineer, but two copies thereof shall be provided to the Contractor free of charge. The Contractor shall make at his own cost any further copies required by him. Unless it is strictly necessary for the purposes of the Contract, the Drawings, Specification and other documents provided by the Employer or the Engineer shall not, without the consent of the Engineer, be used or communicated to a third party by the Contractor. Upon issue of the Defects Liability Certificate, the Contractor shall return to the Engineer all Drawings, Specification and other documents provided under the Contract.

The Contractor shall supply to the Engineer four copies of all Drawings, specification and other documents submitted by the Contractor and approved by the Engineer in accordance with Clause 7, together with a reproducible copy of any material which cannot be reproduced to an equal standard by photocopying. In addition the Contractor shall supply such further copies of such Drawings, Specification and other documents as the Engineer may request in writing for the use of the Employer, who shall pay the cost thereof.

#### 6.2 One Copy of Drawings to be Kept on Site

One copy of the Drawings, provided to or supplied by the Contractor as aforesaid, shall be kept by the Contractor on the Site and the same shall at all reasonable times be available for inspection and use by the Engineer and by any other person authorised by the Engineer in writing.

#### 6.3 **Disruption of Progress**

The Contractor shall give notice to the Engineer, with a copy to the Employer, whenever planning or execution of the Works is likely to be delayed or disrupted unless any further drawing or instruction is issued by the Engineer within a reasonable time. The notice shall include details of the drawing or instruction required and of why and by when it is required and of any delay or disruption likely to be suffered if it is late.

#### 6.4 Delay and Cost of Delay of Drawings

If, by reason of any failure or inability of the Engineer to issue, within a time reasonable in all the circumstances, any drawing or instruction for which notice has been given by the Contractor in accordance with Sub-Clause 6.3, the Contractor suffers delay and/or incurs costs then the Engineer shall, after due consultation with the Employer and the Contractor, determine:

- (a) any extension of time to which the Contractor is entitled under Clause 44, and
- (b) the amount of such costs, which shall be added to the Contract Price, and shall notify the Contractor accordingly, with a copy to the Employer.

#### 6.5 Failure by Contractor to Submit Drawings

If the failure or inability of the Engineer to issue any drawings or instructions is caused

in whole or in part by the failure of the Contractor to submit Drawings, Specification or other documents which he is required to submit under the Contract, the Engineer shall take such failure by the Contractor into account when making his determination pursuant to Sub-Clause 6.4.

#### 7.1 **Supplementary Drawings and Instructions**

The Engineer shall have authority to issue to the Contractor, from time to time, such supplementary Drawings and instructions as shall be necessary for the purpose of the proper and adequate execution and completion of the Works and the remedying of any defects therein. The Contractor shall carry out and be bound by the same.

#### 7.2 **Permanent Works Designed by Contractor**

Where the Contract expressly provides that part of the Permanent Works shall be designed by the Contractor, he shall submit to the Engineer, for approval:

- (a) such drawings, specifications, calculations and other information as shall be necessary to satisfy the Engineer as to the suitability and adequacy of that design, and
- (b) operation and maintenance manuals together with drawings of the Permanent Works as completed, in sufficient detail to enable the Employer to operate, maintain, dismantle, reassemble and adjust the Permanent Works incorporating that design. The Works shall not be considered to be completed for the purposes of taking over in accordance with Clause 48 until such operation and maintenance manuals together with drawings on completion have been submitted to and approved by the Engineer.

#### 7.3 Responsibility Unaffected by Approval

Approval by the Engineer, in accordance with Sub-Clause 7.2, shall not relieve the Contractor of any of his responsibilities under the Contract.

### **General Obligations**

#### 8.1 Contractor's General Responsibilities

The Contractor shall, with due care and diligence, design (to the extent provided for by the Contract), execute and complete the Works and remedy any defects therein in accordance with the provisions of the Contract. The Contractor shall provide all superintendance, labour, material, Plant, Contractor's Equipment and all other things, whether of a temporary or permanent nature, required in and for such design, execution, completion and remedying of any defects, so far as the necessity for providing the same is specified in or is reasonably to be inferred from the Contract.

#### 8.2 Site Operations and Methods of Construction

The Contractor shall take full responsibility for the adequacy, stability and safety of all Site operations and methods of construction. Provided that the Contractor shall not be responsible (except as stated hereunder or as may be otherwise agreed) for the design or specification of Permanent Works, or for the design or specification of any

Temporary Works not prepared by the Contractor. Where the Contract expressly provides that part of the Permanent Works shall be designed by the Contractor, he shall be fully responsible for that part of such Works, notwithstanding any approval by the Engineer.

#### 9.1 **Contract Agreement**

The Contractor shall, if called upon so to do, enter into and execute the Contract Agreement, to be prepared and completed at the cost of the Employer, in the form annexed to these Conditions with such modification as may be necessary.

#### 10.1 **Performance Security**

If the Contract requires the Contractor to obtain security for his proper performance of the Contract, he shall obtain and provide to the Employer, such security within 28 days after the receipt of the Letter of Acceptance, in the sum stated in the Appendix to Tender. When providing such security to the Employer, the Contractor shall notify the Engineer of so doing. Such security shall be in the form annexed to these Conditions or in such other form as may be agreed between the Employer and the Contractor. The institution providing such security shall be subject to the approval of the Employer. The cost of complying with the requirements of this Clause shall be borne by the Contractor, unless the Contract otherwise provides.

#### 10.2 **Period of Validity of Performance Security**

The performance security shall be valid until the Contractor has executed and completed the Works and remedied any defects therein in accordance with the Contract. No claim shall be made against such security after the issue of the Defects Liability Certificate in accordance with Sub-Clause 62.1 and such security shall be returned to the Contractor within 14 days of the issue of the said Defects Liability Certificate.

#### 10.3 Claims under Performance Security

Prior to making a claim under the performance security the Employer shall, in every case, notify the Contractor stating the nature of the default in respect of which the claim is to be made.

#### 11.1 **Inspection of Site**

The Employer shall have made available to the Contractor, before the submission by the Contractor of the Tender, such data on hydrological and sub-surface conditions as have been obtained by or on behalf of the Employer from investigations undertaken relevant to the Works but the Contractor shall be responsible for his own interpretation thereof.

The Contractor shall be deemed to have inspected and examined the Site and its surroundings and information available in connection therewith and to have satisfied himself (so far as is practicable, having regard to considerations of cost and time) before submitting his Tender, as to:

(a) the form and nature thereof, including the sub-surface conditions,

- (b) the hydrological and climatic conditions,
- (c) the extent and nature of work and materials necessary for the execution and completion of the Works and the remedying of any defects therein, and
- (d) the means of access to the Site and the accommodation he may require, and, in general, shall be deemed to have obtained all necessary information, subject as above mentioned, as to risks, contingencies and all other circumstances which may influence or affect his Tender.

The Contractor shall be deemed to have based his Tender on the data made available by the Employer and on his own inspection and examination, all as aforementioned.

#### 12.1 **Sufficiency of Tender**

The Contractor shall be deemed to have satisfied himself as to the correctness and sufficiency of the Tender and of the rates and prices stated in the Bill of Quantities, all of which shall, except insofar as it is otherwise provided in the Contract, cover all his obligations under the Contract (including those in respect of the supply of goods, materials, Plant or services or of contingencies for which there is a Provisional Sum) and all matters and things necessary for the proper execution and completion of the Works and the remedying of any defects therein.

#### 12.2 Not Foreseeable Physical Obstructions or Conditions

If, however, during the execution of the Works the Contractor encounters physical obstructions or physical conditions, other than climatic conditions on the Site, which obstructions or conditions were, in his opinion, not foreseeable by an experienced contractor, the Contractor shall forthwith give notice thereof to the Engineer, with a copy to the Employer. On receipt of such notice, the Engineer shall if in his opinion such obstructions or conditions could not have been reasonably foreseen by an experienced contractor, after due consultation with the Employer and the Contractor, determine:

- (a) any extension of time to which the Contractor is entitled under Clause 44, and
- (b) the amount of any costs which may have been incurred by the Contractor by reason of such obstructions or conditions having been encountered, which shall be added to the Contract Price,

and shall notify the Contractor accordingly, with a copy to the Employer. Such determination shall take account of any instruction which the Engineer may issue to the Contractor in connection therewith, and any proper and reasonable measures acceptable to the Engineer which the Contractor may take in the absence of specific instructions from the Engineer.

#### 13.1 Work to be in Accordance with Contract

Unless it is legally or physically impossible, the Contractor shall execute and complete the Works and remedy any defects therein in strict accordance with the Contract to the satisfaction of the Engineer. The Contractor shall comply with and adhere strictly to the Engineer's instructions on any matter, whether mentioned in the Contract or not, touching or concerning the Works. The Contractor shall take instructions only from the Engineer (or his delegate).

# 14.1 **Programme to be Submitted**

The Contractor shall, within the time stated in Part II of these Conditions after the date of the Letter of Acceptance, submit to the Engineer for his consent a programme, in such form and detail as the Engineer shall reasonably prescribe, for the execution of the Works. The Contractor shall, whenever required by the Engineer, also provide in writing for his information a general description of the arrangements and methods which the Contractor proposes to adopt for the execution of the Works.

#### 14.2 **Revised Programme**

If at any time it should appear to the Engineer that the actual progress of the Works does not conform to the programme to which consent has been given under Sub-Clause 14.1, the Contractor shall produce, at the request of the Engineer, a revised programme showing the modifications to such programme necessary to ensure completion of the Works within the Time for Completion.

#### 14.3 Cash Flow Estimate to be Submitted

The Contractor shall, within the time stated in Part II of these Conditions after the date of the Letter of Acceptance, provide to the Engineer for his information a detailed cash flow estimate, in quarterly periods, of all payments to which the Contractor will be entitled under the Contract and the Contractor shall subsequently supply revised cash flow estimates at quarterly intervals, if required to do so by the Engineer.

# 14.4 Contractor not Relieved of Duties or Responsibilities

The submission to and consent by the Engineer of such programmes or the provision of such general descriptions or cash flow estimates shall not relieve the Contractor of any of his duties or responsibilities under the Contract.

## 15.1 Contractor's Superintendence

The Contractor shall provide all necessary superintendence during the execution of the Works and as long thereafter as the Engineer may consider necessary for the proper fulfilling of the Contractor's obligations under the Contract. The Contractor, or a competent and authorised representative approved of by the Engineer, which approval may at any time be withdrawn, shall give his whole time to the superintendence of the Works. Such authorised representative shall receive, on behalf of the Contractor, instructions from the Engineer.

If approval of the representative is withdrawn by the Engineer, the Contractor shall, as soon as is practicable, having regard to the requirement of replacing him as hereinafter mentioned, after receiving notice of such withdrawal, remove the representative from the Works and shall not thereafter employ him again on the Works in any capacity and

shall replace him by another representative approved by the Engineer.

# 16.1 Contractor's Employees

The Contractor shall provide on the Site in connection with the execution and completion of the Works and the remedying of any defects therein:

- (a) only such technical assistants as are skilled and experienced in their respective callings and such foremen and leading hands as are competent to give proper superintendence of the Works, and
- (b) such skilled, semi skilled and unskilled labour as is necessary for the proper and timely fulfilling of the Contractor's obligations under the Contract.

#### 16.2 Engineer at Liberty to Object

The Engineer shall be at liberty to object to and require the Contractor to remove forthwith from the Works any person provided by the Contractor who, in the opinion of the Engineer, misconducts himself, or is incompetent or negligent in the proper performance of his duties, or whose presence on Site is otherwise considered by the Engineer to be undesirable, and such person shall not be again allowed upon the Works without the consent of the Engineer. Any person so removed from the Works shall be replaced as soon as possible.

## 17.1 **Setting-out**

The Contractor shall be responsible for:

- (a) the accurate setting-out of the Works in relation to original points, lines and levels of reference given by the Engineer in writing,
- (b) the correctness, subject as above mentioned of the position, levels dimensions and alignment of all parts of the Works, and
- (c) the provision of all necessary instruments, appliances and labour in connection with the foregoing responsibilities.

If, at any time during the execution of the Works, any error appears in the position, levels, dimensions or alignment of any part of the Works, the Contractor, on being required so to do by the Engineer, shall, at his own cost, rectify such error to the satisfaction of the Engineer, unless such error is based on incorrect data supplied in writing by the Engineer, in which case the Engineer shall determine an addition to the Contract Price in accordance with Clause 52 and shall notify the Contractor accordingly, with a copy to the Employer.

The checking of any setting-out or of any line or level by the Engineer shall not in any way relieve the Contractor of his responsibility for the accuracy thereof and the

Contractor shall carefully protect and preserve all bench-marks, sight-rails, pegs and other things used in setting-out the Works.

#### 18.1 **Boreholes and Exploratory Excavation**

If, at any time during the execution of the Works, the Engineer requires the Contractor to make boreholes or to carry out exploratory excavation, such requirement shall be the subject of an instruction in accordance with Clause 51, unless an item or a Provisional Sum in respect of such work is included in the Bill of Quantities.

# 19.1 Safety, Security and Protection of the Environment

The Contractor shall, throughout the execution and completion of the Works and the remedying of any defects therein:

- (a) have full regard for the safety of all persons entitled to be upon the Site and keep the Site (so far as the same is under his control) and the Works (so far as the same are not completed or occupied by the Employer) in an orderly state appropriate to the avoidance of danger to such persons,
- (b) provide and maintain at his own cost all lights, guards, fencing, warning signs and watching, when and where necessary or required by the Engineer or by any duly constituted authority, for the protection of the Works or for the safety and convenience of the public or others, and
- (c) take all reasonable steps to protect the environment on and off the Site and to avoid damage or nuisance to persons or to property of the public or others resulting from pollution, noise or other causes arising as a consequence of his methods of operation.

#### 19.2 **Employer's Responsibilities**

If under Clause 31 the Employer shall carry out work on the Site with his own workmen he shall, in respect of such work:

- (a) have full regard to the safety of all persons entitled to be upon the Site, and
- (b) keep the Site in an orderly state appropriate to the avoidance of danger to such persons.

If under Clause 31 the Employer shall employ other contractors on the Site he shall require them to have the same regard for safety and avoidance of danger.

#### 20.1 Care of Works

The Contractor shall take full responsibility for the care of the Works and materials and Plant for incorporation therein from the Commencement Date until the date of issue of the Taking-Over Certificate for the whole of the Works, when the responsibility for the said care shall pass to the Employer. Provided that:

(a) if the Engineer issues a Taking-Over Certificate for any Section or part of the Permanent Works the Contractor shall cease to be liable for the care of that

Section or part from the date of issue of the Taking-Over Certificate, when the responsibility for the care of that Section or part shall pass to the Employer, and

(b) the Contractor shall take full responsibility for the care of any outstanding Works and materials and Plant for incorporation therein which he undertakes to finish during the Defects Liability Period until such outstanding Works have been completed pursuant to Clause 49.

## 20.2 Responsibility to Rectify Loss or Damage

If any loss or damage happens to the Works, or any part thereof, or materials or Plant for incorporation therein, during the period for which the Contractor is responsible for the care thereof, from any cause whatsoever, other than the risks defined in Sub-Clause 20.4, the Contractor shall, at his own cost, rectify such loss or damage so that the Permanent Works conform in every respect with the provisions of the Contract to the satisfaction of the Engineer. The Contractor shall also be liable for any loss or damage to the Works occasioned by him in the course of any operations carried out by him for the purpose of complying with his obligations under Clauses 49 and 50.

# 20.3 Loss or Damage Due to Employer's Risks

In the event of any such loss or damage happening from any of the risks defined in Sub-Clause 20.4, or in combination with other risks, the Contractor shall, if and to the extent required by the Engineer, rectify the loss or damage and the Engineer shall determine an addition to the Contract Price in accordance with Clause 52 and shall notify the Contractor accordingly, with a copy to the Employer. In the case of a combination or risks causing loss or damage any such determination shall take into account the proportional responsibility of the Contractor and the Employer.

## 20.4 Employer's Risks

The Employer's risks are:

- (a) war, hostilities (whether war be declared or not), invasion, act of foreign enemies,
- (b) rebellion, revolution, insurrection, or military or usurped power, or civil war,
- (c) ionising radiations, or contamination by radio-activity from any nuclear fuel, or from any nuclear waste from the combustion of nuclear fuel, radio-active toxic explosive, or other hazardous properties of any explosive nuclear assembly or nuclear component thereof,
- (d) pressure waves caused by aircraft or other aerial devices travelling at sonic or supersonic speeds,
- (e) riot, commotion or disorder, unless solely restricted to employees of the Contractor or of his Subcontractor and arising from the conduct of the Works,
- (f) loss or damage due to the use or occupation by the Employer of any Section or part of the Permanent Works, except as may be provided for in the Contract,
- (g) loss or damage to the extent that it is due to the design of the Works, other than

- any part of the design provided by the Contractor or for which the Contractor is responsible, and
- (h) any operation of the forces of nature against which an experienced contractor could not reasonably have been expected to take precautions.

# 21.1 Insurance of Works and Contractor's Equipment

The Contractor shall, without limiting his or the Employer's obligations and responsibilities under Clause 20, insure:

- (a) the Works, together with materials and Plant for incorporation therein, to the full replacement cost (the term "cost" in this context shall include profit),
- (b) an additional sum of 15 per cent of such replacement cost, or as may be specified in Part II of these Conditions, to cover any additional costs of and incidental to the rectification of loss or damage including professional fees and the cost of demolishing and removing any part of the Works and of removing debris of whatsoever nature, and
- (c) the Contractor's Equipment and other things brought onto the Site by the Contractor, for a sum sufficient to provide for their replacement at the Site.

#### 21.2 **Scope of Cover**

The insurance in paragraphs (a) and (b) of Sub-Clause 21.1 shall be in the joint names of the Contractor and the Employer and shall cover:

- (a) the Employer and the Contractor against all loss or damage from whatsoever cause arising, other than as provided in Sub-Clause 21.4, form the start of work at the Site until the date of issue of the relevant Taking-Over Certificate in respect of the Works or any Section or part thereof as the case may be, and
- (b) the Contractor for his liability:
  - (i) during the Defects Liability Period for loss or damage arising from a cause occurring prior to the commencement of the Defects Liability Periods, and
  - (ii) for loss or damage occasioned by the Contractor in the course of any operations carried out by him for the purpose of complying with his obligations under Clauses 49 and 50.

#### 21.3 **Responsibility for Amounts not Recovered**

Any amounts not insured or not recovered from the insurers shall be borne by the Employer or the Contractor in accordance with their responsibilities under Clause 20.

#### 21.4 Exclusions

There shall be no obligation for the insurances in Sub-Clause 21.1 to include loss or damage caused by:

- (a) war, hostilities (where war be declared or not), invasion, act of foreign enemies,
- (b) rebellion, revolution, insurrection, or military or usurped power, or civil war,
- (c) ionising, radiations, or contamination by radio-activity from any nuclear fuel, or from any nuclear waste from the combustion of nuclear fuel, radio-active toxic explosive or other hazardous properties of any explosive nuclear assembly or nuclear component thereof, or
- (d) pressure waves caused by aircraft or other aerial devices travelling at sonic or supersonic speeds.

# 22.1 **Damage to Persons and Property**

The Contractor shall, except if and so far as the Contract provides otherwise, indemnify the Employer against all losses and claims in respect of:

- (a) death of or injury to any person, or
- (b) loss of or damage to any property (other than the Works),

which may arise out of or in consequence of the execution and completion of the Works and the remedying of any defects therein, and against all claims, proceedings, damages, costs, charges and expenses whatsoever in respect thereof or in relation thereto, subject to the exceptions defined in Sub-Clause 22.2.

# 22.2 Exceptions

The "exceptions" referred to in Sub-Clause 22.1 are:

- (a) the permanent use or occupation of land by the Works, or any part thereof,
- (b) the right of the Employer to execute the Works, or any part thereof, on, over, under, is or through any land,
- (c) damage to property which is the unavoidable result of the execution and completion of the Works, or the remedying of any defects therein, in accordance with the Contract, and
- (d) death of or injury to persons or loss of or damage to property resulting from any act or neglect of the Employer, his agents servants or other contractors, not being employed by the Contractor, or in respect of any claims, proceedings, damages, costs, charges and expenses in respect thereof or in relation thereto or, where the injury or damage was contributed to by the Contractor, his servants or agents, such part of the said injury or damage as may be just and equitable having regard to the extent of the responsibility of the Employer, his servants or agents or other contractors for the injury or damage.

# 22.3 **Indemnity by Employer**

The Employer shall indemnify the Contractor against all claims, proceedings, damages, costs, charges and expenses in respect of the matters referred to in the exceptions defined in Sub-Clause 22.2

# 23.1 Third Party Insurance (including Employer's Property)

The Contractor shall, without limiting his or the Employer's obligation and responsibilities under Clause 22, insure, in the joint names of the Contractor and the Employer, against liabilities for death of or injury to any person (other than as provided in Clause 24) or loss of or damage to any property (other than the Works) arising out of the performance of the Contract, other than the exceptions defined in paragraphs (a), (b) and (c) of Sub-Clause 22.2.

#### 23.2 **Minimum Amount of Insurance**

Such insurance shall be for at least the amount stated in the Appendix to Tender.

#### 23.3 Cross Liabilities

The insurance policy shall include a cross liability clause such that the insurance shall apply to the Contractor and to the Employer as separate insureds.

# 24.1 **Accident or Injury to Workmen**

The Employer shall not be liable for or in respect of any damages or compensation payable to any workman or other person in the employment of the Contractor or any Subcontractor, other than death or injury resulting from any act or default of the Employer, his agents or servants. The Contractor shall indemnify and keep indemnified the Employer against all such damages and compensation, other than those for which the Employer is liable as aforesaid, and against all claims, proceedings, damages, costs, charges, and expenses whatsoever in respect thereof or in relation thereto.

# 24.2 Insurance Against Accident to Workmen

The Contractor shall insure against such liability and shall continue such insurance during the whole of the time that any persons are employed by him on the Works. Provided that, in respect of any persons employed by any Subcontractor, the Contractor's obligations to insure as aforesaid under the Sub-Clause shall be satisfied if the Subcontractor shall have insured against the liability in respect of such persons in such manner that the Employer is indemnified under the policy, but the Contractor shall require such Subcontractor to produce to the Employer, when required, such policy of insurance and the receipt for the payment of the current premium.

#### 25.1 Evidence and Terms of Insurances

The Contractor shall provide evidence to the Employer prior to the start of work at the Site that the insurances required under the Contract have been effected and shall, within 84 days of the Commencement Date, provide the insurance policies to the Employer. When providing such evidence and such policies to the Employer, the

Contractor shall notify the Engineer of so doing. Such insurance policies shall be consistent with the general terms agreed prior to the issue of the Letter of Acceptance. The Contractor shall effect all insurances for which he is responsible with insurers and in terms approved by the Employer.

# 25.2 Adequacy of Insurances

The Contractor shall notify the insurers of changes in the nature, extent or programme for the execution of the Works and ensure the adequacy of the insurances at all times in accordance with the terms of the Contract and shall, when required, produce to the Employer the insurance policies in force and the receipts for payment of the current premiums.

#### 25.3 Remedy on Contractor's Failure to Insure

If the Contractor fails to effect and keep in force any of the insurances required under the Contract, or fails to provide the policies to the Employer within the period required by Sub-Clause 25.1, then and in any such case the Employer may effect and keep in force any such insurances and pay any premium as may be necessary for that purpose and from time to time deduct the amount so paid from any monies due or to become due to the Contractor, or recover the same as a debt due from the Contractor.

#### 25.4 Compliance with Policy Conditions

In the event that the Contractor or the Employer fails to comply with conditions imposed by the insurance policies effected pursuant to the Contract, each shall indemnify the other against all losses and claims arising from such failure.

#### 26.1 Compliance with Statutes, Regulations

The Contractor shall conform in all respects, including by the giving of all notices and the paying of all fees, with the provisions of:

- (a) any National or State Statute, Ordinance, or other Law, or any regulation, or byelaw of any local or other duly constituted authority in relation to the execution and completion of the Works and the remedying of any defects therein, and
- (b) the rules and regulations of all public bodies and companies whose property or rights are affected or may be affected in any way by the Works,

and the Contractor shall keep the Employer indemnified against all penalties and liability of every kind for breach of any such provisions. Provided always that the Employer shall be responsible for obtaining any planning, zoning or other similar permission required for the Works to proceed and shall indemnify the Contractor in accordance with Sub-Clause 22.3.

#### **27.1 Fossil**

All fossils, coins, articles of value or antiquity and structures and other remains or things of geological or archaeological interest discovered on the Site shall, as between the Employer and the Contractor, be deemed to be the absolute property of the Employer. The Contractor shall take reasonable precautions to prevent his workmen or any other persons from removing or damaging any such article or thing and shall, immediately upon discovery thereof and before removal, acquaint the Engineer of such discovery and carry out the Engineer's instructions for dealing with the same. If, by reason of such instructions, the Contractor suffers delay and/or incurs costs then the Engineer shall, after due consultation with the Employer and the Contractor, determine:

- (a) any extension of time to which the Contractor is entitled under Clause 44, and
- (b) the amount of such costs, which shall be added to the Contract Price, and shall notify the Contractor accordingly, with a copy to the Employer.

## 28.1 **Patent Rights**

The Contractor shall save harmless and indemnify the Employer from and against all claims and proceedings for or on account of infringement of any patent rights, design trademark or name or other protected rights in respect of any Contractor's Equipment, materials or Plant used for or in connection with or for incorporation in the Works and from and against all damages, costs, charges and expenses whatsoever in respect thereof or in relation thereto, except where such infringement results from compliance with the design or Specification provided by the Engineer.

# 28.2 Royalties

Except where otherwise stated, the Contractor shall pay all tonnage and other royalties, rent and other payments or compensation, if any, for getting stone, sand, gravel, clay or other materials required for the Works.

# 29.1 Interference with Traffic and Adjoining Properties

All operations necessary for the execution and completion of the Works and the remedying of any defects therein shall, so far as compliance with the requirements of the Contract permits, be carried on so as not to interfere unnecessarily or improperly with:

- (a) the convenience of the public, or
- (b) the access to, use and occupation of public or private roads and footpaths to or of properties whether in the possession of the Employer or of any other person.

The Contractor shall save harmless and indemnify the Employer in respect of all claims, proceedings, damages, costs, charges and expenses whatsoever arising out of, or in relation to, any such matters insofar as the Contractor is responsible therefor.

#### 30.1 **Avoidance of Damage to Roads**

The Contractor shall use every reasonable means to prevent any of the roads or bridges communicating with or on the routes to the Site from being damaged or injured by any traffic of the Contractor or any of his Subcontractors and, in particular, shall select routes, choose and use vehicles and restrict and distribute loads so that any such extraordinary traffic as will inevitably arise from the moving of materials, Plant, Contractor's Equipment or Temporary Works from and to the Site shall be limited, as

far as reasonably possible, and so that no unnecessary damage or injury may be occasioned to such roads and bridges.

# 30.2 Transport of Contractor's Equipment or Temporary Works

Save insofar as the Contract otherwise provides, the Contractor shall be responsible for and shall pay the cost of strengthening any bridges or altering or improving any road communicating with or on the routes to the Site to facilitate the movement of Contractor's Equipment or Temporary Works and the Contractor shall indemnify and keep indemnified the Employer against all claims for damage to any such road or bridge caused by such movement, including such claims as may be made directly against the Employer, and shall negotiate and pay all claims arising solely out of such damage.

#### 30.3 Transport of Materials or Plant

If, notwithstanding Sub-Clause 30.1, any damage occurs to any bridge or road communicating with or on the routes to the Site arising from the transport of materials or Plant, the Contractor shall notify the Engineer with a copy to the Employer, as soon as he becomes aware of such damage or as soon as he receives any claim from the authority entitled to make such claim. Where under any law or regulation the haulier of such materials or Plant is required to indemnify the road authority against damage the Employer shall not be liable for any costs, charges or expenses in respect thereof or in relation thereto. In other cases the Employer shall negotiate the settlement of and pay all sums due in respect of such claim and shall indemnify the Contractor in respect thereof and in respect of all claims, proceedings damages, costs, charges and expenses in relation thereto. Provided that if and so far as any such claim or part thereof is, in the opinion of the Engineer, due to any failure on the part of the Contractor to observe and perform his obligations under Sub-Clause 30.1, then the amount determined by the Engineer, after due consultation with the Employer and the Contractor, to be due to such failure shall be recoverable from the Contractor by the Employer and may be deducted by the Employer from any monies due or to become due to the Contractor and the Engineer shall notify the Contractor accordingly, with a copy to the Employer. Provided also that the Employer shall notify the Contractor whenever a settlement is to be negotiated and, where any amount may be due from the Contractor, the Employer shall consult with the Contractor before such settlement is agreed.

#### 30.4 **Waterborne Traffic**

Where the nature of the Works is such as to require the use by the Contractor of waterborne transport the foregoing provisions of this Clause shall be construed as though "road" included a lock, dock, sea wall or other structure related to a waterway and "vehicle" included craft, and shall have effect accordingly.

#### 31.1 **Opportunities for Other Contractors**

The Contractor shall, in accordance with the requirements of the Engineer, afford all reasonable opportunities for carrying out their work to:

- (a) any other contractors employed by the Employer and their workmen,
- (b) the workmen of the Employer, and

(c) the workmen of any duly constituted authorities who may be employed in the execution on or near the Site of any work not included in the Contract or of any contract which the Employer may enter into in connection with or ancillary to the Works.

#### 31.2 Facilities for Other Contractors

If, however, pursuant to Sub-Clause 31.1 the Contractor shall, on the written request of the Engineer:

- (a) make available to any other contractor, or to the Employer or any such authority, any roads or ways for the maintenance of which the Contractor is responsible,
- (b) permit the use, by any such, of Temporary Works or Contractor's Equipment on the Site, or
- (c) provide any other service of whatsoever nature for any such,

the Engineer shall determine an addition to the Contract Price in accordance with Clause 52 and shall notify the Contractor accordingly, with a copy to the Employer.

# 32.1 Contractor to Keep Site Clear

During the execution of the Works the Contractor shall keep the Site reasonably free from all unnecessary obstruction and shall store or dispose of any Contractor's Equipment and surplus materials and clear away and remove from the Site any wreckage, rubbish or Temporary Works no longer required.

# 33.1 Clearance of Site on Completion

Upon the issue of any Taking-Over Certificate the Contractor shall clear away and remove from that part of the Site to which such Taking-Over Certificate relates all Contractor's Equipment, surplus materials, rubbish and Temporary Works of every kind, and leave such part of the Site and Works clean and in a workmanlike condition to the satisfaction of the Engineer. Provided that the Contractor shall be entitled to retain on Site, until the end of the Defects Liability Period, such materials, Contractor's Equipment and Temporary Works as are required by him for the purpose of fulfilling his obligations during the Defects Liability Period.

#### Labour

# 34.1 Engagement of Staffs and Labour

The Contractor shall, unless otherwise provided in the Contract, make his own arrangements for the engagement of all staff and labour, local or other, and for their payment, housing, feeding and transport.

# 35.1 Returns of Labour and Contractor's Equipment

The Contractor shall, if required by the Engineer, deliver to the Engineer a return in

detail, in such form and at such intervals as the Engineer may prescribe, showing the staff and the numbers of the several classes of labour from time to time employed by the Contractor on the Site and such information respecting Contractor's Equipment as the Engineer may require.

# Materials, Plant and Workmanship

# 36.1 Quality of Materials, Plant and Workmanship

All materials, Plant and workmanship shall be:

- (a) of the respective kinds described in the Contract and in accordance with the Engineer's instructions, and
- (b) subjected from time to time to such tests as the Engineer may require at the place of manufacture, fabrication or preparation, or on the Site or at such other place or places as may be specified in the Contract, or at all or any of such places.

The Contractor shall provide such assistance, labour, electricity, fuels, stores, apparatus and instruments as are normally required for examining, measuring and testing any materials or Plant and shall supply samples of materials, before incorporation in the Works, for testing as may be selected and required by the Engineer.

# 36.2 Cost of Samples

All samples shall be supplied by the Contractor at his own cost if the supply thereof is clearly intended by or provided for in the Contract.

#### 36.3 **Cost of Tests**

The cost of making any test shall be borne by the Contractor if such test is:

- (a) clearly intended by or provided for in the Contract, or
- (b) particularised in the Contract (in cases only for a test under load or of a test to ascertain whether the design of any finished or partially finished work is appropriate for the purposes which it was intended to fulfil) in sufficient detail to enable the Contractor to price or allow for the same in his Tender.

# 36.4 Cost of Tests not Provided for

If any test required by the Engineer which is:

- (a) not intended by or provided for,
- (b) (in the cases above mentioned) not so particularised, or
- (c) (through so intended or provided for) required by the Engineer to be carried out at any place other than the Site or the place of manufacture, fabrication or preparation of the materials or Plant tested,

shows the materials, Plant or workmanship not to be in accordance with the provisions of the Contract to the satisfaction of the Engineer, then the cost of such test shall be borne by the Contractor, but in any other case Sub-Clause 36.5 shall apply.

## 36.5 Engineer's Determination where Tests not Provided for

Where, pursuant to Sub-Clause 36.4, this Sub-Clause applies the Engineer shall, after due consultation with the Employer and the Contractor, determine:

- (a) any extension of time of which the Contractor is entitled under Clause 44, and
- (b) the amount of such costs, which shall be added to the Contract Price.

and shall notify the Contractor accordingly, with a copy to the Employer.

# 37.1 **Inspection of Operations**

The Engineer, and any person authorised by him, shall at all reasonable times have access to the Site and to all workshops and places where materials or Plant are being manufactured, fabricated or prepared for the Works and the Contractor shall afford every facility for and every assistance in obtaining the right to such access.

# 37.2 **Inspection and Testing**

The Engineer shall be entitled, during manufacture, fabrication or preparation to inspect and test the materials and Plant to be supplied under the Contract. If materials or Plant are being manufactured, fabricated or prepared in workshops or places other than those of the Contractor, the Contractor shall obtain permission for the Engineer to carry out such inspection and testing in those workshops or places. Such inspection or testing shall not release the Contractor from any obligation under the Contract.

# 37.3 **Dates for Inspection and Testing**

The Contractor shall agree with the Engineer on the time and place for the inspection or testing of any materials or Plant as provided in the Contract. The Engineer shall give the Contractor not less than 24 hours notice of his intention to carry out the inspection or to attend the tests. If the Engineer, or his duly authorised representative, does not attend on the date agreed, the Contractor may, unless otherwise instructed by the Engineer, proceed with the tests, which shall be deemed to have been made in the presence of the Engineer. The Contractor shall forthwith forward to the Engineer duly certified copies of the tests readings. If the Engineer has not attended the tests, he shall accept the said readings as accurate.

#### 37.4 **Rejection**

If, at the time and place agreed in accordance with Sub-Clause 37.3, the materials or Plant are not ready for inspection or testing or if, as a result of the inspection or testing referred to in this Clause, the Engineer determines that the materials or Plant are defective or otherwise not in accordance with the Contract, he may reject the materials or Plant and shall notify the Contractor thereof immediately. The notice shall state the Engineer's objections with reasons. The Contractor shall then promptly make good the defect or ensure that rejected materials or Plant comply with the Contract. If the Engineer so requests, the tests of rejected materials or Plant shall be made or repeated under the same terms and conditions. All costs incurred by the Employer by the repetition of the test shall after due consultation with the Employer and the Contractor, be determined by the Engineer and shall be recoverable from the Contractor by the Employer and may be deducted from any monies due or to become due to the

Contractor and the Engineer shall notify the Contractor accordingly, with a copy to the Employer.

# 37.5 **Independent Inspection**

The Engineer may delegate inspection and testing of materials or Plant to an independent inspector. Any such delegation shall be effected in accordance with Sub-Clause 2.4 and for this purpose such independent inspector shall be considered as an assistant of the Engineer. Notice of such appointment (not being less than 14 days) shall be given by the Engineer to the Contractor.

# 38.1 Examination of Work before Covering up

No part of the works shall be covered up or put out of view without the approval of the Engineer and the Contractor shall afford full opportunity for the Engineer to examine and measure any such part of the Works which is about to be covered up or put out of view and to examine foundations before any part of the Works is placed thereon. The Contractor shall give notice to the Engineer whenever any such part of the Works or foundations is or are ready or about to be ready for examination and the Engineer shall, without unreasonable delay, unless he considers it unnecessary and advises the Contractor accordingly, attend for the purpose of examining and measuring such part of the Works or of examining such foundations.

#### 38.2 Uncovering and Making Openings

The Contractor shall uncover any part of the Works or make openings in or through the same as the Engineer may from time to time instruct and shall reinstate and make good such part. If any such part has been covered up or put out of view after compliance with the requirement of Sub-Clause 38.1 and is found to be executed in accordance with the Contract, the Engineer shall, after due consultation with the Employer and the Contractor, determine the amount the Contractor's costs in respect of such of uncovering, making openings in or through, reinstating and making good the same, which shall be added to the Contract Price, and shall notify the Contractor accordingly, with a copy to the Employer. In any other case all costs shall be borne by the Contractor.

# 39.1 Removal of Improper Work, Materials or Plant

The Engineer shall have authority to issue instructions from time to time, for:

- (a) the removal from the Site, within such time or times as may be specified in the instruction, of any materials or Plant which, in the opinion of the Engineer, are not in accordance with the Contract,
- (b) the substitution of proper and suitable materials or Plant, and
- (c) the removal and proper re-execution, notwithstanding any previous test thereof or interim payment therefor, of any work which, in respect of
  - (i) materials, Plant or workmenship, or
  - (ii) design by the Contractor or for which he is responsible,

is not, in the opinion of the Engineer, in accordance with the Contract.

# 39.2 **Default of Contractor in Compliance**

In case of default on the part of Contractor in carrying out such instruction within the time specified therein or, if none, within a reasonable time, the Employer shall be entitled to employ and pay other persons to carry out the same and all costs consequent thereon or incidental thereto shall, after due consultation with the Employer and the Contractor, be determined by the Engineer and shall be recoverable from the Contractor by the Employer, and may be deducted by the Employer from any monies due or to become due to the Contractor and the Engineer shall notify the Contractor accordingly, with a copy to the Employer.

# **Suspension**

## 40.1 **Suspension of Work**

The Contractor shall, on the instructions of the Engineer, suspend the progress of the Works or any part thereof for such time and in such manner as the Engineer may consider necessary and shall, during such suspension, properly protect and secure the Works or such part thereof so far as is necessary in the opinion of the Engineer. Unless such suspension is:

- (a) otherwise provided for in the Contract,
- (b) necessary by reason of some default of or breach of contract by the Contractor or for which he is responsible,
- (c) necessary by reason of climatic conditions of the Site, or
- (d) necessary for the proper execution of the Works or for the safety of the Works or any part thereof (save to the extent that such necessity arises from any act or default by the Engineer or the Employer or from any of the risks defined in Sub-Clause 20.4), Sub-Clause 40.2 shall apply.

# 40.2 Engineer's Determination following Suspension

Where, pursuant to Sub-Clause 40.1, this Sub-Clause applies the Engineer shall, after due consultation with the Employer and the Contractor, determine:

- (a) any extension of time to which the Contractor is entitled under Clause 44, and
- (b) the amount, which shall be added to the Contract Price, in respect of the cost incurred by the Contractor by reason of such suspension,

and shall notify the Contractor accordingly, with a copy to the Employer.

### 40.3 **Suspension lasting more than 84 Days**

If the progress of the Works or any part thereof is suspended on the written instructions of the Engineer and if permission to resume work is not given by the Engineer within a period for 84 days from the date of suspension then, unless such

suspension is within paragraph (a), (b), (c) or (d) of Sub-Clause 40.1, the Contractor may give notice to the Engineer requiring permission, within 28 days from the receipt thereof, to proceed with the Works or that part thereof in regard to which progress is suspended. If, within the said time, such permission is not granted, the Contractor may, but is not bound to, elect to treat the suspension, where it affects part only of the Works, as an omission of such part under Clause 51 by giving a further notice to the Engineer to that effect, or, where it affects the whole of the Works, treat the suspension as an event of default by the Employer and terminates his employment under the Contract in accordance with the provisions of Sub-Clause 69.1, whereupon the provisions of Sub-Clause 69.2 and 69.3 shall apply.

# **Commencement and Delays**

#### 41.1 Commencement of Works

The Contractor shall commence the Works as soon as is reasonably possible after the receipt by him of notice to this effect from the Engineer, which notice shall be issued within the time stated in the Appendix to Tender after the date of the Letter of Acceptance. Thereafter, the Contractor shall proceeded with the Works with due expedition and without delay.

#### 42.1 **Possession of Site and Access Thereto**

Save insofar as the Contract may prescribe:

- (a) the extent of portions of the Site of which the Contractor is to be given possession from time to time,
- (b) the order in which such portions shall be made available to the Contractor,

and, subject to any requirement in the Contract as to the order in which the Works shall be executed, the Employer will, with the Engineer's notice to commence the Works, give to the Contractor possession of

- (c) so much of the Site, and
- (d) such access as, in accordance with the Contract, is to be provided by the Employer as may be required to enable the Contractor to commence and proceed with the execution of the Works in accordance with the programme referred to in Clause 14, if any, and otherwise in accordance with such reasonable proposals as the Contractor shall, by notice to the Engineer with a copy to the Employer, make. The Employer will, from time to time as the Works proceed, give to the Contractor possession of such further portions of the Site as may be required to enable the Contractor to proceed with the execution of the Works with due dispatch in accordance with such programme or proposals, as the case may be.

# 42.2 Failure to Give Possession

If the Contractor suffers delay and/or incurs costs from failure on the part of the Employer to give possession in accordance with the terms of Sub-Clause 42.1, the Engineer shall, after due consultation with the Employer and the Contractor, determine:

- (a) any extension of time to which the Contractor is entitled under Clause 44, and
- (b) the amount of such costs, which shall be added to the Contract Price,

and shall notify the Contractor accordingly, with a copy to the Employer.

# 42.3 **Rights of Way and Facilities**

The Contractor shall bear all costs and charges for special or temporary wayleaves required by him in connection with access to the Site. The Contractor shall also provide at his own cost any additional facilities outside the Site required by him for the purposes of the Works.

# **Time for Completion**

The whole of the Works and, if applicable, any Section required to be completed within a particular time as stated in the Appendix to Tender, shall be completed, in accordance with the provisions of Clause 48, within the time stated in the Appendix to Tender for the whole of the Works or the Section (as the case may be), calculated from the Commencement Date, or such extended time as may be allowed under Clause 44.

#### 44.1 Extension of Time for Completion

In the event of:

- (a) the amount or nature of extra or additional work,
- (b) any cause of delay referred to in these Conditions,
- (c) exceptionally adverse climatic conditions,
- (d) any delay, impediment or prevention by the Employer, or
- (e) other special circumstances which may occur, other than through a default of or breach of contract by the Contractor or for which he is responsible,

being such as fairly to entitle the Contractor to an extension of the Time for Completion of the Works, or any Section or part thereof, the Engineer shall, after due consultation with the Employer and the Contractor, determine the amount of such extension and shall notify the Contractor accordingly, with a copy to the Employer.

#### 44.2 Contractor to Provide Notification and Detailed Particulars

Provided that the Engineer is not bound to make any determination unless the Contractor has

(a) within 28 days after such event has first arisen notified the Engineer with a copy to the Employer, and

(b) within 28 days or such other reasonable time as may be agreed by the Engineer, after such notification submitted to the Engineer detailed particulars of any extension of time to which he may consider himself entitled in order that such submission may be investigated at the time.

# 44.3 **Interim Determination of Extension**

Provided also that where an event has a continuing effect such that it is not practicable for the Contractor to submit detailed particulars within the period of 28 days referred to in Sub-Clause 44.2(b), he shall nevertheless be entitled to an extension of time provided that he has submitted to the Engineer interim particulars at intervals of not more than 28 days and final particulars within 28 days of the end of the effects resulting from the event. On receipt of such interim particulars, the Engineer shall, without undue delay, make an interim determination of extension of time and, on receipt of the final particulars, the Engineer shall review all the circumstances and shall determine an overall extension of time in regard to the event. In both such cases the Engineer shall make his determination after due consultation with the Employer and the Contractor and shall notify the Contractor of the determination, with a copy to the Employer. No final review shall result in a decrease of any extension of time already determined by the Engineer.

# 45.1 **Restriction on Working Hours**

Subject to any provision to the contrary contained in the Contract, none of the Works shall, save as hereinafter provided, be carried on during the night or on locally recognised days of rest without the consent of the Engineer, except when work is unavoidable or absolutely necessary for the saving of life or property or for the safety of the Works, in which case the Contractor shall immediately advise the Engineer. Provided that the provisions of this Clause shall not be applicable in the case of any work which it is customary to carry out by multiple shifts.

## 46.1 **Rate of Progress**

If for any reason, which does not entitle the Contractor to an extension of time, the rate of progress of the Works or any Section is at any time, in the opinion of the Engineer, too slow to comply with the Time for Completion, the Engineer shall so notify the Contractor who shall thereupon take such steps as are necessary, subject to the consent of the Engineer, to expedite progress so as to comply with the Time for Completion. The Contractor shall not be entitled to any additional payment for taking such steps. If, as a result of any notice given by the Engineer under this Clause, the Contractor considers that it is necessary to do any work at night or on locally recognised days of rest, he shall be entitled to seek the consent of the Engineer so to do. Provided that if any steps, taken by the Contractor in meeting his obligations under this Clause, involve the Employer in additional supervision costs, such cost shall, after due consultation with the Employer and the Contractor, be determined by the Engineer and shall be recoverable from the Contractor by the Employer, and may be deducted by the Employer from any monies due or to become due to the Contractor and the Engineer shall notify the Contractor accordingly, with a copy to the Employer.

# 47.1 Liquidated Damages for Delay

If the Contractor fails to comply with the Time for Completion in accordance with

Clause 48, for the whole of the Works or, if applicable, any Section within the relevant time prescribed by Clause 43, then the Contractor shall pay to the Employer the relevant sum stated in the Appendix to Tender as liquidated damages for such default and not as a penalty (which sum shall be the only monies due from the Contractor for such default) for every day or part of a day which shall elapse between the relevant Time for Completion and the date stated in a Taking-Over Certificate of the whole of the Works or the relevant Section, subject to the applicable limit stated in the Appendix to Tender. The Employer may, without prejudice to any other method of recovery, deduct the amount of such damages from any monies due or to become due to the Contractor. The payment or deduction of such damages shall not relieve the Contractor from his obligation to complete the Works, or from any other of his obligations and liabilities under the Contract.

#### 47.2 Reduction of Liquidated Damages

If, before the Time for Completion of the whole of the Works or, if applicable, any Section, a Taking-Over Certificate has been issued for any part of the Works or of a Section, the liquidated damages for delay in completion of the remainder of the Works or of that Section shall, for any period of delay after the date stated in such Taking-Over Certificate, and in the absence of Alternative provisions in the Contract, be reduced in the proportion which the value of the part so certified bears to the value of the whole of the Works or Section, as applicable. The provisions of this Sub-Clause shall only apply to the rate of liquidated damages and shall not affect the limit thereof.

#### 48.1 **Taking-Over Certificate**

When the whole of the Works have been substantially completed and have satisfactorily passed any Tests on Completion prescribed by the Contract, the Contractor may give a notice to that effect to the Engineer with a copy to the Employer, accompanied by a written undertaking to finish with due expedition any outstanding work during the Defects Liability Period. Such notice and undertaking shall be deemed to be a request by the Contractor for the Engineer to issue a Taking-Over Certificate in respect of the Works. The Engineer shall within 21 days of the date of delivery of such notice, either issue to the Contractor, with a copy to the Employer, a Taking-Over Certificate, stating the date on which, in his opinion, the Works were substantially completed in accordance with the Contract, or give instructions in writing to the Contractor specifying all the work which, in the Engineer's opinion, is required to be done by the Contractor before the issue of such Certificate. The Engineer shall also notify the Contractor of any defects in the Works affecting substantial completion that may appear after such instructions and before completion of the Woks specified therein. The Contractor shall be entitled to receive such Taking-Over Certificate within 21 days of completion, to the satisfaction of the Engineer, of the Works so specified and remedying any defects so notified.

#### 48.2 **Taking Over of Sections or Parts**

Similarly, in accordance with the procedure set out in Sub-Clause 48.1, the Contractor may request and the Engineer shall issue a Taking-Over Certificate in respect of:

(a) any Section in respect of which a separate Time for Completion is provided in the

Appendix to Tender,

- (b) any substantial part of the Permanent Works which has been both completed to the satisfaction of the Engineer and, otherwise than as provided for in the Contract, occupied or used by the Employer, or
- (c) any part of the Permanent Works which the Employer has elected to occupy or use prior to completion (where such prior occupation or use is not provided for in the Contract or has not been agreed by the Contractor as a temporary measure).

# 48.3 **Substantial Completion of Parts**

If any part of the Permanent Works has been substantially completed and has satisfactorily passed any Tests on Completion prescribed by the Contractor, the Engineer may issue a Taking-Over Certificate in respect of that part of the Permanent Works before completion of the whole of the Works and, upon the issue of such Certificate, the Contractor shall be deemed to have undertaken to complete with due expedition any outstanding work in that part of the Permanent Works during the Defects Liability Period.

#### 48.4 Surfaces Requiring Reinstatement

Provided that a Taking-Over Certificate given in respect of any Section or part of the Permanent Works before completion of the whole of the Works shall not be deemed to certify completion of any ground or surfaces requiring reinstatement, unless such Taking-Over Certificate shall expressly so state.

# **Defects Liability**

#### 49.1 **Defects Liability Period**

In these Conditions the expression "Defects Liability Period" shall mean the defects liability period named in the Appendix to Tender, calculated from:

- (a) the date of completion of the Works certified by the Engineer in accordance with Clause 48, or
- (b) in the event of more than one certificate having issued by the Engineer under Clause 48, the respective dates so certified,

and in relation to the Defects Liability Period the expression "the Works" shall be construed accordingly.

#### 49.2 Completion of Outstanding Work and Remedying Defects

To the intent that the Works shall, at or as soon as practicable after the expiration of the Defects Liability Period, be delivered to the Employer in the condition required by the Contract, fair wear and tear excepted, to the satisfaction of the Engineer, the Contractor shall:

(a) complete the work, if any, outstanding on the date stated in the Taking-Over Certificate as soon as practicable after such date, and

(b) execute all such work of amendment, reconstruction, and remedying defects, shrinkages or other faults as the Engineer may, during the Defects Liability Period or within 14 days after its expiration, as a result of an inspection made by or on behalf of the Engineer prior to its expiration, instruct the Contractor to execute.

# 49.3 **Cost of Remedying Defects**

All work referred to in Sub-Clause 49.2(b) shall be executed by the Contractor at his own cost if the necessity thereof is, in the opinion of the Engineer, due to:

- (a) the use of materials, Plant or workmanship not in accordance with the Contract,
- (b) where the Contractor is responsible for the design of part of the Permanent Works, any fault in such design, or
- (c) the neglect or failure on the part of the Contractor to comply with any obligation, expressed or implied, on the Contractor's part under the Contract.

If, in the opinion of the Engineer, such necessity is due to any other cause, he shall determine an addition to the Contract Price in accordance with Clause 52 and shall notify the Contractor accordingly, with a copy to the Employer.

# 49.4 Contractor's Failure to Carry Out Instructions

In case of default on the part of the Contractor in carrying out such instruction within a reasonable time, the Employer shall be entitled to employ and pay other persons to carry out the same and if such work is work which, in the opinion of the Engineer, the Contractor was liable to do at his own cost under the Contract, then all cost consequent thereon or incidental thereto shall, after due consultation with the Employer and the Contractor, be determined by the Engineer and shall be recoverable from the Contractor by the Employer, and may be deducted by the Employer from any monies due or to become due to the Contractor and the Engineer shall notify the Contractor accordingly, with a copy to the Employer.

#### 50.1 **Contractor to Search**

If any defect, shrinkage or other fault in the Works appears at any time prior to the end of the Defects Liability Period, the Engineer may instruct the Contractor, with a copy to the Employer, to search under the directions of the Engineer for the cause thereof. Unless such defect, shrinkage or other fault is one for which the Contractor is liable under the Contract, the Engineer shall, after due consultation with the Employer and the Contractor, determine the amount in respect of the costs of such search incurred by the Contractor, which shall be added to the Contract Price and shall notify the Contractor accordingly, with a copy to the Employer. If such defect, shrinkage or other fault is one for which the Contractor is liable, the cost of the work carried out in searching as aforesaid shall be borne by the Contractor and he shall in such case remedy such defect, shrinkage or other fault at his own cost in accordance with the provisions of Clause 49.

# **Alterations, Additions and Omissions**

#### 51.1 Variations

The Engineer shall make any variation of the form, qualify or quantity of the Works or any part thereof that may, in his opinion, be necessary and for that purpose, or if for any other reason it shall, in his opinion, be appropriate, he shall have the authority to instruct the Contractor to do and the Contractor shall do any of the following:

- (a) increase or decrease the quantity of any work included in the Contract,
- (b) omit any such work (but not if the omitted work is to be carried out by the Employer or by another contractor),
- (c) change the character or quality or kind of any such work,
- (d) change the levels, lines, position and dimensions of any part of the Works,
- (e) execute additional work of any kind necessary for the completion of the Works, or
- (f) change any specified sequence or timing of construction of any part of the Works.

No such variation shall in any way vitiate or invalidate the Contract, but the effect, if any, of all such variations shall be valued in accordance with Clause 52. Provided that where the issue of an instruction to vary the Works is necessitated by some default of or breach of contract by the Contractor or for which he is responsible, any additional cost attributable to such default shall be borne by the Contractor.

#### 51.2 Instructions for Variations

The Contractor shall not make any such variation without an instruction of the Engineer. Provided that no instruction shall be required for increase or decrease in the quantity of any work where such increase or decrease is not the result of an instruction given under this Clause, but is the result of the quantities exceeding or being less than those stated in the Bill of Quantities.

## **Valuation of Variations**

All variations referred to in Clause 51 and any additions to the Contract Price which are required to be determined in accordance with Clause 52 (for the purposes of this Clause referred to as "varied work"), shall be valued at the rates and prices set out in the Contract if, in the opinion of the Engineer, the same shall be applicable. If the Contract does not contain any rates or prices applicable to the varied work, the rates and prices in the Contract shall be used as the basis for valuation so far as may be reasonable, failing which, after due consultation by the Engineer with the Employer and the Contractor, suitable rates or prices shall be agreed upon between the Engineer and the Contractor. In the event of disagreement the Engineer shall fix such rates or prices as are, in his opinion, appropriate and shall notify the Contractor accordingly, with a copy to the Employer. Until such time as rates or prices are agreed or fixed, the Engineer shall determine provisional rates or prices to enable on-account payments to be included in certificates issued in accordance with Clause 60.

#### 52.2 **Power of Engineer to Fix Rates**

Provided that if the nature or amount of any varied work relative to the nature or amount of the whole of the Works or to any part thereof, is such that, in the opinion of the Engineer, the rate or price contained in the Contract for any item of the Works is, by reason of such varied work, rendered inappropriate or inapplicable, then, after due consultation by the Engineer with the Employer and the Contractor, a suitable rate or price shall be agreed upon between the Engineer and the Contractor. In the event of disagreement the Engineer shall fix such other rate or price as is, in his opinion,

appropriate and shall notify the Contractor accordingly, with a copy to the Employer. Until such time as rates or prices are agreed or fixed, the Engineer shall determine provisional rates or prices to enable on-account payments to be included in certificates issued in accordance with Clause 60.

Provided also that no varied work instructed to be done by the Engineer pursuant to Clause 51 shall be valued under Sub-Clause 52.1 or under this Sub-Clause unless, within 14 days of the date of such instruction and, other than in the case of omitted work, before the commencement of the varied work, notice shall have been given either:

- (a) by the Contractor to the Engineer of his intention to claim extra payment or a varied rate or price, or
- (b) by the Engineer to the Contractor of his intention to vary a rate or price.

# 52.3 Variations Exceeding 15 per cent

If, on the issue of the Taking-Over Certificate for the whole of the Works, it is found that as a result of:

- (a) all varied work valued under Sub-Clauses 52.1 and 52.2, and
- (b) all adjustments upon measurement of the estimated quantities set out in the Bill of Quantities, excluding Provisional Sums, dayworks and adjustment of price made under Clause 70.

but not from any other cause, there have been additions to or deductions from the Contract Price which taken together are in excess of 15 per cent of the "Effective Contract Price" (which for the purposes of this Sub-Clause shall mean the Contract Price, excluding Provisional Sums and allowance for dayworks, if any) then and in such event (subject to any action already taken under any other Sub-Clause of this Clause), after due consultation by the Engineer with the Employer and the Contractor, there shall be added to or deducted from the Contract Price such further sums as may be agreed between the Contractor and the Engineer or, failing agreement, determined by the Engineer having regard to the Contractor's Site and general overhead costs of the Contract. The Engineer shall notify the Contractor of any determination made under this Sub-Clause, with a copy to the Employer. Such sum shall be based only on the amount by which such additions or deductions shall be in excess of 15 per cent of the Effective Contract Price.

#### 52.4 **Daywork**

The Engineer may, if in his opinion it is necessary or desirable, issue an instruction that any varied work shall be executed on a daywork basis. The Contractor shall then be paid for such varied work under the terms set out in the daywork schedule included in the Contract and at the rates and prices affixed thereto by him in the Tender.

The Contractor shall furnish to the Engineer such receipts or other vouchers as may be necessary to provide the amounts paid and, before ordering material, shall submit to the Engineer quotations for the same for his approval.

In respect of such of the Works executed on a daywork basis, the Contractor shall during the continuance of such work, deliver each day to the Engineer an exact list in duplicate of the names, occupation and time of all workmen employed on such work and a statement, also in duplicate, showing the description and quantity of all materials and Contractor's Equipment used thereon or therefor other than Contractor's Equipment which is included in the percentage addition in accordance with such daywork schedule. One copy of each list and statement will, if correct, or when agreed, be signed by the Engineer and returned to the Contractor.

At the end of each month the Contractor shall deliver to the Engineer a priced statement of the labour, materials and Contractor's Equipment, except as aforesaid, used and the Contractor shall not be entitled to any payment unless such lists and statements have been fully and punctually rendered. Provided always that if the Engineer considers that for any reason the sending of such lists or statements by the Contractor, in accordance with the foregoing provision, was impracticable he shall nevertheless be entitled to authorise payment for such work, either as daywork, on being satisfied as to the time employed and the labour, materials and Contractor's Equipment used on such work, or at such value therefor as shall, in his opinion, be fair and reasonable.

# **Procedure for Claims**

#### 53.1 **Notice of Claims**

Notwithstanding any other provision of the Contract, if the Contractor intends to claim any additional payment pursuant to any Clause of these Conditions or otherwise, he shall give notice of his intention to the Engineer with a copy to the Employer, within 28 days after the event giving rise to the claim has first arisen.

# 53.2 Contemporary Records

Upon the happening of the event referred to in Sub-Clause 53.1, the Contractor shall keep such contemporary records as may reasonably be necessary to support any claim he may subsequently wish to make. Without necessarily admitting the Employer's liability, the Engineer shall, on receipt of a notice under Sub-Clause 53.1, inspect such contemporary records and may instruct the Contractor to keep any further contemporary records as are reasonable and may be material to the claim of which notice has been given. The Contractor shall permit the Engineer to inspect all records kept pursuant to this Sub-Clause and shall supply him with copies thereof as and when the Engineer so instructs.

#### 53.3 **Substantiation of Claims**

Within 28 days, or such other reasonable time as may be agreed by the Engineer, of giving notice under Sub-Clause 53.1, the Contractor shall send to the Engineer an account giving detailed particulars of the amount claimed and the grounds upon which the claim is based. Where the event giving rise to the claim has a continuing effect, such account shall be considered to be an interim account and the Contractor shall, at such intervals as the Engineer may reasonably require, send further interim accounts giving the accumulated amount of the claim and any further grounds upon which it is based. In cases where interim accounts are sent to the Engineer, the Contractor shall

send a final account within 28 days of the end of the effects resulting from the event. The Contractor shall, if required by the Engineer so to do, copy to the Employer all accounts sent to the Engineer pursuant to this Sub-Clause.

## 53.4 Failure to Comply

If the Contractor fails to comply with any of the provisions of this Clause in respect of any claim which he seeks to make, his entitlement to payment in respect thereof shall not exceed such amount as the Engineer or any arbitrator or arbitrators appointed pursuant to Sub-Clause 67.3 assessing the claim considers to be verified by contemporary records (whether or not such records were brought to the Engineer's notice as required under Sub-Clause 53.2 and 53.3).

#### 53.5 **Payment of Claims**

The Contractor shall be entitled to have included in any interim payment certified by the Engineer pursuant to Clause 60 such amount in respect of any claim as the Engineer, after due consultation with the Employer and the Contractor, may consider due to the Contractor provided that the Contractor has supplied sufficient particulars to enable the Engineer to determine the amount due. If such particulars are insufficient to substantiate the whole of the claim, the Contractor shall be entitled to payment in respect of such part of the claim as such particulars may substantiate to the satisfaction of the Engineer. The Engineer shall notify the Contractor of any determination made under this Sub-Clause, with a copy to the Employer.

# **Contractor's Equipment, Temporary Works and Materials**

# 54.1 Contractor's Equipment, Temporary Works and Materials; Exclusive Use for the Works

All Contractor's Equipment, Temporary Works and materials provided by the Contractor shall, when brought on to the Site, be deemed to be exclusively intended for the execution of the Works and the Contractor shall not remove the same or any part thereof, except for the purpose of moving it from one part of the Site to another, without the consent of the Engineer. Provided that consent shall not be required for vehicles engaged in transporting any staff, labour, Contractor's Equipment, Temporary Works, Plant or materials to or from the Site.

# 54.2 Employer not Liable for Damage

The Employer shall not at any time be liable, save as mentioned in Clauses 20 and 65, for the loss of or damage to any of the said Contractor's Equipment, Temporary Works or materials.

#### 54.3 **Customs Clearance**

The Employer will use his best endeavours in assisting the Contractor, where required, in obtaining clearance through the Customs of Contractor's Equipment, materials and other things required for the Works.

# 54.4 Re-export of Contractor's Equipment

In respect of any Contractor's Equipment which the Contractor has imported for the purposes of the Works, the Employer will use his best endeavours to assist the Contractor, where required, in procuring any necessary Government consent to the re-export of such Contractor's Equipment by the Contractor upon the removal thereof pursuant to the terms of Contract.

# 54.5 Conditions of Hire of Contractor's Equipment

With a view to securing, in the event of termination under Clause 63, the continued availability, for the purpose of executing the Works, of any hired Contractor's Equipment, the Contractor shall not bring on to the Site any hired Contractor's Equipment unless there is an agreement for hire thereof (which agreement shall be deemed not to include an agreement for hire purchase) which contains a provision that the owner thereof will, on request in writing made by the Employer within 7 days after the date on which any termination has become effective, and on the Employer undertaking to pay all hire charges in respect thereof from such date, hire such Contractor's Equipment to the Employer on the same terms in all respect as the same was hired to the Contractor save that the Employer shall be entitled to permit the use thereof by any other contractor employed by him for the purpose of execution and completing the Works and remedying any defects therein, under the terms of the said Clause 63.

# 54.6 Costs for the Purpose of Clause 63

In the event of the Employer entering into any agreement for the hire of Contractor's Equipment pursuant to Sub-Clause 54.5, all sums properly paid by the Employer under the provision of any such agreement and all costs incurred by him (including stamp duties) in entering into such agreement shall be deemed, for the purpose of Clause 63, to be part of the cost of executing and completing the Works and the remedying of any defects therein.

# 54.7 **Incorporation of Clause in Subcontracts**

The Contractor shall, where entering into any subcontract for the execution of any part of the Works, incorporate in such subcontract (by reference or otherwise) the provisions of this Clause in relation to Contractor's Equipment, Temporary Works or materials brought on to the Site by the Subcontractor.

# 54.8 **Approval of Materials not Implied**

The operation of this Clause shall not be deemed to imply any approval by the Engineer of the materials or other matters referred to therein nor shall it prevent the rejection of any such materials at any time by the Engineer.

#### Measurement

#### 55.1 **Quantities**

The quantities set out in the Bill of Quantities are the estimated quantities for the Works, and they are not to be taken as the actual and correct quantities of the Works to be executed by the Contractor in fulfillment of his obligations under the Contract.

#### 56.1 Works to be Measured

The Engineer shall, except as otherwise stated, ascertain and determine by measurement the value of the Works in accordance with the Contract and the Contractor shall be paid that value in accordance with Clause 60. The Engineer shall, when he requires any part of the Works to be measured, give reasonable notice to the Contractor's authorised agent, who shall:

- (a) forthwith attend or send a qualified representative to assist the Engineer in making such measurement, and
- (b) supply all particulars required by the Engineer.

Should the Contractor not attend, or neglect or omit to send such representative, then the measurement made by the Engineer or approved by him shall be taken to be the correct measurement of such part of the Works. For the purpose of measuring such Permanent Works as are to be measured by records and drawings, the Engineer shall prepare records and drawings as the work proceeds and the Contractor, as and when called upon to do so in writing, shall, within 14 days, attend to examine and agree such records and drawings with the Engineer and shall sign the same when so agreed. If the Contractor does not attend to examine and agree such records and drawings, they shall be taken to be correct. If, after examination of such records and drawings, the Contractor does not agree the same or does not sign the same as agreed, they shall nevertheless be taken to be correct, unless the Contractor, within 14 days of such examination, lodges with the Engineer notice of the respects in which such records and drawings are claimed by him to be incorrect. On receipt of such notice, the Engineer shall review the records and drawings and either confirm or vary them.

#### 57.1 **Method of Measurement**

The Works shall be measured net, notwithstanding any general or local custom, except where otherwise provided for in the Contract.

#### 57.2 **Breakdown of Lump Sum Items**

For the purposes of statements submitted in accordance with Sub-Clause 60.1, the Contractor shall submit to the Engineer, within 28 days after the receipt of the Letter of Acceptance, a breakdown for each of the lump sum items contained in the Tender. Such breakdowns shall be subject to the approval of the Engineer.

#### **Provisional Sums**

#### 58.1 **Definition of "Provisional Sum"**

"Provisional Sum" means a sum included in the Contract and so designated in the Bill of Quantities for the execution of any part of the Works or for the supply of goods, materials, Plant or services, or for contingencies, which sum may be used, in whole or in part, or not at all, on the instructions of the Engineer. The Contractor shall be entitled to only such amounts in respect of the work, supply or contingencies to which such Provisional Sums relate as the Engineer shall determine in accordance with this Clause. The Engineer shall notify the Contractor of any determination made under this Sub-Clause, with a copy to the Employer.

#### 58.2 Use of Provisional Sums

In respect of every Provisional Sum the Engineer shall have authority to issue instructions for the execution of work or for the supply of goods, material, Plant or services by:

- (a) the Contractor, in which case the Contractor shall be entitled to an amount equal to the value thereof determined in accordance with Clause 52, and
- (b) a nominated Subcontractor, as hereinafter defined, in which case the sum to be paid to the Contractor therefor shall be determined and paid in accordance with Sub-Clause 59.4.

#### 58.3 **Production of Vouchers**

The Contractor shall produce to the Engineer all quotations, invoices, vouchers and accounts or receipts in connection with expenditure in respect of Provisional Sums, except where work is valued in accordance with rates or prices set out in the Tender.

## **Nominated Subcontractors**

#### 59.1 **Definition of "Nominated Subcontractors"**

All specialists, merchants, tradesmen and others executing any work or supplying any goods, materials, Plant or services for which Provisional Sums are included in the Contract, who may have been or be nominated or selected or approved by the Employer or the Engineer, and all persons to whom by virtue of the provisions of the Contract the Contractor is required to subcontract shall, in the execution of such work or the supply of such goods, materials, Plant or services, be deemed to be subcontractors to the Contractor and are referred to in this Contract as "nominated Subcontractors".

# 59.2 Nominated Subcontractors; Objection to Nomination

The Contractor shall not be required by the Employer or the Engineer, or be deemed to be under any obligation, to employ any nominated Subcontractor against whom the Contractor may raise reasonable objection, or who declines to enter into subcontract with the Contractor containing provisions:

(a) that in respect of the work, goods, materials, Plant or services the subject of the subcontract, the nominated Subcontractor will undertake towards the Contractor such obligations and liabilities as will enable the Contractor to discharge his own

obligations and liabilities towards the Employer under the terms of the Contract and will save harmless and indemnify the Contractor from and against the same and from all claims, proceedings, damages, costs, charges and expenses whatsoever arising out of or in connection therewith, or arising out of or in connection with any failure to perform such obligations or to fulfill such liabilities, and

(b) that the nominated Subcontractor will save harmless and indemnity the Contractor from and against any negligence by the nominated Subcontractor, his agents, workmen and servants and from and against any misuse by him or them of any Temporary Works provided by the Contractor for the purposes of the Contract and from all claims as aforesaid.

## 59.3 **Design Requirements to be Expressly Stated**

If in connection with any Provisional Sum the services to be provided include any matter of design or specification of any part of the Permanent Works or of any Plant to be incorporated therein, such requirement shall be expressly stated in the Contract and shall be included in any nominated Subcontract. The nominated Subcontract shall specify that the nominated Subcontractor providing such services will save harmless and indemnify the Contractor from and against the same and from all claims, proceedings, damages, costs, charges and expenses whatsoever arising out of or in connection with any failure to perform such obligations or to fulfill such liabilities.

#### 59.4 **Payments to Nominated Subcontractors**

For all work executed or goods, materials, Plant or services supplied by any nominated Subcontractor, the Contractor shall be entitled to:

(a) the actual price paid or due to be paid by the Contractor, on the instructions of the Engineer, and in accordance with the subcontract;

(b)in respect of labour supplied by the Contractor, the sum, if any, entered in the Bill of Quantities or, if instructed by the Engineer pursuant to paragraph (a) of Sub-Clause 58.2, as may be determined in accordance with Clause 52; and

(c) in respect of all other charges and profit, a sum being a percentage rate of the actual price paid or due to be paid calculated, where provision has been made in the Bill of Quantities for a rate to be set against the relevant Provisional Sum, at the rate inserted by the Contractor against that item or, where no such provision has been made, at the rate inserted by the Contractor in the Appendix to Tender and repeated where provision for such is made in a special item provided in the Bill of Quantities for such purpose.

#### 59.5 Certification of Payments to Nominated Subcontractors

Before issuing, under Clause 60 any certificate, which includes any payment in respect of work done or goods, materials, Plant or services supplied by any nominated Subcontractor, the Engineer shall be entitled to demand from the Contractor reasonable proof that all payments, less retentions, included in previous certificates in respect of the work or goods, materials, Plant or services of such nominated Subcontractor have been paid or discharged by the Contractor. If the

Contractor fails to supply such proof then, unless the Contractor:

- (a) satisfies the Engineer in writing that he has reasonable cause for withholding or refusing to make such payment, and
- (b) produces to the Engineer reasonable proof that he has so informed such nominated Subcontractor in writing,

the Employer shall be entitled to pay to such nominated Subcontractor direct, upon the certificate of the Engineer, all payments, less retention, provided for in the nominated Subcontract, which the Contractor has failed to make to such nominated Subcontractor and to deduct by way of set-off the amount so paid by the Employer from any sums due or to become due from the Employer to the Contractor.

Provided that, where the Engineer has certified and the Employer has paid direct as aforesaid, the Engineer shall in issuing any further certificate in favour of the Contractor, deduct from the amount thereof the amount so paid, direct as aforesaid, but shall not withhold or delay the issue of the certificate itself when due to be issued under the terms of the Contract.

# **Certificates and Payment**

## 60.1 **Monthly Statements**

The Contractor shall submit to the Engineer after the end of each month six copies, each signed by the Contractor's representative approved by the Engineer in accordance with the Sub-Clause 15.1, of a statement, in such form as the Engineer may from time to time prescribe, showing the amounts to which the Contractor considers himself to be entitled up to the end of the month in respect of:

- (a) the value of the Permanent Works executed,
- (b) any other items in the Bill of Quantities including those for Contractor's Equipment, Temporary Works, dayworks and the like,
- (c) the percentage of the invoice value of listed materials, all as stated in the Appendix to Tender, and Plant delivered by the Contractor on the Site for incorporation in the Permanent Works but not incorporated in such Works,
- (d) adjustments under Clause 70, and
- (e) any other sum to which the Contractor may be entitled under the Contract or otherwise.

#### 60.2 **Monthly Payments**

The Engineer shall, within 28 days of receiving such statement, certify to the Employer the amount of payment to the Contractor which he considers due and payable in respect thereof, subject:

(a) firstly, to the retention of the account calculated by applying the Percentage of Retention stated in the Appendix to Tender, to the amount to which the Contractor is entitled under paragraph (a), (b), (c) and (e) of Sub-Clause 60.1 until the amount so

retained reaches the Limit of Retention Money stated in the Appendix to Tender, and

(b)secondly, to the deduction, other than pursuant to Clause 47, of any sums which may have become due and payable by the Contractor to the Employer.

Provided that the Engineer shall not be bound to certify any payment under this Sub-Clause if the net amount thereof, after all retentions and deductions, would be less than the Minimum Amount of Interim Payment Certificates stated in the Appendix to Tender.

Notwithstanding the terms of this Clause or any other Clause of the Contract no amount will be certified by the Engineer for payment until the performance security, if required under the Contract, has been provided by the Contractor and approved by the Employer.

# **Payment of Retention Money**

(a) Upon the issue of the Taking-Over Certificate with respect to the whole of the Works, one half of the Retention Money, or upon the issue of a Taking-Over Certificate with respect to a Section or part of the Permanent

Works only such proportion thereof as the Engineer determines having regard to the relative value of such Section or part of the Permanent Works, shall be certified by the Engineer for payment to the Contractor.

(b)Upon the expiration of the Defects Liability Period for the Works the other half of the Retention Money shall be certified by the Engineer for payment to the Contractor. Provided that, in the event of different Defects Liability Periods having become applicable to different Sections or part of the Permanent Works pursuant to Clause 48, the expression "expiration of the Defects Liability Period" shall, for the purposes of this Sub-Clause, be deemed to mean the expiration of the latest of such periods. Provided also that if at such time, there shall remain to be executed by the Contractor any work instructed, pursuant to Clause 49 and 50, in respect of the Works, the Engineer shall be entitled to withhold certification until completion of such work of so much of the balance of the Retention Money as shall, in the opinion of the Engineer, represent the cost of the work remaining to be executed.

#### 60.4 **Correction of Certificates**

The Engineer may by any Interim Payment Certificate make any correction or modification in any previous certificate which shall have been issued by him and shall have authority, if any work is not being carried out to his satisfaction, to omit or reduce the value of such work in any Interim Payment Certificate.

#### **Statement at Completion**

Not later than 84 days after the issue of the Taking-Over Certificate in respect of the whole of the Works, the Contractor shall submit to the Engineer a Statement at Completion with supporting documents showing in detail, in the form approved by the Engineer:

(a) the final value of all work done in accordance with the Contract up to the date

stated in such Taking-Over Certificate,

- (b) any further sums which the Contractor considers to be due, and
- (c) an estimate of amounts which the Contractor considers will become due to him under the Contract.

The estimated amounts shall be shown separately in such Statement at Completion. The Engineer shall verify payment in accordance with Sub-Clause 60.2.

#### 60.6 Final Statement

Not later than 56 days after the issue of the Defects Liability Certificate pursuant to Sub-Clause 62.1, the Contractor shall submit to the Engineer for consideration a draft final statement with supporting documents showing in detail, in the form approved by the Engineer:

- (a) the value of all work done in accordance with the Contract, and
- (b) any further sums which the Contractor considers to be due to him under the Contract.

If the Engineer disagrees with or cannot verify any part of the draft final statement, the Contractor shall submit such further information as the Engineer may reasonably require and shall make such changes in the draft as may be agreed between them. The Contractor shall then prepare and submit to the Engineer the final statement as agreed (for the purposes of these Conditions referred to as the "Final Statement").

If, following discussions between the Engineer and the Contractor and any changes to the draft final statement which may be agreed between them, it becomes evident that a dispute exists, the Engineer shall deliver to the Employer an Interim Payment Certificate for those parts of the draft final statement, if any, which are not in dispute. The dispute may then be settled in accordance with Clause 67.

# 60.7 **Discharge**

Upon submission of the Final Statement, the Contractor shall give to the Employer, with a copy to the Engineer, a written discharge confirming that the total of the Final Statement represents full and final settlement of all monies due to the Contractor arising out of or in respect of the Contract. Provided that such discharge shall become effective only after payment due under the Final Payment Certificate issued pursuant to Sub-Clause 60.8 has been made and the performance security referred to in Sub-Clause 10.1, if any, has been returned to the Contractor.

# 60.8 Final Payment Certificate

Within 28 days after receipt of the Final Statement, and the written discharge, the Engineer shall issue to the Employer (with a copy to the Contractor) a Final Payment Certificate stating:

(a) the amount which, in the opinion of the Engineer, is finally due under the

Contract or otherwise, and

(b) after giving credit to the Employer for all amounts previously paid by the Employer and for all sums to which the Employer is entitled other than under Clause 47, the balance, if any, due from the Employer to the Contractor or from the Contractor to the Employer as the case may be.

#### 60.9 Cessation of Employer's Liability

The Employer shall not be liable to the Contractor for any matter or thing arising out of or in connection with the Contract or execution of the Works, unless the Contractor shall have included a claim in respect thereof in his Final Statement and (except in respect of matters or things arising after the issue of the Taking-Over Certificate in respect of the whole of the Works) in the Statement at Completion referred to in Sub-Clause 60.5.

# **Time for Payment**

The amount due to the Contractor under any Interim Payment Certificate issued by the Engineer pursuant to this Clause, or to any other term of the Contract, shall, subject to Clause 47, be paid by the Employer to the Contractor within 28 days after such Interim Payment Certificate has been delivered to the Employer, or, in the case of the Final Payment Certificate referred to in Sub-Clause 60.8, within 56 days, after such Final Payment Certificate has been delivered to the Employer. In the event of the failure of the Employer to make payment within the times stated, the Employer shall pay to the Contractor interest at the rate stated in the Appendix to Tender upon all sums unpaid from the date by which the same should have been paid. The provisions of this Sub-Clause are without prejudice to the Contractor's entitlement under Clause 69 or otherwise.

## 61.1 Approval only by Defects Liability Certificate

Only the Defects Liability Certificate, referred to in Clause 62, shall be deemed to constitute approval of the Works.

# **Defects Liability Certificate**

The Contract shall not be considered as completed until a Defects Liability Certificate shall have been signed by the Engineer and delivered to the Employer, with a copy to the Contractor, stating the date on which the Contractor shall have completed his obligations to execute and complete the Works and remedy any defects therein to the Engineer's satisfaction. The Defects Liability Certificate shall be given by the Engineer within 28 days after the expiration of the Defects Liability Period, or, if different defects liability periods shall become applicable to different Sections or parts of the Permanent Works, the expiration of the latest such period, or as soon thereafter as any works instructed, pursuant to Clause 49 and 50, have been completed to the satisfaction of the Engineer. Provided that the issue of the Defects Liability Certificate shall not be a condition precedent to payment to the Contractor of the second portion of the Retention Money in accordance with the conditions set out in Sub-Clause 60.3.

# 62.2 **Unfulfilled Obligations**

Notwithstanding the issue of the Defects Liability Certificate the Contractor and the Employer shall remain liable for the fulfillment of any obligation incurred under the provisions of the Contract prior to the issue of the Defects Liability Certificate which remains unperformed at the time of such Defects Liability Certificate is issued and, for the purposes of determining the nature and extent of any such obligation, the Contract shall be deemed to remain in force between the parties to the Contract.

#### Remedies

#### 63.1 **Default of Contractor**

If the Contractor is deemed by law unable to pay his debts as they fall due, or enters into voluntary or involuntary bankruptcy, liquidation or dissolution (other than a voluntary liquidation for the purposes of amalgamation or reconstruction), or becomes insolvent, or makes an arrangement with, or assignment in favour of, his creditors, or agrees to carry out the Contract under a committee of inspection of his creditors, or if a receiver, administrator, trustee or liquidator is appointed over any substantial part of his assets, or if, under any law or regulation relating to reorganization, arrangement or readjustment of debts, proceedings are commenced against the Contractor or resolutions passed in connection with dissolution or liquidation or if any steps are taken to enforce any security interest over a substantial part of the assets of the Contractor, or if any act is done or event occurs with respect to the Contractor or his assets which, under any applicable law has a substantially similar effect to any of the foregoing acts or events, or if the Contractor has contravened Sub-Clause 3.1, or has an execution levied on his goods, or Contract, if the Engineer certifies to the Employer, with a copy to the Contractor, that, in his opinion, the Contractor:

- (a) has repudiated the Contract, or
- (b) without reasonable excuse has failed
  - (i) to commence the Works in accordance with Sub-Clause 41.1,
  - (ii) to proceed with the Works, or any Section thereof, within 28 days after receiving notice pursuant to Sub-Clause 46.1,
- (c) has failed to comply with a notice issued pursuant to Sub-Clause 37.4 or an instruction issued pursuant to Sub-Clause 39.1 within 28 days after having received it
- (d) despite previous warning from the Engineer, in writing, is otherwise persistently or flagrantly neglecting to comply with any of his obligations under the Contract, or
- (e) has contravened Sub-Clause 4.1, then the Employer may, after giving

then the Employer may, after giving 14 days' notice to the Contractor, enter upon the Site and the Works and terminate the employment of the Contractor without thereby releasing the Contractor from any of his obligations or liabilities under the Contract, or affecting the rights and authorities conferred on the Employer or the Engineer by

the Contract, and may himself complete the Works or may employ any other contractor to complete the Works. The Employer or such other contractor may use for such completion so much of the Contractor's Equipment, Temporary Works and materials as he or they may think proper.

# **Valuation at Date of Termination**

The Engineer shall, as soon as may be practicable after any such entry and termination by the Employer, fix and determine ex parte, or by or after reference to the parties or after such investigation or enquiries as he may think fit to make or institute, and shall certify:

(a) what amount (if any) had, at the time of such entry and termination, been reasonably earned by or would reasonably accrue to the Contractor in respect of work then actually done by him under the Contract, and

(b) the value of any of the said unused or partially used materials, any Contractor's Equipment and any Temporary Works.

## **Payment after Termination**

If the Employer terminates the Contractor's employment under this Clause, he shall not be liable to pay to the Contractor any further amount (including damages) in respect of the Contract until the expiration of the Defects Liability Period and thereafter until the costs of execution, completion and remedying of any defects, damages for delay in completion (if any) and all other expenses incurred by the Employer have been ascertained and the amount thereof certified by the Engineer. The Contractor shall then be entitled to receive only such sum (if any) as the Engineer may certify would have been payable to him upon due completion by him after deducting the said amount. If such amount exceeds the sum which would have been payable to the Contractor on due completion by him, then the Contractor shall, upon demand, pay to the Employer the amount of such excess and it shall be deemed a debt due by the Contractor to the Employer and shall be recoverable accordingly.

# 63.4 **Assignment of Benefit of Agreement**

Unless prohibited by law, the Contractor shall, if so instructed by the Engineer within 14 days of such entry and termination referred to in Sub-Clause 63.1, assign to the Employer the benefit of any agreement for the supply of any goods or materials or services and/or for the execution of any work for the purposes of the Contract, which the Contractor may have entered into.

# 64.1 Urgent Remedial Work

If, by reason of any accident, or failure, or other event occurring to, in, or in connection with the Works, or any part thereof, either during the execution of the Works, or during the Defects Liability Period, any remedial or other work is, in the opinion of the Engineer, urgently necessary for the safety of the Works and the Contractor is unable or unwilling at once to do such work, the Employer shall be entitled to employ and pay other persons to carry out such work as the Engineer may consider necessary. If the work or repair so done by the Employer is work which, in the opinion of the Engineer, the Contractor was liable to do at his own cost under the

Contract, then all costs consequent thereon or incidental thereto shall, after due consultation with the Employer and the Contractor, be determined by the Engineer and shall be recoverable from the Contractor by the Employer, and may be deducted by the Employer from any monies due or to become due to the Contractor and the Engineer shall notify the Contractor accordingly, with a copy to the Employer. Provided that the Engineer shall, as soon after the occurrence of any such emergency as may be reasonably practicable, notify the Contractor thereof.

## **Special Risks**

## No Liability for Special Risks

The Contractor shall be under no liability whatsoever in consequence of any of the special risks referred to in Sub-Clause 65.2, whether by way of indemnity or otherwise, for or in respect of:

- (a) destruction of or damage to the Works, save to work condemned under the provisions of Clause 39 prior to the occurrence of any of the said special risks.
- (b) destruction of or damage to property, whether of the Employer or third parties, or
- (c) injury or loss of life.

## 65.2 **Special Risks**

The Special Risks are:

- (a) the risks defined under paragraphs (a), (c), (d) and (e) of Sub-Clause 20.4, and
- (b) the risks defined under paragraph (b) of Sub-Clause 20.4 insofar as these relate to the country in which the Works are to be executed.

### 65.3 Damage to Works by Special Risks

If the Works or any materials or Plant on or near or in transit to the Site, or any of the Contractor's Equipment, sustain destruction or damage by reason of any of the said special risks, the Contractor shall be entitled to payment in accordance with the Contract for any Permanent Works duly executed and for any materials or Plant so destroyed or damaged and, so far as may be required by the Engineer or as may be necessary for the completion of the Works, to payment for:

- (a) rectifying any such destruction or damage to the Works, and
- (b) replacing or rectifying such materials or Contractor's Equipment,

and the Engineer shall determine an addition to the Contract Price in accordance with Clause 52 (which shall in the case of the cost of replacement of Contractor's Equipment include the fair market value thereof as determined by the Engineer) and shall notify the Contractor accordingly, with a copy to the Employer.

#### 65.4 **Projectile, Missile**

Destruction, damage, injury or loss of life caused by the explosion or impact,

whenever and wherever occurring, of any mine, bomb, shell, grenade, or other projectile, missile, munition, or explosive of war, shall be deemed to be a consequence of the said special risks.

#### 65.5 Increased Costs arising from Special Risks

Save to the extent that the Contractor is entitled to payment under any other provision of the Contract, the Employer shall repay to the Contractor any costs of the execution of the Work (other than such as may be attributable to the cost of reconstructing work condemned under the provisions of Clause 39 prior to the occurrence of any special risk) which are howsoever attributable to or consequent on or the result of or in any way whatsoever connected with the said special risks, subject however to the provisions in this Clause hereinafter contained in regard to outbreak of war, but the Contractor shall, as soon as any such cost comes to his knowledge, forthwith notify the Engineer thereof. The Engineer shall, after due consultation with the Employer and the Contractor, determine the amount of the Contractor's costs in respect thereof which shall be added to the Contract Price and shall notify the Contractor accordingly, with a copy to the Employer.

#### 65.6 **Outbreak of War**

If, during the currency of the Contract, there is an outbreak of war, whether war is declared or not, in any part of the world which, whether financially or otherwise, materially affects the execution of the Works, the Contractor shall, unless and untill the Contract is terminated under the provisions of this Clause, continue to use his best endeavour to complete the execution of the Works. Provided that the Employer shall be entitled, at any time after such outbreak of war, to terminate the Contract by giving notice to the Contractor and, upon such notice being given, the Contract shall, except as to the rights of the parties under this clause and Clause 67, terminate, but without prejudice to the rights of either party in respect of any antecedent breach thereof.

## 65.7 Removal of Contractor's Equipment on Termination

If the Contract is terminated under the provisions of Sub-Clause 65.6, the Contractor shall, with all reasonable dispatch, remove from the Site all Contractor's Equipment and shall give similar facilities to his Subcontractors to do so.

#### 65.8 **Payment if Contract Terminated**

If the Contract is terminated as aforesaid, the Contractor shall be paid by the Employer, insofar as such amounts or items have not already been covered by payments on account made to the Contractor, for all work executed prior to the date of termination at the rates and prices provided in the Contract and in addition:

(a) the amounts payable in respect of any preliminary items referred to in the Bill of Quantities, so far as the work or service comprised therein has been carried out or performed, and a proper portion of any such items which have been partially carried out or performed;

(b) the cost of materials, Plant or goods reasonably ordered for the Works which have been delivered to the Contractor or of which the Contractor is legally liable to accept delivery, such materials, Plant or goods becoming the property of the Employer upon such payments being made by him:

(c) a sum being the amount of any expenditure reasonably incurred by the Contractor in the expectation of completing the whole of the Works insofar as such expenditure has not been covered by any other payments referred to in this Sub-Clause:

(d) any additional sum payable under the provisions of Sub-Clauses 65.3 and 65.5;

- (e) such proportion of the cost as may be reasonable, taking into account payments made or to be made for work executed, of removal of Contractor's Equipment under Sub-Clause 65.7 and, if required by the Contractor, return thereof to the Contractor's main plant yard in his country of registration or to other destination, at no greater cost; and
- (f) the reasonable cost of repatriation of all the Contractor's staff and workmen employed on or in connection with the Works at the time of such termination.

Provided that against any payment due from the Employer under this Sub-Clause, the Employer shall be entitled to be credited with any outstanding balances due from the Contractor for advances in respect of Contractor's Equipment, materials and Plant and any other sums which, at the date of termination, were recoverable by the Employer from the Contractor under the terms of Contract. Any sums payable under this Sub-Clause shall, after due consultation with the Employer and the Contractor, be determined by the Engineer who shall notify the Contractor accordingly, with a copy to the Employer.

#### **Release from Performance**

### Payment in Event of Release from Performance

If any circumstance outside the control of both parties arises after the issue of the Letter of Acceptance which renders it impossible or unlawful for either party to fulfill his or their contractual obligations, or under the law governing the Contract the parties are released from further performance, then the parties shall be discharged from the Contract, except as to their rights under this Clause and Clause 67 and without prejudice to the rights of either party in respect of any antecedent breach of the Contract, and the sum payable by the Employer to the Contractor in respect of the work executed shall be the same as that which would have been payable under Clause 65 if the Contract had been terminated under the provisions of Clause 65.

## **Settlement of Disputes**

#### 67.1 **Engineer's Decision**

If a dispute of any kind whatsoever arises between the Employer and the Contractor in connection with, or arising out of, the Contract or the execution of the Works, whether during the execution of the Works or after their completion and whether before or after repudiation or other termination of the Contract, including any dispute as to any opinion, instruction, determination, certificate or valuation of the Engineer,

the matter in dispute shall, in the first place, be referred in writing to the Engineer, with a copy to the other party. Such reference shall state that it is made pursuant to this Clause. No later than the eighty-fourth day after the day on which he received such reference the Engineer shall give notice of his decision to the Employer and the Contractor. Such decision shall state that it is made pursuant to this Clause.

Unless the Contract has already been repudiated or terminated, the Contractor shall, in every case, continue to proceed with the Works with all due diligence and the Contractor and the Employer shall give effect forthwith to every such decision of the Engineer unless and until the same shall be revised, as hereinafter provided, in an amicable settlement or an arbitral award.

If either the Employer or the Contractor be dissatisfied with any decision of the Engineer, or if the Engineer fails to give notice of his decision on or before the eighty-fourth day on which he received the reference, then either the Employer or the Contractor may, on or before the seventieth day after the day on which he received notice of such decision, or on or before the seventieth day after the day on which the said period of 84 days expired, as the case may be, give notice to the other party, with a copy for information to the Engineer, of his intention to commence arbitration, as hereinafter provided, as to the matter in dispute. Such notice shall establish the entitlement of the party giving the same to commence arbitration, as hereinafter provided, as to such dispute and, subject to Sub-Clause 67.4, no arbitration in respect thereof may be commenced unless such notice is given.

If the Engineer has given notice of his decision as to a matter in dispute to the Employer and the Contractor and no notice of intention to commence arbitration as to such dispute has been given by either the Employer or the Contractor on or before the seventieth day after the day on which the parties received notice as to such decision from the Engineer, the said decision shall become final and binding upon the Employer and the Contractor.

#### 67.2 Amicable Settlement

Where notice of intention to commence arbitration as to a dispute has been given in accordance with Sub-Clause 67.1, the parties shall attempt to settle such dispute amicably before the commencement of arbitration. Provided that, unless the parties otherwise agree, arbitration may be commenced on or after the fifty-sixth day after the day on which notice of intention to commence arbitration of such dispute was given, even if no attempt at amicable settlement thereof has been made.

#### 67.3 **Arbitration**

Any dispute in respect of which:

- (a) the decision, if any, of the Engineer has not become final and binding pursuant to Sub-Clause 67.1, and
- (b) amicable settlement has not been reached within the period stated in Sub-Clause 67.2.

shall be finally settled, unless otherwise specified in the Contract, under the Rules of Conciliation and Arbitration of the International Chamber of Commerce by one or more arbitrators appointed under such Rules. The said arbitrator/s shall have full

power to open up, review and revise any decision, opinion, instruction, determination, certificate or valuation of the Engineer related to the dispute.

Neither party shall be limited in the proceedings before such arbitrator/s to the evidence or arguments put before the Engineer for the purpose of obtaining his said decision pursuant to Sub-Clause 67.1. No such decision shall disqualify the Engineer from being called as a witness and giving evidence before the arbitrator/s on any matter whatsoever relevant to the dispute.

Arbitration may be commenced prior to or after completion of the Works, provided that the obligations of the Employer, the Engineer and the Contractor shall not be altered by reason of the arbitration being conducted during the progress of the Works.

#### 67.4 Failure to Comply with Engineer's Decision

Where neither the Employer nor the Contractor has given notice of intention to commence arbitration of a dispute within the period stated in Sub-Clause 67.1 and the related decision has become final and binding, either party may, if the other party fails to comply with such decision, and without prejudice to any other rights it may have, refer the failure to arbitration in accordance with Sub-Clause 67.3. The provisions of Sub-Clause 67.1 and 67.2 shall not apply to any such reference.

#### **Notices**

#### **Notice to Contractor**

All certificates, notices or instructions to be given to the Contractor by the Employer or the Engineer under the terms of the Contract shall be sent by post, cable, telex or facsimile transmission to or left at the Contractor's principal place of business or such other address as the Contractor shall nominate for that purpose.

#### Notice to Employer and Engineer

Any notice to be given to the Employer or to the Engineer under the terms of the Contract shall be sent by post, cable, telex or facsimile transmission to or left at the respective addresses nominated for that purpose in Part II of these Conditions.

#### 68.3 Change of Address

Either party may change a nominated address to another address in the country where the Works are being executed by prior notice to the other party, with a copy to the Engineer, and the Engineer may do so by prior notice to both parties.

## **Default of Employer**

#### 69.1 **Default of Employer**

In the event of the Employer:

(a) failing to pay to the Contractor the amount due under any certificate of the Engineer within 28 days after the expiry of the time stated in Sub-Clause 60.10

within which payment is to be made, subject to any deduction that the Employer is entitled to make under the Contract.

- (b) interfering with or obstructing or refusing any required approval to the issue of any such certificate,
- (c) becoming bankrupt or, being a company, going into liquidation, other than for the purpose of a scheme of reconstruction or amalgamation, or
- (d) giving notice to the Contractor that for economic reasons it is impossible for him to continue to meet his contractual obligations,

the Contractor shall be entitled to terminate his employment under the Contract by giving notice to the Employer, with a copy to the Engineer. Such termination shall take effect 14 days after the giving of the notice.

## 69.2 Removal of Contractor's Equipment

Upon the expiry of the 14 days' notice referred to in Sub-Clause 69.1, the Contractor shall, notwithstanding the provisions of Sub-Clause 54.1, with all reasonable despatch, remove from the Site all Contractor's Equipment brought by him thereon.

## **Payment on Termination**

In the event of such termination the Employer shall be under the same obligations to the Contractor in regard to payment as if the Contract had been terminated under the provisions of Clause 65, but, in addition to the payments specified in Sub-Clause 65.8, the Employer shall pay to the Contractor the amount of any loss or damage to the Contractor arising out of or in connection with or by consequence of such termination.

#### 69.4 Contractor's Entitlement to Suspend Work

Without prejudice to the Contractor's entitlement to interest under Sub-Clause 60.10 and to terminate under Sub-Clause 69.1, the Contractor may, if the Employer fails to pay the Contractor the amount due under any certificate of the Engineer within 28 days after the expiry of the time stated in Sub-Clause 60.10 within which payment is to be made, subject to any deduction that the Employer is entitled to make under the Contract, after giving 28 days' prior notice to the Employer, with a copy to the Engineer, suspend work or reduce the rate of work.

If the Contractor suspends work or reduces the rate of work in accordance with the provisions of this Sub-Clause and thereby suffers delay or incurs costs the Engineer shall, after due consultation with the Employer and the Contractor, determine:

- (a) any extension of time to which the Contractor is entitled under Clause 44, and
- (b) the amount of such costs, which shall be added to the Contract Price,

and shall notify the Contractor accordingly, with a copy to the Employer.

### 69.5 **Resumption of Work**

Where the Contractor suspends work or reduces the rate of work, having given notice in accordance with Sub-Clause 69.4, and the Employer subsequently pays the amount due, including interest pursuant to Sub-Clause 60.10, the Contractor's entitlement under Sub-Clause 69.1 shall, if notice of termination has not been given, lapse and the Contractor shall resume normal working as soon as is reasonably possible.

## **Changes in Cost and Legislation**

#### 70.1 Increase or Decrease of Cost

There shall be added to or deducted from the Contract Price such sums in respect of rise or fall in the cost of labour and/or materials or any other matters affecting the cost of the execution of the Works as may be determined in accordance with part II of these Conditions.

### 70.2 **Subsequent Legislation**

If, after the date 28 days prior to the latest date for submission of tenders for the Contract there occur in the country in which the Works are being or are to be executed changes to any National or State Statute, Ordinance, Decree or other Law or any regulation or bye-law of any local or other duly constituted authority, or the introduction of any such State Statute, Ordinance, Decree, Law, regulation or bye-law which causes additional or reduced cost to the Contractor, other than under Sub-Clause 70.1, in the execution of the Contract, such additional or reduced cost shall, after due consultation with the Employer and the Contractor, be determined by the Engineer and shall be added to or deducted from the Contract Price and the Engineer shall notify the Contractor accordingly, with a copy to the Employer.

## **Currency and Rates of Exchange**

#### 71.1 **Currency Restrictions**

If, after the date 28 days prior to the latest date for submission of tenders for the Contract, the Government or authorized agency of the Government of the country in which the Works are being or are to be executed imposes currency restrictions and/or transfer of currency restrictions in relation to the currency or currencies in which the Contract Price is to be paid, the Employer shall reimburse any loss or damage to the Contractor arising therefrom, without prejudice to the right of the Contractor to exercise any other rights or remedies to which he is entitled in such event.

## 72.1 Rates of Exchange

Where the Contract provides for payment in whole or in part to be made to the Contractor in foreign currency or currencies, such payment shall not be subject to variations in the rate or rates of exchange between such specified foreign currency or currencies and the currency of the country in which the Works are to be executed.

#### 72.2 **Currency Proportions**

Where the Employer has required the Tender to be expressed in a single currency but with payment to be made in more than one currency and the Contractor has stated the

proportions or amounts of other currency or currencies in which he requires payment to be made, the rate or rates of exchange applicable for calculating the payment of such proportions or amounts shall, unless otherwise stated in Part II of these Conditions, be those prevailing, as determined by the Central Bank of the country in which the Works are to be executed, on the date 28 days prior to the latest date for the submission of tenders for the Contract, as has been notified to the Contractor by the Employer prior to the submission of tenders or as provided for in the Tender.

### 72.3 Currencies of Payment for Provisional Sums

Where the Contract provides for payment in more than one currency, the proportions or amounts to be paid in foreign currencies in respect of Provisional Sums shall be determined in accordance with the principles set forth in Sub-Clauses 72.1 and 72.2 as and when these sums are utilised in whole or in part in accordance with the provisions of Clauses 58 and 59.

#### REFERENCE TO PART II

## **INDEX**

# PART I GENERAL CONDITIONS

INDEX	Clause
Access to Site	42.1
Access to Works, Engineer	37.1
Access, Contractor to Satisfy Himself	11.1
Accident or Injury to Workmen - Insurance Against	24.2
Accident or Injury to Workmen - Liability for	24.1
Address, Change of	68.3
Adequacy of Insurance	25.2
Adjustment of Contract Price if Variations Exceed 15 percent of Tender Sum	52.3
Agreement	9.1
Alterations, Additions and Omissions	51&52
Ambiguities in Contract Documents	5.2
Amicable Settlement of Disputes	67.2
Appointment of Assistants to Engineer	2.4
Approval by the Engineer	7.3
Approval of Materials not Implied	54.8
Approval Only by Defects Liability Certificate	61.1
Arbitration	67.3
Assignment of Contract	3.1
Avoidance of Damage to Roads	30.1
Bills of Quantities – Estimated Only	55.1
Boreholes and Exploratory Excavation	18.1
Breakdown of Lump Sum items	57.2
Care of works	20.1
Cash Flow Estimate to be Submitted	14.3
Certificate, Final	60.8
Certificate and Payment, Monthly Statements	60.1
Certificates, Correction of	60.4
Certificate, Taking-Over	48.1
Certification of Completion of Works	48.1
Certification of Completion of Sections or Parts	48.2
Cessation of Employer's Liability	60.9
Change of Address, Notice of	68.3
Claims, Contemporary Records	53.2
Claims, Notice of	53.1
Claims, Payment of	53.5
Claims, Substantiation of	53.3
Claims Under Performance Security	10.3
Clearance of Site on Completion	33.1
Commencement of Works	41.1
Completion of Works, Time for	43.1
Completion of Works, Time for, Extension of	44.1
Completion, Statement at	60.5
Compliance with Insurance Policy Conditions	25.4
Compliance with Statues and Regulations	26.1
INDEX	Clause
Contemporary Records for Claims	53.2
Contract Agreement	9.1
Contract Not Relieved of Duties or Responsibilities	14.4
Contractor's Employees	16.1
Contractor's Employees, Engineer at Liberty to Object	16.2
Contractor's Entitlement to Suspend Work for Employer's Default	69.4

Contractor's Equipment, Conditions of Hire	54.5
Contractor's Equipment, Employer not Liable for Damage	54.2
Contractor's Equipment, Insurance of	21.1
Contractor's Equipment, Reference in Subcontracts	54.7
Contractor's Equipment, Temporary Works and Material; Exclusive Use for the	54.1
Works	
Contractor's Equipment, Transport of	30.2
Contractor's Failure to Carry Out Instructions	49.4
Contractor's Failure to Insure, Remedy	25.3
Contractor's General Responsibilities	8.1
Contractor's Superintendence	15.1
Contractor to Keep Site Clear	32.1
Contractor to Search	50.1
Correction of Certificates	60.4
Cost of Remedying Defects	49.3
Cost of Samples	36.2
Cost of Tests	35.3
Cost of Tests not Provided for	36.4
Covering up Work, Examination Before	38.1
Cross Liabilities	23.3
Currencies of Payment for Provisional Sums	72.3
Currencies, Rates of Exchange	72.1
Currency Restrictions	71.1
Custody and Supply of Drawings and Documents	6.1
Customs Clearance  Demograte Persons and Property	54.3 22.1
Damage to Persons and Property	30.1
Damage to Roads, Avoidance of	65.3
Damage to Works, Special Risks Damages, Liquidated	47.1
Dates for Inspection and Testing	37.3
Daywork	52.4
Decrease or Increase of Costs	70.1
Default of Contractor in Compliance with Instructions on Improper Work	39.2
Default of Contractor, Remedies for	63.1
Default of Employer	69.1
Defective Materials and Work	39.1
Defects, Contractor to Search for, if Required	50.1
Defects, Cost of Remedying	49.3
Defects Liability Certificate	62.1
Defects Liability Period	49.1
Defects, Remedying of	49.2
INDEX	Clause
Definitions	1.1
Delay, Liquidated Damages for	47.1
Delays and Cost of Delay of Drawings	6.4
Design by Nominated Subcontractors	59.3
Discharge	60.7
Discrepancies in Documents	5.2
Dismissal of Contractor's Employees	16.2
Disorderly Conduct, etc.	34.1
Dispute, Engineer's Decision	67.1
Disruption of Progress	6.3
Documents Mutually Explanatory	5.2
Drawings	6&7
Drawings and Documents - Custody and Supply of	6.1
Drawings and Instructions – Supplementary	7.1

Danning Come to be Went on Cite	6.2
Drawing, Copy to be Kept on Site	6.2
Drawings, Delays and Cost of Delay of Drawings	6.4
Drawings, Failure by Contractor to submit	6.5
Employer not liable for Damage to Contractor's Equipment etc.	54.2
Employer's Liability, Cession of	60.9
Employer's Responsibilities	19.2
Employer' Risks	20.4
Engagement of Staff and Labour	34.1
Engineer's Authority to Delegate	2.3
Engineer's Determination Where Tests not Provided for	36.5
Engineer's Duties and Authority	2.1
Engineer to Act Impartially	2.6
Environment – Protection of	19.1
Errors in Setting Out	17.1
Evidence and Terms of Insurance	25.1
	38.1
Examination of Work before Covering Up	22.2
Exceptions	
Exchange, Rates of	72.1
Exclusions	21.4
Extension of Time, due to Engineer's Failure to give Possession of Site	42.2
Extension of Time for Completion	44.1
Extension of Time for Completion, Contractor's Claims	44.2
Extension of Time for Completion, Engineer's Determination	44.3
Extraordinary Traffic	30.
Facilities for Other Contractors	31.2
Facilities - Rights of Way and	42.3
Failure by Contractor to Submit Drawings	6.5
Failure to Comply with Claims Procedure	53.4
Failure to Comply with Engineer's Decision	67.4
Failure to give Possession of Site	42.2
Faulty Work, Removal of	39.1
Fees and Notices	26.1
Fencing, Watching, Lighting, etc.	19.1
INDEX	Clause
II (DE)	Clause
Final Payment Certificate	60.8
Final Statement	60.6
Foreign Currencies, Payment in	72.
Fossils	27.1
Foundations, Examination of	38.1
•	8.1
General Responsibilities of Contractor	
Giving of Notices – Payment of Fees	26.1
Headings and Marginal Notes	1.2
Imporper Work and Materials, Removal of	39.1
Increase or Decrease of Costs	70.1
Indemnity by Contractor	22.1 &
	24.1
Indemnity by Employer	22.3
Independent Inspection	37.5
Injury to Persons – Damage to Property	22.1
Injury to Workmen	24.1
Inspection and Testing	37.2
Inspection of Testing, Dates for	37.3
Inspection of Foundations, etc.	38.1
Inspection of Operations	37.1
Inspection of Site by Contractor	11.1
Instructions for Variations	51.2

Instructions in Writing	2.5
Instructions, Supplementary	7.1
Insurance, Adequacy of	25.2
Insurance, Evidence and Terms of	25.1
Insurance, Minimum Amount of	23.2
Insurance of Works and Contractor's Equipment	21.1
Insurance,. Remedy on Failure to Insurance	25.3
Insurance, responsibility for Amounts not Recovered	21.3
Insurance, Scope of Cover	21.2
Insurance, Third Party	23.1
Insurance, Workmen	24.2
Interference with Traffic and Adjoining Properties	29.1
Interim Determination of Extension	44.3
Interpretations	1.3
Labour, Engagements of	34.1
Language/s and Law	5.1
Law to which Contract Subject	5.1
Legislation, Subsequent	70.2
Lighting, Fencing, Watching, etc.	19.1
Liquidated Damages for Delay	47.1
Liquidated Damages, Reduction of	47.2
Loss or Damage due to Employer's Risks	20.3
Loss or Damage – Responsibility to Rectify	20.2
Lump-Sum Items – Breakdown of	57.2
Materials and Plant, Transport of	30.3
INDEX	Clause
	010000
Materials - Approval of, etc, not Implied	54.8
Tracerials Tipprovar or, etc, not improve	20
Materials, Improper – Removal of	39.1
Materials, Improper – Removal of Materials, Quality of	39.1 36.1
Materials, Quality of	36.1
Materials, Quality of Materials, Supply of	36.1 8.1
Materials, Quality of Materials, Supply of Measurement by Engineer	36.1 8.1 56.1
Materials, Quality of Materials, Supply of Measurement by Engineer Measurement, Method of	36.1 8.1 56.1 57.1
Materials, Quality of Materials, Supply of Measurement by Engineer Measurement, Method of Measurement, Quantities Estimated Only	36.1 8.1 56.1 57.1 55.1
Materials, Quality of Materials, Supply of Measurement by Engineer Measurement, Method of Measurement, Quantities Estimated Only Methods of Construction	36.1 8.1 56.1 57.1 55.1 8.2
Materials, Quality of Materials, Supply of Measurement by Engineer Measurement, Method of Measurement, Quantities Estimated Only Methods of Construction Minimum Amount of Insurance	36.1 8.1 56.1 57.1 55.1 8.2 23.2
Materials, Quality of Materials, Supply of Measurement by Engineer Measurement, Method of Measurement, Quantities Estimated Only Methods of Construction Minimum Amount of Insurance Monthly Payments	36.1 8.1 56.1 57.1 55.1 8.2 23.2 60.2
Materials, Quality of Materials, Supply of Measurement by Engineer Measurement, Method of Measurement, Quantities Estimated Only Methods of Construction Minimum Amount of Insurance Monthly Payments Nominated Subcontractors, Certification of Payments to	36.1 8.1 56.1 57.1 55.1 8.2 23.2 60.2 59.5
Materials, Quality of Materials, Supply of Measurement by Engineer Measurement, Method of Measurement, Quantities Estimated Only Methods of Construction Minimum Amount of Insurance Monthly Payments Nominated Subcontractors, Certification of Payments to Nominated Subcontractors, Definition	36.1 8.1 56.1 57.1 55.1 8.2 23.2 60.2 59.5 59.1
Materials, Quality of Materials, Supply of Measurement by Engineer Measurement, Method of Measurement, Quantities Estimated Only Methods of Construction Minimum Amount of Insurance Monthly Payments Nominated Subcontractors, Certification of Payments to Nominated Subcontractors, Definition Nominated Subcontractors, Design by	36.1 8.1 56.1 57.1 55.1 8.2 23.2 60.2 59.5 59.1 59.3
Materials, Quality of Materials, Supply of Measurement by Engineer Measurement, Method of Measurement, Quantities Estimated Only Methods of Construction Minimum Amount of Insurance Monthly Payments Nominated Subcontractors, Certification of Payments to Nominated Subcontractors, Design by Nominated Subcontractors, Objection to Nomination	36.1 8.1 56.1 57.1 55.1 8.2 23.2 60.2 59.5 59.1 59.3 59.2
Materials, Quality of Materials, Supply of Measurement by Engineer Measurement, Method of Measurement, Quantities Estimated Only Methods of Construction Minimum Amount of Insurance Monthly Payments Nominated Subcontractors, Certification of Payments to Nominated Subcontractors, Definition Nominated Subcontractors, Design by Nominated Subcontractors, Objection to Nomination Nominated Subcontractors, Payment of	36.1 8.1 56.1 57.1 55.1 8.2 23.2 60.2 59.5 59.1 59.3 59.2 59.4
Materials, Quality of Materials, Supply of Measurement by Engineer Measurement, Method of Measurement, Quantities Estimated Only Methods of Construction Minimum Amount of Insurance Monthly Payments Nominated Subcontractors, Certification of Payments to Nominated Subcontractors, Definition Nominated Subcontractors, Design by Nominated Subcontractors, Objection to Nomination Nominated Subcontractors, Payment of Not Foreseeable Physical Obstructions or Conditions	36.1 8.1 56.1 57.1 55.1 8.2 23.2 60.2 59.5 59.1 59.3 59.2 59.4 12.2
Materials, Quality of Materials, Supply of Measurement by Engineer Measurement, Method of Measurement, Quantities Estimated Only Methods of Construction Minimum Amount of Insurance Monthly Payments Nominated Subcontractors, Certification of Payments to Nominated Subcontractors, Definition Nominated Subcontractors, Design by Nominated Subcontractors, Objection to Nomination Nominated Subcontractors, Payment of Not Foreseeable Physical Obstructions or Conditions Notice of Claims	36.1 8.1 56.1 57.1 55.1 8.2 23.2 60.2 59.5 59.1 59.3 59.2 59.4 12.2 53.1
Materials, Quality of Materials, Supply of Measurement by Engineer Measurement, Method of Measurement, Quantities Estimated Only Methods of Construction Minimum Amount of Insurance Monthly Payments Nominated Subcontractors, Certification of Payments to Nominated Subcontractors, Definition Nominated Subcontractors, Design by Nominated Subcontractors, Objection to Nomination Nominated Subcontractors, Payment of Not Foreseeable Physical Obstructions or Conditions Notice of Claims Notices and Fees, Payment of	36.1 8.1 56.1 57.1 55.1 8.2 23.2 60.2 59.5 59.1 59.3 59.2 59.4 12.2 53.1 26.1
Materials, Quality of Materials, Supply of Measurement by Engineer Measurement, Method of Measurement, Quantities Estimated Only Methods of Construction Minimum Amount of Insurance Monthly Payments Nominated Subcontractors, Certification of Payments to Nominated Subcontractors, Definition Nominated Subcontractors, Design by Nominated Subcontractors, Objection to Nomination Nominated Subcontractors, Payment of Not Foreseeable Physical Obstructions or Conditions Notice of Claims Notices and Fees, Payment of Notices, Consents and Approvals	36.1 8.1 56.1 57.1 55.1 8.2 23.2 60.2 59.5 59.1 59.3 59.2 59.4 12.2 53.1 26.1 1.5
Materials, Quality of Materials, Supply of Measurement by Engineer Measurement, Method of Measurement, Quantities Estimated Only Methods of Construction Minimum Amount of Insurance Monthly Payments Nominated Subcontractors, Certification of Payments to Nominated Subcontractors, Definition Nominated Subcontractors, Design by Nominated Subcontractors, Objection to Nomination Nominated Subcontractors, Payment of Not Foreseeable Physical Obstructions or Conditions Notice of Claims Notices and Fees, Payment of Notices, Consents and Approvals Notice to Contractor	36.1 8.1 56.1 57.1 55.1 8.2 23.2 60.2 59.5 59.1 59.3 59.2 59.4 12.2 53.1 26.1 1.5 68.1
Materials, Quality of Materials, Supply of Measurement by Engineer Measurement, Method of Measurement, Quantities Estimated Only Methods of Construction Minimum Amount of Insurance Monthly Payments Nominated Subcontractors, Certification of Payments to Nominated Subcontractors, Definition Nominated Subcontractors, Design by Nominated Subcontractors, Objection to Nomination Nominated Subcontractors, Payment of Not Foreseeable Physical Obstructions or Conditions Notice of Claims Notices and Fees, Payment of Notices, Consents and Approvals Notice to Contractor Notice to Employer and Engineer	36.1 8.1 56.1 57.1 55.1 8.2 23.2 60.2 59.5 59.1 59.3 59.2 59.4 12.2 53.1 26.1 1.5 68.1 68.2
Materials, Quality of Materials, Supply of Measurement by Engineer Measurement, Method of Measurement, Quantities Estimated Only Methods of Construction Minimum Amount of Insurance Monthly Payments Nominated Subcontractors, Certification of Payments to Nominated Subcontractors, Definition Nominated Subcontractors, Design by Nominated Subcontractors, Objection to Nomination Nominated Subcontractors, Payment of Not Foreseeable Physical Obstructions or Conditions Notice of Claims Notices and Fees, Payment of Notices, Consents and Approvals Notice to Contractor Notice to Employer and Engineer Objections to Contractor's Employees	36.1 8.1 56.1 57.1 55.1 8.2 23.2 60.2 59.5 59.1 59.3 59.2 59.4 12.2 53.1 26.1 1.5 68.1 68.2 16.2
Materials, Quality of Materials, Supply of Measurement by Engineer Measurement, Method of Measurement, Quantities Estimated Only Methods of Construction Minimum Amount of Insurance Monthly Payments Nominated Subcontractors, Certification of Payments to Nominated Subcontractors, Definition Nominated Subcontractors, Design by Nominated Subcontractors, Objection to Nomination Nominated Subcontractors, Objection to Nomination Nominated Subcontractors, Payment of Not Foreseeable Physical Obstructions or Conditions Notice of Claims Notices and Fees, Payment of Notices, Consents and Approvals Notice to Contractor Notice to Employer and Engineer Objections to Contractor's Employees Obstructions or Conditions - Not Foreseeable Physical	36.1 8.1 56.1 57.1 55.1 8.2 23.2 60.2 59.5 59.1 59.3 59.2 59.4 12.2 53.1 26.1 1.5 68.1 68.2 16.2 12.2
Materials, Quality of Materials, Supply of Measurement by Engineer Measurement, Method of Measurement, Quantities Estimated Only Methods of Construction Minimum Amount of Insurance Monthly Payments Nominated Subcontractors, Certification of Payments to Nominated Subcontractors, Definition Nominated Subcontractors, Design by Nominated Subcontractors, Objection to Nomination Nominated Subcontractors, Objection to Nomination Nominated Subcontractors, Payment of Not Foreseeable Physical Obstructions or Conditions Notice of Claims Notices and Fees, Payment of Notices, Consents and Approvals Notice to Contractor Notice to Employer and Engineer Objections to Contractor's Employees Obstructions or Conditions - Not Foreseeable Physical Omissions, Alterations and Additions	36.1 8.1 56.1 57.1 55.1 8.2 23.2 60.2 59.5 59.1 59.3 59.2 59.4 12.2 53.1 26.1 1.5 68.1 68.2 16.2 12.2 59.0
Materials, Quality of Materials, Supply of Measurement by Engineer Measurement, Method of Measurement, Quantities Estimated Only Methods of Construction Minimum Amount of Insurance Monthly Payments Nominated Subcontractors, Certification of Payments to Nominated Subcontractors, Definition Nominated Subcontractors, Design by Nominated Subcontractors, Objection to Nomination Nominated Subcontractors, Payment of Not Foreseeable Physical Obstructions or Conditions Notice of Claims Notices and Fees, Payment of Notices, Consents and Approvals Notice to Contractor Notice to Employer and Engineer Objections to Contractor's Employees Obstructions or Conditions - Not Foreseeable Physical Omissions, Alterations and Additions Openings, Uncovering and Making	36.1 8.1 56.1 57.1 55.1 8.2 23.2 60.2 59.5 59.1 59.3 59.2 59.4 12.2 53.1 26.1 1.5 68.1 68.2 16.2 12.2 59.0 38.2
Materials, Quality of Materials, Supply of Measurement by Engineer Measurement, Method of Measurement, Quantities Estimated Only Methods of Construction Minimum Amount of Insurance Monthly Payments Nominated Subcontractors, Certification of Payments to Nominated Subcontractors, Definition Nominated Subcontractors, Design by Nominated Subcontractors, Objection to Nomination Nominated Subcontractors, Payment of Not Foreseeable Physical Obstructions or Conditions Notice of Claims Notices and Fees, Payment of Notices, Consents and Approvals Notice to Contractor Notice to Employer and Engineer Objections to Contractor's Employees Obstructions or Conditions - Not Foreseeable Physical Omissions, Alterations and Additions Openings, Uncovering and Making Operations, Inspection of	36.1 8.1 56.1 57.1 55.1 8.2 23.2 60.2 59.5 59.1 59.3 59.2 59.4 12.2 53.1 26.1 1.5 68.1 68.2 16.2 12.2 59.0 38.2 37.1
Materials, Quality of Materials, Supply of Measurement by Engineer Measurement, Method of Measurement, Quantities Estimated Only Methods of Construction Minimum Amount of Insurance Monthly Payments Nominated Subcontractors, Certification of Payments to Nominated Subcontractors, Definition Nominated Subcontractors, Design by Nominated Subcontractors, Objection to Nomination Nominated Subcontractors, Payment of Not Foreseeable Physical Obstructions or Conditions Notice of Claims Notices and Fees, Payment of Notices, Consents and Approvals Notice to Contractor Notice to Employer and Engineer Objections to Contractor's Employees Obstructions or Conditions - Not Foreseeable Physical Omissions, Alterations and Additions Openings, Uncovering and Making Operations, Inspection of Order of Work, Contractor to Furnish Programme	36.1 8.1 56.1 57.1 55.1 8.2 23.2 60.2 59.5 59.1 59.3 59.2 59.4 12.2 53.1 26.1 1.5 68.1 68.2 16.2 12.2 59.0 38.2 37.1 14.1
Materials, Quality of Materials, Supply of Measurement by Engineer Measurement, Method of Measurement, Quantities Estimated Only Methods of Construction Minimum Amount of Insurance Monthly Payments Nominated Subcontractors, Certification of Payments to Nominated Subcontractors, Definition Nominated Subcontractors, Design by Nominated Subcontractors, Objection to Nomination Nominated Subcontractors, Payment of Not Foreseeable Physical Obstructions or Conditions Notice of Claims Notices and Fees, Payment of Notices, Consents and Approvals Notice to Contractor Notice to Employer and Engineer Objections to Contractor's Employees Obstructions or Conditions - Not Foreseeable Physical Omissions, Alterations and Additions Openings, Uncovering and Making Operations, Inspection of Order of Work, Contractor to Furnish Programme Other Contractors, Opportunities for	36.1 8.1 56.1 57.1 55.1 8.2 23.2 60.2 59.5 59.1 59.3 59.2 59.4 12.2 53.1 26.1 1.5 68.1 68.2 16.2 12.2 59.0 38.2 37.1 14.1 31.1
Materials, Quality of Materials, Supply of Measurement by Engineer Measurement, Method of Measurement, Quantities Estimated Only Methods of Construction Minimum Amount of Insurance Monthly Payments Nominated Subcontractors, Certification of Payments to Nominated Subcontractors, Definition Nominated Subcontractors, Design by Nominated Subcontractors, Objection to Nomination Nominated Subcontractors, Payment of Not Foreseeable Physical Obstructions or Conditions Notice of Claims Notices and Fees, Payment of Notices, Consents and Approvals Notice to Contractor Notice to Employer and Engineer Objections to Contractor's Employees Obstructions or Conditions - Not Foreseeable Physical Omissions, Alterations and Additions Openings, Uncovering and Making Operations, Inspection of Order of Work, Contractor to Furnish Programme	36.1 8.1 56.1 57.1 55.1 8.2 23.2 60.2 59.5 59.1 59.3 59.2 59.4 12.2 53.1 26.1 1.5 68.1 68.2 16.2 12.2 59.0 38.2 37.1 14.1

Payment if Contract Terminated for Employer's Default	69.3
Payment of Claims	53.5
Payment, Time for	60.10
Performance Security	10.1
Performance Security – Claims Under	10.3
Performance Security – Period of Validity	10.2
Period of Defects Liability	49.1
Permanent Works Designed by Contractor	7.2
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	12.2
Physical Obstruction or Conditions – Not Foreseeable  Physical Obstruction or Conditions – Engineer's Determination	12.2
Physical Obstruction or Conditions – Engineer's Determination	
Plant and Materials, Transport of	30.3
Plant, Conditions of Hire	54.5
Plant, Customs Clearance	54.3
Plant, Employer not Liable for Damage to	54.2
Plant, etc. – Exclusive Use for the Works	54.1
Plant, Quality of	36.1
Plant, Re-export of	54.4
INDEX	Clause
Plant, Removal of	39.1
Policy of Insurance – Compliance with Conditions	25.4
Possession of Site	42.1
Possession of Site, Failure to Give	42.2
Power of Engineer to Fix rates	52.2
Priority of Contract Documents	5.2
Programme to be Submitted	14.1
Progress – Disruption of	6.3
Progress-Rate of	46.1
Protection of Environment	
	19.1
Provision to Indemnify Contractor	22.3
Provision to Indemnify Employer	22.2
Provisional Sums, Currencies of Payment	72.3
Provisional Sums, Definition	58.1
Provisional Sums, Production of Vouchers	58.3
Provisional Sums, Use of	58.2
Quality of Materials and Workmanship	36.1
Quantities	55.1
Rate of Progress	46.1
Rates of Exchange	72.1
Rates, Power of Engineer to Fix	52.2
Rectification of Loss or Damage	20.2
Reduction of Liquidated Damages	47.2
Re-export of Plant	54.4
Regulations, Status etc. Compliance with	26.1
Rejection	37,4
Release from Performance	66.1
Remedies for Default of Contractor	63.1
Remedying of Defects,	49.2
Remedying of Defects, Cost of	49.3
Remedy on Contractor's Failure	25.3
Removal of Contractor's Employees	16.2
Removal of Contractor's Equipment	69.2
Removal of Improper Work, Materials or Plant	39.1
Removal of Plant, etc.	65.7
	20.2
Responsibility Un affected by Approval	
Responsibility Un-affected by Approval	7.3
Restriction on Working Hours	45.1

Resumption of Work	69.5
Retention Money, Payment of	50.3
Returns of Labour and Contractor's Equipment	35.1
Revised Programme	14.2
Rights of Way and Facilities	42.3
Risks, Employer's	20.4
	65.0
Risks, Special	30.1
Roads, etc Damage by Extraordinary Traffic	
Roads, Interference with Access to	29.1
INDEX	Clause
Davidé a	20.2
Royalties  Sofita Security and Protection of the Environment	28.2 19.1
Safety, Security and Protection of the Environment	36.2
Samples, Cost of	
Security, Safety and Protection of the Environment	19.1 17.1
Setting-Out	
Singular and Plural	1.4
Site, Clearance on Completion	33.1
Site, Contractor to Keep Clear	32.1
Site Inspection by Contractor	11.1
Site Operations and Methods of Construction	8.2
Site, Possession of	42.1
Special Risks	65.0
Staff, Engagement of	34.1
Statement at Completion	60.5
Statement, Final	60.6
Statutes, Regulations, etc. – Compliance with	26.1
Subcontracting	4.1
Subcontractors, Nominated	59.0
Subcontractors, Responsibility of the Contractor for Acts and Default of	4.1
Subsequent Legislation	70.2
Substantial Completion of Sections or Parts	48.3
Sufficiency of Tender	12.1
Supply of Plant, Materials and Labour	8.1
Surfaces Requiring Reinstatement	48.4
Supervision, Engineer's Determination	40.2
Suspension lasting more than 84 days	40.3
Suspension of Work	40.1
Taking Over Certificate	48.1
Taking Over of Sections or Parts	48.2
Tender Documents	11.1
Tender, Sufficiency of	12.1
Termination of Contract by Employer	63.1
Termination of Contract by Employer, Assignment of Benefit	63.4
Terms of Insurance	25.1
Tests, Cost of	36.3
Test not Provide for – Cost of	36.4
Third Part Insurance	23.1
Time for Completion	43.1
Time for Completion, Extension of	44.1
Time for Payment	60.10
Traffic, Extraordinary	30.1
Traffic Interference with	29.1
Traffic Waterborne	30.4
Transport of Contractor's Equipment and Temporary Works	30.2
Transport of Materials and Plant	30.3
Uncovering Work and Making Openings	38.2
Promise opening	50.2

Unfulfilled Obligations	62.2
INDEX	Clause
Urgent Remedial Work	64.1
Valuation at Date of Termination by the Employer	63.2
Variations	51.1
Variations, Daywork Basis	52.4
Variations, Exceeding 15 percent	52.3
Variations, Instructions for	51.2
Variations, Power of the Engineer to Fix Rates	52.2
Variations, Valuation of	51.3
Vouchers Production of	58.3
War, Outbreak of	20.4
Watching and Lighting, etc.	19.1
Waterborne Traffic	30.4
Work, Examination of Before Covering Up	38.1
Work, Improper, Removal of	39.1
Working Hours, Restriction of	45.1
Workmanship, Quality of	36.1
Workmen, Accident or Injury to	24.1
Works, Care of	20.1
Works, Completion of (Defects Liability Certificate)	62.1
Works Commencement of	41.1
Works Insurance of	21.1
Works Remedying of Defects	49.2
Works, Time for Completion of	43.1
Works to be Measured	56.1
Works, Suspension of	40.1
Work to be in Accordance with the Contract	13.1

PART II – PARTICULAR CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT

# PART II - PARTICULAR CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

Clause	Title	Page
1.1	Definitions	129
2.1	Engineer's Duties and Authority	129
2.2	Engineer's Representative	131
2.7	Engineer Not Liable	131
2.8	Replacement of the Engineer	131
5.1	Language(s) and Law	131
5.2	Priority of Contract Documents	131
6.4	Delay and Cost of Delay of Drawings	132
6.6	Shop Drawings	132
6.7	As-Built Drawings	132
10.1	Performance Security	132
10.4	Performance Security Binding on Variations and Changes	133
14.1	Programme to be Submitted	133
14.3	Cash Flow Estimate to be Submitted	133
14.5	Detailed Programme and Monthly Progress Report	133
15.2	Language Ability of Contractor's Representative	134
15.3	Contractor's Representative	134
16.3	Language Ability of Superintending Staff of Contractor	134
16.4	Employment of Local Personnel	134
19.2	Employer's Responsibilities	134
19.3	Safety Precautions	135
19.4	Lighting Works at Night	135
20.4	Employer's Risks	135
21.4	Exclusions	136
25.5	Insurance Company	136
31.3	Co-operation with Other Contractors	136
34.2	Rates of Wages and Conditions of Labour	137
34.3	Employment of Persons in the Service of Others	137
34.4	Housing for Labour	137
34.5	Health and Safety	137
34.6	Epidemics	137
34.7	Supply of Water	138
34.8	Alcoholic Liquor or Drugs	138
34.9	Arms and Ammunition	138
34.10	Festivals and Religious Customs	138
34.11	Disorderly Conduct	138
34.12	Compliance by Subcontractors	138
35.2	Records of Safety and Health	138
35.3	Reporting of Accidents	138
36.6	Use of Pakistani Materials and Services	139

Clause	Title	Page
41.1	Commencement of Works	139
42.1	Possession of Site and Access Thereto	139
42.2	Failure to Give Possession	139
48.2	Taking Over of Sections or Parts	139
51.2	Instructions for Variations	139
52.1	Valuation of Variations	139
53.4	Failure to Comply	140
54.5	Conditions of Hire of Contractor's Equipment	140
59.4	Payments to Nominated Sub-contractors	140
59.5	Evidence of Payments	140
60.1	Monthly Statements	140
60.2	Monthly Payments	141
60.10	Time for Payment	141
60.11	Secured Advance on Materials	141
60.12	Financial Assistance to Contractor	142
63.1	Default of Contractor	143
65.2	Special Risks	144
67.3	Arbitration	144
68.1	Notice to Contractor	144
68.2	Notice to Employer and Engineer	145
69.1	Default of Employer	145
70.1	Increase or Decrease of Cost	145
73.1	Payment of Income Tax	147
73.2	Customs Duty & Taxes	147
74.1	Integrity Pact	147
75.1	Termination of Contract for Employer's Convenience	148
76.1	Liability of Contractor	148
77.1	Joint and Several Liability	148
78.1	Details to be Confidential	148

#### PART II - PARTICULAR CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT

#### 1.1 Definitions

- (a) (i) The Employer is Managing Director, Pakhtunkhwa Highways Authority, Khyber Road, Peshawar.
- (a) (iv) The Engineer is Director Construction, Pakhtunkhwa Highways Authority, Khyber Road Peshawar.

The following paragraph is added:

- (a)(vi) "Bidder or Tenderer" means any person or persons, company, corporation, firm or joint venture submitting a Bid or Tender.
- (b)(v) The following is added at the end of the paragraph:

The word "Tender" is synonymous with "Bid" and the word "Tender Documents" with "Bidding Documents".

The following paragraph is added:

- (b)(ix) "Programme" means the programme to be submitted by the Contractor in accordance with Sub-Clause 14.1 and any approved revisions thereto.
- (e)(i) The text is deleted and substituted with the following:

"Contract Price" means the sum stated in the Letter of Acceptance as payable to the Contractor for the execution and completion of the Works subject to such additions thereto or deductions there from as may be made and remedying of any defects therein in accordance with the provisions of the Contract.

## 2.1 Engineer's Duties and Authority

With reference to Sub-Clause 2.1(b), the following provisions shall also apply;

The Engineer shall obtain the specific approval of the Employer before carrying out his duties in accordance with the following Clauses:

- (i) Consenting to the sub-letting of any part of the Works under Sub-Clause 4.1 "Subcontracting".
- (ii) Certifying additional cost determined under Sub-Clause 12.2 "Not Foreseeable Physical Obstructions or Conditions".
- (iii) Any action under Clause 10 "Performance Security" and Clauses 21, 23, 24 & 25 "Insurance" of sorts.

- (iv) Any action under Clause 40 "Suspension".
- (v) Any action under Clause 44 "Extension of Time for Completion".
- (vi) Any action under Clause 47 "Liquidated Damages for Delay" or Payment of Bonus for Early Completion of Works (PCC Sub-Clause 47.3).
- (vii) Issuance of "Taking Over Certificate" under Clause 48.
- (viii) Issuing a Variation Order under Clause 51, except :
  - (a) in an emergency situation, as stated here below, or
  - (b) if such variation would increase the Contract Price by less than the amount stated in the Appendix-A to Bid.
- (ix) Fixing rates or prices under Clause 52.
- (x) Extra payment as a result of Contractor's claims under Clause 53.
- (xi) Release of Retention Money to the Contractor under Sub-Clause 60.3 "Payment of Retention Money".
- (xii) Issuance of "Final Payment Certificate" under Sub-Clause 60.8.
- (xiii) Issuance of "Defect Liability Certificate" under Sub-Clause 62.1.
- (xiv) Any change in the ratios of Contract currency proportions and payments thereof under Clause 72 "Currency and Rate of Exchange".
- (xv) If in the opinion of the Engineer an emergency occurs affecting the safety of life or of the Works or of adjoining property, the Engineer may, without relieving the Contractor of any of his duties and responsibilities under the Contract, instruct the Contractor to execute all such work or to do all such things as may, in the opinion of the Engineer, be necessary to abate or reduce the risk. The Contractor shall forthwith comply with any such instruction of the Engineer. The Engineer shall determine an addition to the Contract Price, in respect of such instruction, in accordance with Clause 52 and shall notify the Contractor accordingly, with a copy to the Employer.

### 2.2 Engineer's Representative

The following paragraph is added:

The Employer shall ensure that the Engineer's Representative is a professional engineer as defined in the Pakistan Engineering Council Act 1975 (V of 1976)

The following Sub-Clauses 2.7 and 2.8 are added:

#### 2.7 Engineer Not Liable

Approval, reviews and inspection by the Engineer of any part of the Works does not relieve the Contractor from his sole responsibility and liability for the supply of materials, plant and equipment for construction of the Works and their parts in accordance with the Contract and neither the Engineer's authority to act nor any decision made by him in good faith as provided for under the Contract whether to exercise or not to exercise such authority shall give rise to any duty or responsibility of the Engineer to the Contractor, any Subcontractor, any of their representatives or employees or any other person performing any portion of the Works.

#### 2.8 Replacement of the Engineer

"If the Employer intends to replace the Engineer, the Employer shall, not less than 14 days before the intended date of replacement, give notice to the Contractor, of the name, address and relevant experience of the intended replacement Engineer. The Employer shall not replace the Engineer with a person against whom the Contractor raises reasonable objection by notice to the Employer, with supporting particulars."

## 5.1 Language(s) and Law

- (a) The Contract Documents, shall be drawn up in the English language.
- (b) The Contract shall be subject to the Laws of Islamic Republic of Pakistan.

### 5.2 Priority of Contract Documents

The documents listed at (i) to (vi) of the Sub-Clause are deleted and substituted with the following :

- (i) The Contract Agreement (if completed);
- (ii) The Letter of Acceptance;
- (iii) The completed Form of Bid;
- (iv) Special Stipulations (Appendix-A to Bid);
- (v) The Particular Conditions of Contract Part II:
- (vi) The Supplementary Conditions of Contract Part III;
- (vii) The General Conditions Part I;
- (viii) The priced Bill of Quantities (Appendix-D to Bid);
- (ix) The completed Appendices to Bid (B, C, E to L);
- (x) The Drawings;
- (xi) The Specifications; and
- (xii) Addendum if any or (any other).

In case of discrepancies between drawings, those of larger scale shall govern unless they are superseded by a drawing of later date regardless of scale. All Drawings and Specifications shall be interpreted in conformity with the Contract and these Conditions. Addendum, if any, shall be deemed to have been incorporated at the appropriate places in the documents forming the Contract.

#### 6.4 Delay and Cost of Delay of Drawings

The text at (a) and (b) is deleted and replaced with the following:

"any extension of time to which the Contractor is entitled under Clause 44"

The following Sub-Clauses 6.6 and 6.7 are added:

## 6.6 Shop Drawings

The Contractor shall submit to the Engineer for review 3 copies of all shop and erection drawings applicable to this Contract as per provision of relevant Sub-Clause of the Contract.

Review and approval by the Engineer shall not be construed as a complete check but will indicate only that the general method of construction and detailing is satisfactory and that the Engineer's review or approval shall not relieve the Contractor of any of his responsibilities under the Contract.

## 6.7 As-Built Drawings

At the completion of the Works under the Contract, the Contractor shall furnish to the Engineer 6 copies and one reproducible of all drawings amended to conform with the Works as built. The price of such Drawings shall be deemed to be included in the Contract Price.

#### 10.1 Performance Security

The text is deleted and substituted with the following:

The Contractor shall provide Performance Security to the Employer in the prescribed form. The said Security shall be furnished or caused to be furnished by the Contractor within 28 days after the receipt of the Letter of Acceptance. The Performance Security shall be of an amount equal to 10% of the Contract Price stated in the Letter of Acceptance. Such Security shall be in the form of either (a) bank guarantee from any Scheduled Bank in Pakistan or (b) bank guarantee from a bank located outside Pakistan duly counter-guaranteed by a Scheduled Bank in Pakistan. In addition to that the performance security from the PkHA approved / notified insurance companies @ 15% of the contract price will also be accepted.

The bidder shall also submit an affidavit with his signatures and seal confirming that he will not approach any Court for seeking a stay order if the employer intend encashment of bank guarantees / performance bond submitted by the bidder for Performance Security neither the bidder will ask any Court to stop the bank/Insurance Company from encashment of above mentioned bank guarantees/performance security.

The cost of complying with requirements of this Sub-Clause shall be borne by the Contractor.

The following Sub-Clause 10.4 is added:

### 10.4 Performance Security Binding on Variations and Changes

The Performance Security shall be binding irrespective of changes in the quantities or variations in the Works or extensions in Time for Completion of the Works which are granted or agreed upon under the provisions of the Contract.

#### 14.1 Programme to be Submitted

The programme shall be submitted within 42 days from the date of receipt of Letter of Acceptance, which shall be in the form of;

- (i) a Bar Chart identifying the critical activities.
- (ii) a CPM identifying the critical path/activities. (Employer/Engineer to select appropriate one)

#### 14.3 Cash Flow Estimate to be Submitted

The detailed Cash Flow Estimate shall be submitted within 21 days from the date of receipt of Letter of Acceptance.

The following Sub-Clause 14.5 is added:

## 14.5 Detailed Programme and Monthly Progress Report

- (a) For purposes of Sub-Clause 14.1, the Contractor shall submit to the Engineer detailed programme for the following:
  - (i) Execution of Works:
  - (ii) Labour Employment;
  - (iii) Local Material Procurement;
  - (iv) Material Imports, if any; and
  - (v) Other details as required by the Engineer.
- (b) During the period of the Contract, the Contractor shall submit to the Engineer not later than the 8th day of the following month, 10 copies each of Monthly Progress Reports covering:
  - (i) A Construction Schedule indicating the monthly progress in percentage;
  - (ii) Description of all work carried out since the last report;
  - (iii) Description of the work planned for the next 56 days sufficiently detailed to enable the Engineer to determine his programme of inspection and testing;
  - (iv) Monthly summary of daily job record;
  - (v) Photographs to illustrate progress; and
  - (vi) Information about problems and difficulties encountered, if any, and proposals to overcome the same.

(c) During the period of the Contract, the Contractor shall keep a daily record of the work progress, which shall be made available to the Engineer as and when requested. The daily record shall include particulars of weather conditions, number of men working, deliveries of materials, quantity, location and assignment of Contractor's equipment.

The following Sub-Clauses 15.2 and 15.3 are added:

### 15.2 Language Ability of Contractor's Representative

The Contractor's authorised representative shall be fluent in the English language. Alternately an interpreter with ability of English language shall be provided by the Contractor on full time basis.

## 15.3 Contractor's Representative

The Contractor's authorised representative and his other professional engineers working at Site shall register themselves with the Pakistan Engineering Council.

The Contractor's authorised representative at Site shall be authorised to exercise adequate administrative and financial powers on behalf of the Contractor so as to achieve completion of the Works as per the Contract.

The following Sub-Clauses 16.3 and 16.4 are added:

### 16.3 Language Ability of Superintending Staff of Contractor

A reasonable proportion of the Contractor's superintending staff shall have a working knowledge of the English language. If the Contractor's superintending staffs is not fluent in English language, the Contractor shall make competent interpreters available during all working hours in a number deemed sufficient by the Engineer.

### 16.4 Employment of Local Personnel

The Contractor is encouraged, to the extent practicable and reasonable, to employ staff and labour from sources within Pakistan.

#### 19.2 Employer's Responsibilities

The text at a) and b) is deleted and replaced with the following:

Make necessary / possible arrangement for the safety of all persons entitled to be upon the Site

The following Sub-Clauses 19.3 and 19.4 are added:

## 19.3 Safety Precautions

In order to provide for the safety, health and welfare of persons, and for prevention of damage of any kind, all operations for the purposes of or in connection with the Contract shall be carried out in compliance with the Safety Requirements of the Government of Pakistan with such modifications thereto as the Engineer may authorise or direct and the Contractor shall take or cause to be taken such further measures and comply with such further requirements as the Engineer may determine to be reasonably necessary for such purpose.

The Contractor shall make, maintain and submit reports to the Engineer concerning safety, health and welfare of persons and damage to property, as the Engineer may from time to time prescribe.

### 19.4 Lighting Work at Night

In the event of work being carried out at night, the Contractor shall at his own cost, provide and maintain such good and sufficient light as will enable the work to proceed satisfactorily and without danger. The approaches to the Site and the Works where the night-work is being carried out shall be sufficiently lighted. All arrangement adopted for such lighting shall be to the satisfaction of the Engineer's Representative.

#### 20.4 Employer's Risks

The Employer's risks are:

Delete the text and substitute with the following:

- (a) insofar as they directly affect the execution of the Works in Pakistan :
  - (i) war and hostilities (whether war be declared or not), invasion, act of foreign enemies,
  - (ii) rebellion, revolution, insurrection, or military or usurped power, or civil war,
  - (iii) ionizing radiations, or contamination by radioactivity from any nuclear fuel, or from any nuclear waste from the combustion of nuclear fuel, radioactive toxic explosive or other hazardous properties of any explosive nuclear assembly or nuclear component thereof,
  - (iv) pressure waves caused by aircraft or other aerial devices travelling at sonic or supersonic speeds,

- riot, commotion or disorder, unless solely restricted to the employees of the Contractor or of his Subcontractors and arising from the conduct of the Works;
- (b) loss or damage due to the use or occupation by the Employer of any Section or part of the Permanent Works, except as may be provided for in the Contract;
- (c) loss or damage to the extent that it is due to the design of the Works, other than any part of the design provided by the Contractor or for which the Contractor is responsible; and
- (d) any operation of the forces of nature (insofar as it occurs on the Site) which an experienced contractor :
  - (i) could not have reasonably foreseen, or
  - (ii) could reasonably have foreseen, but against which he could not reasonably have taken at least one of the following measures:
    - (a) prevent loss or damage to physical property from occurring by taking appropriate measures, or
    - (b) insure against.

#### 21.4 Exclusions

The text is deleted and substituted with the following:

There shall be no obligation for the insurances in Sub-Clause 21.1 to include loss or damage caused by the risks listed under Sub-Clause 20.4 paras (a) (i) to (iv).

The following Sub-Clause 25.5 is added:

### 25.5 Insurance Company

The Contractor shall be obliged to place all insurances relating to the Contract (including, but not limited to, the insurances referred to in Clauses 21, 23 and 24) with either National Insurance Company of Pakistan or any other insurance companies stipulated under SCC-28 operating in Pakistan and acceptable to the Employer.

Costs of such insurances shall be borne by the Contractor.

The following Sub-Clause 31.3 is added:

## 31.3 Co-operation with other Contractors

During the execution of the Works, the Contractor shall co-operate fully with other contractors working for the Employer at and in the vicinity of the Site and also shall provide adequate precautionary facilities not to make himself a nuisance to local

residents and other contractors.

The following Sub-Clauses 34.2 to 34.12 are added:

## 34.2 Rates of Wages and Conditions of Labour

The Contractor shall pay rates of wages and observe conditions of labour not less favourable than those established for the trade or industry where the work is carried out. In the absence of any rates of wages or conditions of labour so established, the Contractor shall pay rates of wages and observe conditions of labour which are not less favourable than the general level of wages and conditions observed by other employers whose general circumstances in the trade or in industry in which the Contractor is engaged are similar.

### 34.3 Employment of Persons in the Service of Others

The Contractor shall not recruit his staff and labour from amongst the persons in the services of the Employer or the Engineer; except with the prior written consent of the Employer or the Engineer, as the case may be.

## 34.4 Housing for Labour

Save insofar as the Contract otherwise provides, the Contractor shall provide and maintain such housing accommodation and amenities as he may consider necessary for all his supervisory staff and labour, employed for the purposes of or in connection with the Contract including all fencing, electricity supply, sanitation, cookhouses, fire prevention, water supply and other requirements in connection with such housing accommodation or amenities. On completion of the Contract, these facilities shall be handed over to the Employer or if the Employer so desires, the temporary camps or housing provided by the Contractor shall be removed and the Site reinstated to its original condition, all to the approval of the Engineer.

#### 34.5 Health and Safety

Due precautions shall be taken by the Contractor, and at his own cost, to ensure the safety of his staff and labour at all times throughout the period of the Contract. The Contractor shall further ensure that suitable arrangements are made for the prevention of epidemics and for all necessary welfare and hygiene requirements.

### 34.6 Epidemics

In the event of any outbreak of illness of an epidemic nature, the Contractor shall comply with and carry out such regulations, orders and requirements as may be made by the Government, or the local medical or sanitary authorities, for purpose of dealing with and overcoming the same.

### 34.7 Supply of Water

The Contractor shall, so far as is reasonably practicable, having regard to local conditions, provide on the Site, to the satisfaction of the Engineer or his representative, adequate supply of drinking and other water for the use of his staff and labour.

## 34.8 Alcoholic Liquor or Drugs

The Contractor shall not, otherwise than in accordance with the Statutes, Ordinances and Government Regulations or Orders for the time being in force, import, sell, give, barter or otherwise dispose of any alcoholic liquor or drugs, or permit or suffer any such importation, sale, gift, barter or disposal by his Subcontractors, agents, staff or labour.

#### 34.9 Arms and Ammunition

The Contractor shall not give, or otherwise dispose of to any person or persons, any arms or ammunition of any kind or permit or suffer the same as aforesaid.

### 34.10 Festivals and Religious Customs

The Contractor shall in all dealings with his staff and labour have due regard to all recognised festivals, days of rest and religious and other customs.

#### 34.11 Disorderly Conduct

The Contractor shall at all times take all reasonable precautions to prevent any unlawful, riotous or disorderly conduct by or amongst staff and labour and for the preservation of peace and protection of persons and property in the neighbourhood of the Works against the same.

#### 34.12 Compliance by Subcontractors

The Contractor shall be responsible for compliance by his Subcontractors of the provisions of this Clause.

The following Sub-Clauses 35.2 and 35.3 are added:

#### 35.2 Records of Safety and Health

The Contractor shall maintain such records and make such reports concerning safety, health and welfare of persons and damage to property as the Engineer may from time to time prescribe.

### 35.3 Reporting of Accidents

The Contractor shall report to the Engineer details of any accident as soon as possible after its occurrence. In the case of any fatality or serious accident, the Contractor shall, in addition, notify the Engineer immediately by the guickest available means.

The following Sub-Clause 36.6 is added:

#### 36.6 Use of Pakistani Materials and Services

The Contractor shall, so far as may be consistent with the Contract, make the maximum use of materials, supplies, plant and equipment indigenous to or produced or fabricated in Pakistan and services, available in Pakistan provided such materials, supplies, plant, equipment and services shall be of required standard.

#### 41.1 Commencement of Works

The text is deleted and substituted with the following:

The Contractor shall commence the Works on Site within the period named in Appendix-A to Bid from the date of receipt by him from the Engineer of a written Notice to Commence. Thereafter, the Contractor shall proceed with the Works with due expedition and without delay.

#### 42.1 Possession of Site and Access Thereto

The following para is added at the end of the sub-clause:

The contractor will in writing inform the engineer that the activities of the work in handed over portion are almost in the final stages and thereafter the employer will give to the contractor possession of further portion of site as may be required.

#### 42.2 Failure to Give Possession

The text at a) and b) is deleted and replaced with the following:

"any extension of time to which the Contractor is entitled under Clause 44"

### 48.2 Taking Over of Sections or Parts

For the purposes of para (a) of this Sub-Clause, separate Times for Completion shall be provided in the Appendix-A to Bid "Special Stipulations".

## 51.2 Instructions for Variations

At the end of the first sentence, after the word "Engineer", the words "in writing" are added.

#### 52.1 Valuation of Variations

In the tenth line, after the words "Engineer shall" the following is added:

within a period not exceeding one-eighth of the completion time subject to a minimum of 56 days from the date of disagreement whichever is later.

### 53.4 Failure to Comply

This Sub-Clause is deleted in its entirety.

## 54.5 Conditions of Hire of Contractor's Equipment

The following paragraph is added:

The Contractor shall, upon request by the Engineer at any time in relation to any item of hired Contractor's Equipment, forthwith notify the Engineer in writing the name and address of the Owner of the equipment and shall certify that the agreement for the hire thereof contains a provision in accordance with the requirements set forth above.

The following Sub-Clauses 59.4 & 59.5 are added:

## 59.4 Payments to Nominated Subcontractors

The Contractor shall pay to the nominated Subcontractor the amounts which the Engineer certifies to be due in accordance with the subcontract.

#### 59.5 Certification of Payments & Nominated Subcontractors

Delete the entire text and replaced with the following:

Before issuing a Payment Certificate which includes an amount payable to a nominated Subcontractor, the Engineer may request the Contractor to supply reasonable evidence that the nominated Subcontractor has received all amounts due in accordance with previous Payment Certificates, less applicable deductions for retention or otherwise. Unless the Contractor:

- (a) submits reasonable evidence to the Engineer, or
- (b) (i) satisfies the Engineer in writing that the Contractor is reasonably entitled to withhold or refuse to pay these amounts, and
  - (ii) submits to the Engineer reasonable evidence that the nominated Subcontractor has been notified of the Contractor's entitlement,

then the Employer may (at his sole discretion) pay direct to the nominated Subcontractor, part or all of such amounts previously certified (less applicable deductions) as are due to the nominated Subcontractor and for which the Contractor has failed to submit the evidence described in sub-paragraphs (a) or (b) above. The Contractor shall then repay, to the Employer, the amount which the nominated Subcontractor was directly paid by the Employer.

## 60.1 Monthly Statements

In the first line after the word "shall", the following is added:

"on the basis of the joint measurement of work done under Clause 56.1,"

In Para (c) the words "the Appendix to Tender" are deleted and substituted with the words "Sub-Cause 60.11 (a)(6) hereof".

### 60.10 Time for Payment

The text is deleted and substituted with the following:

The amount due to the Contractor under any Interim Payment Certificate issued by the Engineer pursuant to this Clause, or to any other terms of the Contract, shall, subject to Clause 47, be paid by the Employer to the Contractor within 28 days after such Interim Payment Certificate has been delivered to the Employer, or, in the case of the Final Certificate referred to in Sub Clause 60.8, within 42 days after such Final Payment Certificate has been delivered to the Employer; Provided that the Interim Payment shall be caused in 42 days and Final Payment in 56 days in case of foreign funded project.

The following Sub-Clause 60.11 is added:

#### 60.11 Secured Advance on Materials

- (a) The Contractor shall be entitled to receive from the Employer Secured Advance against an indemnity bond acceptable to the Employer of such sum as the Engineer may consider proper in respect of non-perishable materials brought at the Site but not yet incorporated in the Permanent Works provided that:
  - (i) the materials are in accordance with the Specifications for the Permanent Works:
  - (ii) Such materials have been delivered to the Site and are properly stored and protected against loss or damage or deterioration to the satisfaction of the Engineer but at the risk and cost of the Contractor;
  - (iii) The Contractor's records of the requirements, orders, receipts and use of materials are kept in a form approved by the Engineer, and such records shall be available for inspection by the Engineer;
  - (iv) The Contractor shall submit with his monthly statement the estimated value of the materials on Site together with such documents as may be required by the Engineer for the purpose of valuation of materials and providing evidence of ownership and payment therefor;
  - (v) Ownership of such materials shall be deemed to vest in the Employer and these materials shall not be removed from the Site or otherwise disposed of without written permission of the Employer; and
  - (vi) The sum payable for such materials on Site shall not exceed 75 % of the(i) landed cost of imported materials, or (ii) ex-factory / ex-warehouseprice of locally manufactured or produced materials, or (iii) market price

of other materials.

(b) The recovery of Secured Advance paid to the Contractor under the above provisions shall be effected from the monthly payments on actual consumption basis.

#### **60.12 Financial Assistance to Contractor**

Financial assistance shall be made available to the Contractor by the Employer through Mobilization Advance.

(a) The Advance shall be limited to ten (10) percent of the sum of the Accepted Contract Amount stated in the Letter of Acceptance less any Provisional Sums and will cover mobilization, demobilization and any costs incurred therein.

The Mobilization Advance (if required) may be paid in two equal parts (the 2<sup>nd</sup> after 42 days of the 1<sup>st</sup> part subject to the satisfaction of the Engineer as to the state of mobilization of the Contractor), after the following conditions have been fulfilled:

- (i) That the Contract Agreement has been signed by the parties.
- (ii) That the contractor has satisfied the Conditions setout under Clause 41.2 Part-II, to be certified by the Engineer;
- (iii) The Engineer has given his consent to the programme submitted by the contractor pursuant to Clause 14.1 of the Conditions of Contract;
- (iv) That the contractor guarantees full amount of the advance payment by an irrevocable without recourse bank guarantee.
- (v) The contractor shall also submit an affidavit with his signature and seal confirming that he will never approach any Court for seeking a stay order if the employer ask the bank to encash the guarantee submitted by the bidder for Mobilization Advance. The bidder will also not stop the bank from encashment if the employer intends to encash the bank guarantees.

The bank guarantee must be issued by a scheduled bank in Pakistan acceptable to the Employer and must be encashable in Pakistan in the same currencies as the advance payment was made. The bank guarantee shall remain valid and in force until the Mobilization Advance is recovered in full.

(b) At any time, the bank guarantee shall be valid for an amount not less than the amount of the original Mobilization Advance less any partial repayment of that Advance which may have been affected. The Contractor shall inform the guaranteeing bank, by letter counter signed by the Employer, of the required amount of the guarantee from time to time. Reduction of the amount shall not be made without such authorizing letter.

- (c) Normally, recovery of the Mobilization Advance will be made from each Interim Payment Certificate (IPC) as a percentage of the value of the Works executed during the respective period of the IPC. Deduction shall be made after the deduction of Retention Money. The rate of deduction shall be 15% until the full recovery has been affected.
- (d) Notwithstanding any thing contained herein, the whole of the Mobilization Advance shall be recovered not later than two months prior to the completion date of the Works as per the "Time for completion:' which, for the purpose of this Clause, may include Engineer's provisional assessment considering the provisions of Clause 44, of the Conditions of the contract which shall be subject to Employer's approval, to allow recovery of the advance in accordance with the said assessment.
- (e) In the event that the amount of monies certified and due to the contractor under the contract at any time is less than the total of due repayments of Mobilization Advance, the balance of the due repayments shall be paid to the Employer by the Contractor within seven days of demand by the Employer. If the balance is not so paid, the Employer shall be empowered to call in sufficient of the Mobilization Advance bank guarantee to cover the said balance.
- (f) The Employer shall be empowered to call in the guarantee in whole or in part(s) if the Contractor defaults in the repayment(s) for any reason(s).
- (g) An interest of 8% will be paid on outstanding amount of Mobilization Advance by the Bidder.

## 63.1 Default of Contractor

The last paragraph of this sub-clause is replaced with the following:

then the Employer may, after giving 14 days' notice to the Contractor enter upon the Site and the Works and terminate the employment of the Contractor by notifying any one of the following options:

- (i) To rescind the contract of (of which rescission notice in writing to the contractor under the signature of employee shall be conclusive evidence) and in which case the security Deposit of the contractor shall stand forfeited and be absolutely at the disposal of Govt.
- (ii) To employ labour paid by the Authority and to supply materials to carry out the work, or any part of the work debiting the contractor with the cost of the labour and the price of the materials (of the amount of which cost and price a certificate of the employer shall be final and conclusive against the contractor) and crediting him with the value of the work done in all respects in the same manner and at the same rates if it had been carried out by the contractor under the terms of his contract, the certificate of the Engineer as to the value of the work done shall be final and conclusive against the contractor.
- (iii) To measure up the work of the contractor and to take such part thereof as shall be unexecuted out of his hands, and to give it to another contractor to complete,

in which case, any expanses which may be incurred in excess of the sum and which would have been paid to the original contractor, if the whole work would have been executed by him (of the amount of such excess the certificate in writing of the Managing Director shall be final and conclusive) shall be borne and paid by the original contactor and may be deducted from any money due to him by Govt under the contract or otherwise or from his security Deposit or the proceeds of sale thereof or a sufficient part thereof.

iv) Without thereby releasing the Contractor from any of his obligations or liabilities under the Contract, or affecting the rights and authorities conferred on the Employer or the Engineer by the Contract, and may himself complete the Works or may employ any other contractor to complete the Works. The Employer or such other contractor may use for such completion so much of the Contractor's Equipment, Temporary Works and materials as he or they may think proper.

Provided further that in addition to the action taken by the Employer against the Contractor under this Clause, the Employer may also refer the case of default of the Contractor to Pakistan Engineering Council for punitive action under the Construction and Operation of Engineering Works Bye-Laws 1987, as amended from time to time.

#### 65.2 Special Risks

The text is deleted and substituted with the following:

The Special Risks are the risks defined under Sub-Clause 20.4 sub paragraphs (a) (i) to (a) (v).

#### 67.3 Arbitration

In the sixth to eight lines, the words "shall be finally settled ....... appointed under such Rules" are deleted and substituted with the following:

shall be finally settled under the provisions of the Arbitration Act, 1940 as amended or any statutory modification or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force.

The following paragraph is added:

The place of arbitration shall be Peshawar, Pakistan.

#### **68.1** Notice to Contractor

The following paragraph is added:

For the purposes of this Sub-Clause, the Contractor shall, immediately after receipt of Letter of Acceptance, intimate in writing to the Employer and the Engineer by registered post, the address of his principal place of business or any change in such address during the period of the Contract.

### 68.2 Notice to Employer and Engineer

For the purposes of this Sub-Clause, the respective addresses are:

a) The Employer:

The Managing Director, Pakhtunkhwa Highways Authority,

Khyber Road, Peshawar.

**b)** The Engineer:

The Director Construction,
Pakhtunkhwa Highways Authority,

Khyber Road, Peshawar.

## 69.1 Default of Employer

Sub-Clause 69.1 is deleted in its entirety

### 70.1 Increase or Decrease of Cost

Sub-Clause 70.1 is deleted in its entirety, and substituted with the following:

The amounts payable to the Contractor, pursuant to Sub-Clause 60.1, shall be adjusted in respect of the rise or fall in the cost of labor, materials, and other inputs to the Works, by applying to such amount the formula prescribed in this Sub-Clause.

### (a) Other Changes in Cost

To the extent that full compensation for any rise or fall in costs to the Contractor is not covered by the provisions of this or other Clauses in the Contract, the unit rates and prices included in the Contract shall be deemed to include amounts to cover the contingency of such other rise or fall of costs.

## (b) Adjustment Formula

The adjustment to the monthly statements in respect of changes in cost shall be determined from the following formula:-

$$Pn = A + b\frac{Ln}{Lo} + c\frac{Mn}{Mo} + d\frac{En}{Eo} + \dots$$

Where:

Pn is a price adjustment factor to be applied to the amount for the payment of the work carried out in the subject month, determined in accordance with Paragraph 60.1 (a), and with Paragraphs 60.1 (b) and (e), where any variations and daywork are not otherwise

subject to adjustment;

A is a constant, specified in Appendix-C to Bid, representing the nonadjustable portion in contractual payments;

b, c, d, etc., are weightages or coefficients representing the estimated proportion of each cost element (labour, cement and reinforcing steel etc.) in the Works or Sections thereof, net of Provisional Sums and Prime Cost; the sum of A, b, c, d, etc., shall be one:

Ln, Mn, En, etc., are the current cost indices or reference prices of the cost elements for month "n", determined pursuant to Sub-Clause 70.1(d), applicable to each cost element; and

Lo, Mo, Eo, etc., are the base cost indices or reference prices corresponding to the above cost elements at the date specified in Sub-Clause 70.1(d).

### (c) Sources of Indices and Weightages

The sources of indices shall be those listed in Appendix-C to Bid, as approved by the Engineer. As the proposed basis for price adjustment, the Contractor shall have submitted with his bid the tabulation of Weightages and Source of Indices if different than those given in Appendix-C to Bid, which shall be subject to approval by the Engineer.

#### (d) Base, Current, and Provisional Indices

The base cost indices or prices shall be those prevailing on the day 28 days prior to the latest date for submission of bids. Current indices or prices shall be those prevailing on the day 28 days prior to the last day of the period to which a particular monthly statement is related. If at any time the current indices are not available, provisional indices as determined by the Engineer will be used, subject to subsequent correction of the amounts paid to the Contractor when the current indices become available.

## (e) Adjustment after Completion

If the Contractor fails to complete the Works within the Time for Completion prescribed under Clause 43, adjustment of prices thereafter until the date of completion of the Works shall be made using either the indices or prices relating to the prescribed time for completion, or the current indices or prices, whichever is more favorable to the Employer, provided that if an extension of time is granted pursuant to Clause 44, the above provision shall apply only to adjustments made after the expiry of such extension of time.

## (f) Weightages

The weightages for each of the factors of cost given in Appendix-C to Bid shall be adjusted if, in the opinion of the Engineer, they have been rendered unreasonable, unbalanced, or inapplicable as a result of varied or additional work executed or instructed under Clause 51. Such adjustment(s) shall have to be agreed in the variation order.

# (g) Adjustment to be made in Interim Payments

Unless the parties otherwise agree, any price increase or decrease as aforesaid shall be adjusted in the interim payments made to the Contractor under the terms of Clause 60 hereof.

The following Sub-Clauses 73.1, 73.2, 74.1, 75.1, 76.1, 77.1 and 78.1 are added:

### 73.1 Payment of Income Tax

The Contractor, Subcontractors and their employees shall be responsible for payment of all their income tax, super tax and other taxes on income arising out of the Contract and the rates and prices stated in the Contract shall be deemed to cover all such taxes.

## 73.2 Customs Duty & Taxes

The Price Bid by the Contractor shall include customs duties, import duties, business taxes, income and other taxes that may be levied according to the laws and regulation of Pakistan in being as of the date 30 calendar days prior to the closing date for submission of Bids on the constructional plants / equipment, materials, and supplies (both permanent, temporary and consumable) acquired for the purpose of the contract and on the services performed under the Contract. Nothing in the Contract shall relieve the Contractor from his responsibility to pay any tax that may be levied in the Employer's country on profits made by him in respect of the contract.

## 74.1 Integrity Pact

If the Contractor or any of his Subcontractors, agents or servants is found to have violated or involved in violation of the Integrity Pact signed by the Contractor as Appendix-L to his Bid, then the Employer shall be entitled to:

- (a) recover from the Contractor an amount equivalent to ten times the sum of any commission, gratification, bribe, finder's fee or kickback given by the Contractor or any of his Subcontractors, agents or servants;
- (b) terminate the Contract; and
- (c) recover from the Contractor any loss or damage to the Employer as a result of such termination or of any other corrupt business practices of the Contractor or any of his Subcontractors, agents or servants.

The termination under Sub-Para (b) of this Sub-Clause shall proceed in the manner prescribed under Sub-Clauses 63.1 to 63.4 and the payment under Sub-Clause 63.3 shall be made after having deducted the amounts due to the Employer under Sub-Para (a) and (c) of this Sub-Clause.

# 75.1 Termination of Contract for Employer's Convenience

The Employer shall be entitled to terminate the Contract at any time for the Employer's convenience after giving 56 days prior notice to the Contractor, with a copy to the Engineer. In the event of such termination, the Contractor:

- (a) shall proceed as provided in Sub-Clause 65.7 hereof; and
- (b) shall be paid by the Employer as provided in Sub-Clause 65.8 hereof.

## 76.1 Liability of Contractor

The Contractor or his Subcontractors or assigns shall follow strictly, all relevant labour laws including the Workmen's Compensation Act and the Employer shall be fully indemnified for all claims, damages etc. arising out of any dispute between the Contractor, his Subcontractors or assigns and the labour employed by them.

## 77.1 Joint and Several Liability

If the Contractor is a joint venture of two or more persons, all such persons shall be jointly and severally bound to the Employer for the fulfilment of the terms of the Contract and shall designate one of such persons to act as leader with authority to bind the joint venture. The composition or the constitution of the joint venture shall not be altered without the prior consent of the Employer.

### 78.1 Details to be Confidential

The Contractor shall treat the details of the Contract as private and confidential, save in so far as may be necessary for the purposes thereof, and shall not publish or disclose the same or any particulars thereof in any trade or technical paper or elsewhere without the prior consent in writing of the Employer or the Engineer. If any dispute arises as to the necessity of any publication or disclosure for the purpose of the Contract, the same shall be referred to the decision of the Engineer whose award shall be final.

PART III – SUPPLEMENTARY CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT

# PART III - SUPPLEMENTARY CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT

# **CONTENTS**

SCC – 1	Progress Reports	151
SCC - 2	Attendance of Meetings	151
SCC - 3	Supply of Bitumen and Cement etc.	151
SCC - 4	Electric Supply	151
SCC - 5	Rates and Prices Inclusive	151
SCC - 6	Provision of Plant	153
SCC - 7	Rates inclusive of Lead and Lift	153
SCC - 8	Borrow Areas	153
SCC - 9	Time for Completion of Works	153
SCC - 10	Document not to be Altered or Mutilated	153
SCC - 11	Personal Liability of Public Officials	154
SCC - 12	Access and Canal Roads	154
SCC - 13	Railway Traffic	154
SCC - 14	Irrigation Flow	155
SCC - 15	Utility Lines	155
SCC - 16	First Aid Facilities	155
SCC - 17	Location of Contractor's Camp	156
SCC - 18	Final Hand Over	156
SCC - 19	Making Good Damage to Services, Earthwork, etc.	156
SCC - 20	Return of Plant, Materials, etc.	156
SCC - 21	Method of Measurement	156
SCC - 22	Record of Measurements	157
SCC - 23	Dangerous Materials	157
SCC - 24	Progress Photographs	157
SCC - 25	As Built Drawings / Shop Drawings	157
SCC - 26	Safety Precautions	158
SCC - 27	Fixed Withholding Tax	158
SCC - 28	Approved Insurance Companies	158

### SUPPLEMENTARY CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT

# SCC – 1 Progress Report

The Contractor shall submit to the Employer fortnightly progress reports in two copies detailing the progress in the execution of work during the reporting period. The submission of the progress reports shall be condition precedent to the payment of Contractors Bills by the Employer. One week in advance the Contractor shall submit for the Employer's approval, particulars of the work he proposes to execute within the following two weeks.

## SCC – 2 Attendance of Meetings

- (a) The Contractor shall attend and shall cause his Sub-Contractors to attend any or all meetings when called by the Employer or the Engineer to discuss progress of the Work and other matters related to the Work and the Contract, without any compensation from the Employer.
- (b) The Contractor shall bear all expenses of the Employer and representatives and the Engineer, and representatives for any meetings requested by the Contractor for instructions and approvals away from the site within or outside Pakistan.

# SCC – 3 Supply of Bitumen and Cement, etc.

The Contractor shall arrange and ensure timely supply of Bitumen, Cement and other materials required in the Work. The Employer does not assume any responsibility for the supply of materials. However, the Employer shall issue a certificate of the estimated requirement of the quantity of Bitumen and Cement at the specific request of the Contractor.

## SCC – 4 Electric Supply

The Contractor shall make arrangement for the electric power supply and distribution of the same at the Site of Works for the completion of the Works at his own expense.

# SCC – 5 Rate and Prices Inclusive

The rates and prices quoted by the Contractor in the priced Bill of Quantities shall include all freight, customs, import duties, taxes, pilotage, landing Supplementary Conditions of Contract charges, wharfage, octroi, excise duties, royalties and all other costs, charges imposed whatsoever in respect of any or other things provided by him for the Works.

The prices in the Bill of Quantities include also all additional costs and provisions required for the correct execution of work in compliance with the time Schedule and the Specifications.

By way of illustration but not enumeration the Unit Prices shall include besides the costs for supply of material and equipment, cost of their transport, Contractor's profit etc., the cost for provision of the following:—

- (a) Furnishing and maintenance of Contractor's Equipment, fuel for Equipment, temporary works, tests, samples and labour necessary for execution of the works, Equipment for transport, machines, test laboratories, Site Office and sheds including all expenses for the furnishing and maintenance of the Workshops and storage areas used by the Contractor.
- (b) Required power, water and other services.
- (c) Illumination and safety at Site.
- (d) All additional costs due to any kind of difficult working, conditions and interruptions which may possibly be caused by adverse physical conditions.
- (e) Staff allowances, ambulances, expenses for medical treatment, traveling expenses, holiday wages and salaries and all other costs for all employees, the required means of communications such as telephone and the like, the required means for protection against accidents.
- (f) All expenses for royalties, licences, liabilities insurances, rent, hire and the like in connection with the Works.
- (g) Other special work arrangements and provisions not mentioned here but necessary for the proper and complete execution of the Works.
- (h) All Government and/or Municipal taxes, customs duties, excise duties, stamp duties or any other dues, taxes or charges.
- (i) Cost of all insurances to be kept in force during the period of construction and the period of maintenance of the works under the Contract.
- (j) Mobilization, demobilization and clearance of site.
- (k) Contractor's camp for staff and labour including the services.
- (I) Performance Security and Bank Guarantees as and when required under the Contract.

The cost of the above shall be deemed to be included in the rates and prices tendered for the works and no separate payment shall be made on this account.

### SCC – 6 Provision of Plant

In respect of any contractor's Equipment in general, except as provided for in these Documents, which the Contractor shall be required to have available at Site for execution of Works in accordance with the Drawings, Specifications or as directed by the Employer, he shall make his own arrangements for foreign exchange, import formalities, customs, transport to the Site of Works and all other formalities whatsoever at his own cost and responsibility.

The Contractor shall be deemed to have taken into consideration all Government or Local Bodies regulations, for the time being in force, regarding the re–export of any plant and equipment which he may have to import in connection with the works. Any amendments to the existing rules and/or further regulations imposed in this respect by the Government of Pakistan shall be strictly followed by the Contractor.

### SCC - 7 Rates inclusive for all Lead and Lift

The tendered rates shall include all lead and lift required in earthwork.

#### SCC – 8 Borrow Areas

The Contractor shall make his survey/enquiries regarding the suitable and nearest Borrow Areas for embankment, granular fill, base and sub-base materials etc., and shall apply to the Engineer for approval for the use of the borrow area. It will be the responsibility of the Contractor to acquire the Borrow Areas approved by the Engineer and pay for all royalties/ malkana and all other costs. In case the materials from the approved Borrow Areas do not meet the Specifications, in the opinion of the Engineer, the Contractor shall have to propose new Borrow Areas for approval, and nothing shall be paid to the Contractor for abandonment of the previously approved Borrow Areas. Additional information regarding borrow and quarry sites is available.

## SCC – 9 Time for Completion of Works

The Work is required to be completed in the time stated in Appendix to Tender and the Tenderer to whom the Contract is given will be required to complete and deliver the whole of the Permanent Work strictly within the time so stated. If the Tenderer states, in his Tender, a shorter time than shown in the Appendix, then such shorter time governs.

### SCC – 10 Documents Not to be Altered or Mutilated

No alteration or mutilation (other than filling in all the blanks intended to be filled in) shall be made in the form of Tender or in any of the documents attached to it. Any comments which it is desired to make shall not be placed on any of the documents attached hereto, but shall take the form of a separate statement which shall be as brief as possible and referenced to items, clauses and pages of the annexed documents.

Such statements shall not qualify the acceptance of the Tender based upon a proposed change or changes in the annexed documents, nor shall be binding upon the Employer in any way in making the award. Alterations of already written prices must be signed in the place of alteration by the Tenderer or his legally authorized representative.

## SCC – 11 Personal Liability of Public Officials

In carrying out any of the provisions of these Specifications, or in exercising any power of authority granted to them by or within the scope of the Contract, there shall be no liability upon The Managing Director, PkHA or his authorized representatives either personally or as officials of the Government, it being understood that in all matters they act solely as agents and representatives of the Government.

No member or officer of the Government or the Employer or the Employer's representative or any one of their respective staffs or their employees shall be in any way personally bound or liable for the acts or obligations of the Employer under the Contract or answerable for any default or omission in the observance or performance of any of the acts, matters or things which are herein, contained.

#### SCC – 12 Access and Canal Roads

If the Contractor finds it necessary or elects to use existing canal roads, the Contractor shall make all necessary arrangements and obtain all permits from the provincial Irrigation Department for travel over and use of such canal roads. The Contractor shall observe all rules regulations of the Irrigation Department regarding the use of said canal roads. The cost of maintaining all necessary safety measures and temporary structures and making any necessary repairs, replacements or similar operations and all or any other costs required by reasons of his use of such canal roads shall be borne by the Contractor and the Contractor shall save harmless and indemnify the Employer in respect of all claims, demands, proceedings, damages, costs, charges and expenses whatsoever arising out of or in relation to any such operation or interference.

## SCC – 13 Railway Traffic

Where construction work or operations of the Contractor are performed within the limits of the right-of-way of the Pakistan Railways, the Contractor shall cooperate with the railway administration in order to expedite the work and to avoid interference with the operation of the railway. Before performing any work on his sidings yards or on other transportation facilities adjacent to existing railways, the Contractor shall enter into an agreement with and shall meet all requirements of the railway administration within the area of the Contractor's operation for the protection of its lines against damage, interference with traffic or service thereon by the operations of the Contractor under this Contract. The Contractor shall not store or place any materials or equipment on the right-of-

way of the existing railway in such a manner as to interfere with the operations of trains or the maintenance of the rail bed and track. In advance of any operation which may unavoidably interfere with the operation of the railway, the Contractor shall notify the superintendent of the corresponding Railway division in order that proper flagging or other protection may be provided. The cost of providing and maintaining all necessary safety measures, watchman guards, signals and temporary structures or making any necessary repairs, replacements or similar operations or furnishing indemnity or other required by this article shall be borne by the Contractor and the Contractor shall save harmless and indemnify the Employer in respect of all claims, demands, proceedings, damages costs, charges and expenses whatsoever arising out of or in relation to any such operations or interference.

# SCC - 14 Irrigation Flow

The Contractor shall conduct his operations so as to offer the least possible obstruction for maintaining flow in irrigation canals, channels and water courses. The Contractor shall observe all rules and regulations of appropriate authorities regarding the interruption and maintenance of flow in irrigation canals, channels and water sources and the Contractor shall save harmless and indemnify the Employer in respect of all claims, demands, proceedings, damages, costs and expenses whatsoever arising out of or in relation to any such construction, operations or interferences with irrigation flows.

The Contractor shall maintain alternate channels wherever temporary relocation of irrigation channels is required or where his operations disrupt the irrigation flow, without any compensation from the Employer.

## SCC - 15 Utility Lines

The Contractor shall conduct his operations, make necessary arrangements, take suitable precautions and perform all required work incident to the protection of and avoidance of interference with power transmission, telegraph, telephone and natural gas lines, oil lines water and sewerage mains and other utilities within the areas of his operations in connection with this Contract and the cost thereof shall be borne by the Contractor and the Contractor shall save harmless and indemnify the Employer in respect of all claims, demands, proceedings, costs, charges and expenses whatsoever arising out of or in relation to any such interference.

### SCC – 16 First Aid Facilities

The Contractor shall provide and maintain adequate First Aid Facilities convenient to the Site to the approval of the Employer.

### SCC – 17 Location of Contractor's Camp

The location of houses, barracks, stores and offices, etc., shall be determined in agreement with Employer. Installation for the supply of electricity and water, fuel, lighting, etc., must be present to the necessary extent.

### SCC – 18 Final Hand Over

At the end of the Defects Liability Period stipulated in the Contract, the Employer on application of the Contractor, shall decide the members of the final hand over committee and announce the same to the Contractor. The committee, after investigation of Work, if satisfied that there are no deficiencies or defects due to work of the Contractor, shall certify the final hand–over, and the Employer will then issue a Defects Liability Certificate as provided under Clause 62.1 of Conditions of Contract.

# SCC – 19 Making Good Damage to Services, Earthwork, etc.

The Contractor shall make good, at his own cost, all damages to telephone, telegraph and electric cables or wires, sewers, water or other pipes except where the Authority, Employer or Private Party owing or responsible for the same elects to make good the damage.

All injuries to the surface of the land, to the beds of water courses, protecting banks, riverbeds, etc. where disturbed by the works (other than where specifically ordered by the Employer), shall be repaired by the Contractor or the Authorities concerned, at the Contractor's expense. All such making good shall be to the approval of the Employer.

# SCC - 20 Returns of Plant, Materials, etc.

The Contractor shall forward to the Employer at the end of each month returns showing the Constructional Plant, materials, etc., on Site, in a form prescribed by the Employer.

## SCC – 21 Method of Measurement

The measurement of the Work shall be performed on the basis of the Specifications. If these measurements exceed the measurements indicated in the Specifications and Drawings, excepting those directed by the Employer, such excess shall be on the account of the Contractor and he shall not be entitled to any compensation therefor. But if they are less than the measurements indicated in the Specifications and Drawings then the Works actually executed shall be measured, provided they are technically acceptable and there is no provision to the contrary in any other part of the Contract Documents. All work completed under the Contract shall be measured according to the metric system for all items, unless otherwise provided herein or in the special Provisions. All longitudinal measurements for area or volume will be made horizontally along the road centre line, and no deduction will be made for individual fixtures in the pavement having an area of 1 sq. Meter or less. All transverse measurements

for area or volume of pavement courses will be made horizontally in accordance with the dimensions indicated on the plans, or the dimensions ordered by the Employer. In computing volume of excavation, embankment and borrow, the average end-area method will be used.

Quantities of materials wasted or disposed off in a manner not called for under the Contract or rejected loads of materials, including material rejected after it has been placed by reason of the failure of the contractor to conform to the provisions of the Contract, or material not unloaded from the transporting vehicle, or material placed outside of the lines indicated on the drawings or established by the Employer, or material remaining on hand after completion of the work will not be paid for and such material should be disposed off by the Contractor at his own expense. No compensation will be allowed for hauling rejected materials. The Works shall be measured net notwithstanding any general or local custom except where otherwise specifically described or prescribed in the Contract.

### SCC – 22 Record of Measurements

The Contractor will supply to the Employer's Representative six (6) copies of the abstract of Contractor's certificate of payment every month along with two copies of detailed measurements, quality control tests and cross sections with calculations, and any other document or information which form the basis of payment.

### SCC – 23 Dangerous Materials

The Contractor and his sub Contractors shall convey, store and make use of all explosives, dangerous petroleum, acetylene, carbide of calcium and other similar material provided by them for use in or on the works in strict accordance with the provision of all laws, orders and regulations that are in force at the Site or may be issued from time to time by the Government.

# SCC – 24 Progress Photographs

The Contractor shall furnish to the Employer every two weeks at least four photographs to clearly show the progress of construction. The photographs shall be submitted in three glossy prints 20 cm x 20 cm, together with the negative. Each print shall be marked on the back with the date and serial number. There shall be no writing, lettering or marking on the face of the photograph.

## SCC – 25 As Built Drawings/Shop Drawings

During construction, the Contractor shall keep an accurate record of all deviations of his work as actually installed from that shown or indicated on the Contract Drawings upon completion of the Work, the Contractor shall deliver to the Employer cloth/milar paper tracings, the same size as Contract Drawings and at an approved scale showing the Work as actually installed. All Drawings are to

become the property of the Employer.

All the shop drawings/fabrication drawings shall be prepared by the Contractor and submitted to the Engineer at least fifteen days before the start of the work. The Engineer shall check and approve or return the same to the Contractor for correction/modification within the period of 15 days from the day of receipt of the drawings. All work is to be executed by the Contractor in accordance with the drawings approved before the commencement of the works.

### SCC - 26 Safety Precautions

The Contractor shall adequately provide for the safety, health and welfare of persons and for the prevention of damage to works, material, equipment for the purpose of or in connection with the Contract.

## SCC – 27 Fixed Withholding Tax

A sum in Pakistani Rupees, in accordance with the prevailing income tax laws of Pakistan shall be deducted from all actual payments made to the Contractor and be deposited with the Government of Pakistan towards payment of income tax by the Contractor. When such deduction is made from the payments a certificate to that effect shall be issued by the Employer to the Contractor.

Notwithstanding such deduction of income tax at source, the Contractor shall be liable to pay the balance income tax, super tax and other taxes on income or his profits arising out of the Contract, and his employees on their remunerations etc, in accordance with the prevailing income tax laws of Pakistan.

## SCC – 28 Approved Insurance Companies

The Insurance Companies in Pakistan enlisted/registered with NHA will be recognized by PkHA for all Insurance required under the Contract within treaty bond limit mentioned against each company. These include but not limited to:

- 1. Eastern Federal Union Insurance Co. Ltd.
- 2. Habib Insurance Co. Ltd.
- 3. Adamjee Insurance Co. Ltd.
- 4. Muslim Insurance Co. Ltd.
- 5. New Jubilee Insurance Co. Ltd.
- 6. National Security Insurance Co. Ltd.
- 7. National Insurance Corporation of Pakistan
- United Insurance

**SPECIFICATIONS - SPECIAL PROVISIONS** 

# SPECIFICATIONS - SPECIAL PROVISIONS

# **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

SP-1	Detour Roads and Maintenance of Traffic	161
SP-2	Traffic Control Devices	162
SP-3	Miscellaneous Items of Work	164
SP-4	DELETED	164
SP-5	Metal Beam Guardrail	164
SP–6	Resident Engineer's Laboratory	165

### SP-1 DETOUR ROADS AND MAINTENANCE OF TRAFFIC

### 1.1 General

The Contractor shall conduct his operations so as to offer the least possible obstruction and inconvenience to the public all in accordance with item 705 and 706 of General Specifications and Special Provisions and he shall have under construction no greater length or amount of Work that he can execute properly with due regard to the right of the public.

Unless otherwise directed by the Engineer, all public traffic shall be permitted to pass through the Work with as little inconvenience and delay as possible.

Two-way traffic flow must be provided at all times whether within the existing road or by use of detour roads or by a combination of both, free of cost to the Employer.

The temporary bridge if required for detour shall be properly designed, substantially built and maintained for the load it will bear. The Contractor shall prepare and submit the temporary bridge drawings to the Engineer for approval. Approval of the Contractor's drawings shall not be considered as relieving him of any responsibility for safe designing and constructing the temporary bridge and detour.

### 1.2 Maintenance of Traffic

The Contractor will coordinate with the Traffic Police and shall be responsible for the safety and convenience of the public traffic in and around the operations during construction. Traffic control devices as outlined in Special Provisions SP–3 shall be provided and maintained in good working condition throughout the period required.

Roadway excavation, construction of embankments and widening of pavement shall be conducted in such a manner as to provide a reasonably smooth and even surface satisfactory for use by public traffic at all times. During rainy seasons special surface treatment such as bituminous single surface treatment or other method approved by the Engineer shall be executed free of cost. The riding surface shall be maintained smooth and dense by regular grading, sprinkling and rolling operations.

The Public shall not be expected to run within the limits of active construction operations and the Contractor shall so programmed and carry out his Work as to allow an adequate width of unobstructed roadway for the safe passage of the Public.

Alternative traffic maintenance proposals by the Contractor ensuring a minimum of 6 meters travel way may be submitted for the approval of the Engineer.

The Contractor shall so schedule and carry out his work that pedestrian and vehicle access to adjoining premises shall be maintained at all times, except with the written agreement of the owner / occupier of the premises.

## 1.3 Measurement and Payment

The costs of the Work involved in detour and maintenance of traffic as specified herein shall not be measured for direct payment and its cost shall be deemed to have included in the other item rates of Works.

#### 1.4 Deduction

In case the Contractor fails to maintain the traffic with a reasonably smooth and dust free riding surface, to the satisfaction of the Engineer, the Engineer may so certify in writing to the Employer and the Employer may thereupon Employ any other persons to carry out the same and recover all expenses consequent thereon and incidental thereto from the Contractor without avoiding the Contract or releasing the Contractor from any of his obligations or liabilities under the Contract or affecting the rights and power conferred on the Employer or the Engineer by the Contract.

### SP-2 TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES

### 2.1 General

The Contractor shall provide for the passage of traffic along the Road at all times in and around the construction sites all in accordance with item 706 of General Specifications and these special provisions. During critical activities the Contractor may, with the approval of the Engineer, provide for one way movement for selected and short sections of the highway.

For the control of traffic during construction, the Contractor shall furnish install and maintain such signs, delineators, barricades, flashers and flagmen as are necessary for proper execution, free of cost. Prior to initiation of one way traffic controls, the Contractor shall prepare and submit to the Engineer for approval a diagram or sketch outlining in detail the area or areas affected and the location, type and number of signs, delineators, barricades, flashers and flagmen he proposes to use.

Since the traffic flow patterns may vary from hour to hour or location to location, the following guidelines are established.

## 2.2 Construction Signs

Nominal size 1.2m x 1.2m diamond or square shaped of steel sheet with black letters painted on a yellow background. Letter size shall be minimum 12 cm in height. Signs shall be placed at 100 meters intervals commencing 500 meters from the Work site. The signs shall be placed approximately 2 meters right and 1.5 meters above the edge of pavement facing oncoming traffic. Typical sign wordings to be used are: DETOUR AHEAD, FLAGMEN AHEAD, ONE LANE ROAD AHEAD, ROAD CONSTRUCTION AHEAD, ROAD CLOSED AHEAD, MEN WORKING, SLOW AND STOP.

In addition, other warning or regulatory signs shall be developed and located, as the Engineer may direct to facilitate the flow of traffic.

### 2.3 Barricades

Steel sheet cross bars, nominally 25 by 2 cms and 1.2 m wide shall be painted in 15 cms – 45 diagonal black and white alternating stripes and mounted on 15 cms posts, 1.2 meter high, fastened to a suitable base platform. If necessary for stability, the base shall be weighted with sand bags, rocks or other materials, Barricades shall be located on the roadway no more than 100 meters from each end of the restriction.

### 2.4 Delineators

Delineators shall be reflective red or yellow plastic cones or plastic pipe with a minimum height of 45 cms and mounted on a suitable base. Delineators shall be spaced at 20 meters intervals alongside the traffic side of the restricted Work area.

## 2.5 Warning Lights

Warning lights shall be electric flashers with a bidirectional two lens head assembly. The lenses shall be a minimum 15 cms in diameter. The intensity of the warning lights shall be at least 4 candle power and the flash rate shall be between 50 - 75 flashes per minutes. Normally, warning lights shall be placed on all barricades and the adjacent construction sign. The Engineer may direct the placement of additional warning lights at other locations.

## 2.6 Flagmen

Flagmen shall be provided with a vest of reflective red material and construction type hard hat and have two hand signs at all times. The hand signs shall be of the paddle—type, 30 cms in diameter; one painted STOP/GO and the other painted SLOW. Flagmen shall be posted at the beginning and end of the restricted section and at intervals of 500 meters within the zone.

The Contractor shall install signs, lights, delineators barricades and furnish flagmen as specified above or as directed by the Engineer and shall maintain all such devices in good condition. Should the Contractor appear to be neglectful or negligent in furnishing warning and protective measures as stated herein, the Engineer may direct attention to the existence of a hazard and necessary warning measures and devices shall be furnished and/or installed by the Contractor without hesitation?

The Contractor shall not be relieved from his responsibility for public safety throughout the Contract duration.

### 2.7 Measurement and Payment

The Cost of furnishing, installing and maintaining the necessary warning and protective measures including the furnishing of competent flagmen shall not be measured and paid for separately and shall be deemed to be included in the other items of work entered in the Bill of Quantities.

### SP-3 MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS OF WORK

# 3.1 Bridge Deck Drainage

The following item is provided for the installation of G.I. 4" (100 mm) diameter pipes in concrete deck slab for bridge drainage, as indicated in the drawings or as directed by the Engineer.

Pay Item No.	Description	Unit of Measurement
SP-3.1	Providing & Fixing G.I. Pipe 4" dia. complete in all respect as per drawings	М

## 3.2 Provision of PVC Pipe for services

The following item is provided for the installation of PVC 6" (150 mm) diameter pipes conforming to the requirements of ASTM Standard D 1785-03 Schedule 40, in foot path of side barrier concrete of bridge railing for crossing of utility services, as indicated in the drawings or as directed by the Engineer.

Pay Item No.	Description	Unit of Measurement
SP-3.2	Providing & Fixing PVC Pipe 6" dia. complete in all respect as per drawings	M

## SP-4 DELETED

### SP-5 METAL BEAM GUARDRAIL

The following item is provided for the installation of Metal Beam Guard Rail. The work shall be carried out according to the Item-604 as given in NHA General Specifications

## 5.1 Measurement and Payment

Pay Item No.	Description	Unit of Measurement
SP-5(a)	Metal Beam Guard Rail	М
SP-5(b)	Guard Rail End Pieces	Each
SP-5(c)	Steel Post for Guard Rail	Each

## SP-6 RESIDENT ENGINEER'S LABORATORY

# 6.1 Scope

- 1. The Contractor shall equip & furnish on site for the duration of the Contract Base Laboratory, for the exclusive use of the Resident Engineer and his staff, for testing soils, aggregates and concrete. The laboratory shall be fully equipped with all furniture, apparatus and fittings appropriate to such use.
- 2. Water tanks shall be constructed for curing concrete samples of a size and location approved by the Resident Engineer.
- 3. The Resident Engineer's Laboratory, equipment and furnishings shall become the property of the Employer.

# 6.2 Sampling

It shall be the responsibility of the Contractor to take samples as required by the Engineer / Resident Engineer and to provide all necessary transport, labour, tools, containers, wrappings and so forth for uplifting and dispatching samples to the Resident Engineer's Laboratory.

## 6.3 Tests

1. The Resident Engineer's Laboratory shall be equipped to perform the following in house tests:

TEST	AASHTO DESIGNATION
Moisture content test by oven drying Atterberg limits	T-89 & T-90
Moisture density relationship of soils (standard method)	T-99
Moisture density relationship of soils (modified method)	T-180, Method B and D
Specific gravity of soils	T-100
CBR test	T-193

Sieve analysis of soils and aggregate and mineral filler	T-88, T-27 and T-37	
Specific gravity and water absorption of fine aggregates	T-84	
Specific gravity and water absorption of coarse aggregates	T-85	
Unit weight of aggregates	T-19	
Los Angeles abrasion test for aggregates Chemical tests :	T-96	
- Organic impurities for sand in concrete	T-21	
- Chlorides and Sulphates in fine aggregates	ASTM-1411	
- Potential alkali reactivity test	ASTM-C 289	
Amount of material passing No. 200 sieve	T-11	
Soundness of aggregates	T-104	
Clay lumps and friable particles in aggregates	T-112	
Curing concrete compressive test specimens	T-23	
Compressive strength of concrete cylinder specimens	T-22	
Quality of water to be used in concrete	T-26	
Making and curing concrete test specimens in the laboratory	T-126	
Plastic fines in graded aggregates and soils by use of sand equivalent test		

**AASHTO DESIGNATION** 

2. The Resident Engineer's Base Laboratory shall be equipped to perform the following field tests:

TEST AASHTO DESIGNAT	
In-place density by sand cone method (with 15.25 cms and 30.5 cms cone) In-place density of compacted base course containing large sizes of coarse	T-191 T-181
coarse aggregates Sampling fresh concrete Concrete slump	T-141 T-119

# 6.4 Furnishing

**TEST** 

The Contractor shall provide for the Resident Engineer's Laboratory furnishings described in the following list to a quality approved by the Engineer / Resident Engineer. Substitution of type may be made only upon approval of the Engineer.

## **BASE LABORATORY**

NO.	DESCRIPTION
2	Standard office desks
2	Swivel type padded desk chairs
7	Work tables
20	Standard office chairs
6	Small tables

NO.	DESCRIPTION
4	Side racks
1	Metal filing cabinets, 4-drawer
8	Electronic calculators
4	Air conditioners (cooling and heating)
1	Electric water coolers
1	Display board
2	Desk lamps, fluorescent, 20 watts
8	Standard size staplers
1	Heavy duty staplers
2	Paper cutters
1	Paper hole punches, heavy duty
8	Paper hole punches, light duty
8	Metal wastebasket
1	Office clock, battery powered
1	Plastic trash container, 500mm dia by 750mm high
8	Pencil sharpeners
1	Pencil sharpeners, desk mounted
4	Fire extinguishers (carbon dioxide) wall hung

## **KITCHEN**

1	Electric refrigerator, 0.50 cu.m capacity with separate freezer
	compartment, self defrost type
1	Gas stove with oven, two burners, and gas bottles as required
1	Electric kettle
1	Gas water heater / Geyser, 60 liters per minute
1	Exhaust fan
	Tea pot, coffee pot, cups, saucers, glasses, spoons, and serving trays for
	12 persons

## **LAVATORIES**

- 2 Hot water heaters, 6 liters per minute
- 2 Exhaust fan, ½ HP, 220 Volt

# 6.5 Equipment

- The Contractor shall provide laboratory equipment for base laboratory, as noted in the lists "Equipment for the Resident Engineer's Base Laboratory" included herein. The equipment shall be purchased from recognized and well-known local or international supplier all to the approval of the Engineer.
- 2. The Contractor shall submit to the Engineer within 28 (twenty eight) days of the Commencement Date a complete list of the equipment and apparatus he

proposes to furnish for the Resident Engineer's Laboratory. The list shall include the manufacture's name and descriptive literature.

# 6.6 Payment

Provisional sum included and so designated in the Bill of Quantities shall be used, in whole or in part, or not at all, on the instructions of the Engineer in accordance with Clause 58 of Part-I of the Conditions of Contract.

Payment for the item will be made on the invoice amount certified by the Engineer after approval from the Employer.

If the contractor does not provide the specified equipments and facilities, the cost of testing otherwise arranged by the Engineer plus a 20% (twenty percent) overhead charge shall be payable by the Contractor.

Pay Item No.	Description	Unit of Measurement
SP-6(a)	Equip and Furnish Base Laboratory (250 Sq.m)	PS
SP-6(b)	Provide equipment for Base Laboratory	PS

**SPECIFICATIONS - TECHNICAL PROVISIONS** 

SPECIFICATIONS – TECHNICAL PROVISIONS
For Specifications – Technical Provisions, the General Specifications (December 1998) with amendment published by the National Highway Authority will be used for the execution of the project, and will be considered as Volume – II of these Bidding Documents.

**LIST OF DRAWINGS** 

# **DRAWINGS**

The drawings are provided as separate Bidding Document, Volume–IV.

# LIST OF DRAWINGS

S.NO.	DRAWING NO.	DESCRIPTION	REMARKS
		TITLE	
01	MN - M-RD- 001	LIST OF DRAWING	
02	MN - M-RD- 002	LOCATION MAP & KEY PLAN	
03	MN - TD -RD- 001	SYMBOLS AND ABBREVIATIONS	
04	MN - TD -RD- 002	GENERAL NOTES	
05	MN - TD -RD- 003	TYPICAL CROSS SECTIONS	3 NO.SHEET
06	MN - TD -RD- 004	TYPICAL ROAD JUNCTIONS DETAILS	
07	MN - TD -RD- 005	TYPICAL SUPERELEVATION DETAILS & CALCULATION	
08	MN - TD -RD- 006	PAVEMENT MARKING AND ROAD STUDS DETAILS	
09	MN - TD -RD- 007	KILOMETER POST DETAILS	
10	MN - TD -RD- 008 1-6	TYPICAL ROAD SIGNS	6 NO.SHEET
11	MN - TD -RD- 009	ROAD SIGN FOUNDATION DETAILS	
12	MN - TD -RD- 010	RUMBLE STRIPS & CATES EYES DETAILS	
13	MN - TD -RD- 011	TYPICAL DETAILS OF CAUSEWAY	
14	MN - TD -RD- 012	TRAVERSE AND BENCH MARK DATA	
15	MN - TD -RD- 013	HORIZONTAL CURVE DATA	3 NO.SHEET
16	MN - TD -RD- 014	VERTICAL CURVE DATA	4 NO.SHEET
17	MN - TD -RD- 015	LIST OF BREAST WALL	
18	MN - TD -RD- 016	LIST OF SIDE DRAIN	
19	MN - TD -RD- 017	LIST OF RETAINING WALL	
20	MN - TD -RD- 018	LIST OF ROAD SIGNS	
21	MN - TD -RD- 019	LOCATION OF PROTECTION WORKS	
22	MN - TM -RD- 001	TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT PLAN	2 NO.SHEET
	PLAN AND PR (KM. 0+000 TC	OFILE DRAWINGS FOR PACKAGE (	- 1
23	MN - PP -RD-01,01A	PLAN AND PROFILE STA. 00+000 T O STA. 00+350	
24	MN - PP -RD-02,2A	PLAN AND PROFILE STA. 00+350 TO STA. 00+700	
25	MN - PP -RD-03,3A	PLAN AND PROFILE STA. 00+700 TO STA. 01+050	
26	MN - PP -RD-04,4A	PLAN AND PROFILE STA. 01+050 TO STA. 01+400	
27	MN - PP -RD-05,5A	PLAN AND PROFILE STA. 01+400 TO STA. 01+750	
28	MN - PP -RD-06,6A	PLAN AND PROFILE STA. 01+750 TO STA. 02+100	
29	MN - PP -RD-07,7A	PLAN AND PROFILE STA. 02+100 TO STA. 02+450	
30	MN - PP -RD-08,8A	PLAN AND PROFILE STA. 02+450 TO STA. 02+800	
31	MN - PP -RD-09,9A	PLAN AND PROFILE STA. 02+800 TO STA. 03+150	
32	MN - PP -RD-010,10A	PLAN AND PROFILE STA. 03+150 TO STA. 03+500	
33	MN - PP -RD-011,11A	PLAN AND PROFILE STA. 03+500 TO STA. 03+850	
34	MN - PP -RD-012,12A	PLAN AND PROFILE STA. 03+850 TO STA. 04+200	
35	MN - PP -RD-013,13A	PLAN AND PROFILE STA. 04+200 TO STA. 04+550	
36	MN - PP -RD-014,14A	PLAN AND PROFILE STA. 04+550 TO STA. 04+900	

S.NO.	DRAWING NO.	DESCRIPTION	REMARKS
37	MN - PP -RD-015,15A	PLAN AND PROFILE STA. 04+900 TO STA. 05+250	
38	MN - PP -RD-016,16A	PLAN AND PROFILE STA. 05+250 TO STA. 05+600	
39	MN - PP -RD-017,17A	PLAN AND PROFILE STA. 05+600 TO STA. 05+950	
40	MN - PP -RD-018,18A	PLAN AND PROFILE STA. 05+950 TO STA. 06+000	
	STRUCTURAL	. DRAWINGS	
41	MN - GN -ST-001	GENERAL NOTES - CULVERTS.	
42	MN - CUL -ST-001	STONE MASONARY SLAB CULVERT DETAILS	
43	MN - CUL -ST-002	STONE MASONARY TWO CELL SLAB CULVERT DETAILS	
44	MN - CUL -ST-003	STONE MASONARY MULTI CELL SLAB CULVERT DETAILS	
45	MN - CUL -ST-004	TYPICAL STONE MASONRY SLAB CULVERT REINFORCEMENT DETAILS	
46	MN - CUL -ST-005	TYPICAL SLAB CULVERT WITH STEEP BED SLOPES	
47	MN - CUL -ST-006	SLAB CULVERT EXTENSION DETAILS	
48	MN - CUL -ST-007	PIPE CULVERT EXTENSION DETAILS	
49	MN - RW -ST-001	PLUMB CONCRETE RETAINING WALL DETAILS	
50	MN - LS -ST-001	LIST OF STRUCTURES	